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Corporate Profile

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited has been listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong since 2003.
The Group is the leading producer of fermentation-based amino acids,
food additive products and cassava starch-based industrial products
in Asia. Our products are sold to food distributors, international trading
companies, and manufacturers of food, paper, textile, and
chemical products in Vietnam and other ASEAN countries, the PRC,
Japan, Taiwan and several European countries. Most of our products
are marketed under the VEDAN brand name.
RAIEIRR IR BIRABIN 2 =F 1 & BHXMER LT
AEEZTMNEREAUBERNTEEREREm  BmalE k
B TEEmMBELEERGH KABKENERHE TEE-
HtERBER FE-BEA 828U R—ERNBERNBERDHE
BB Z AR URBm MMENT 8T CE2EREER’
NEBKED EmBAU KA IRMEHE -

Since the 1970s, our products have been marketed in Vietnam, the
PRC, and other ASEAN countries. To accelerate market expansion, the
Group established Vietnam Vedan in 1991 as our major production
base. Since then, the Group’s production has been undergoing
continuous expansion due to strong growing demand. The Group
is currently the largest MSG producer in the Southeast Asian
region, and the largest supplier of lysine and cassava starch-based
industrial products in Vietnam. In 1995, Vedan acquired a factory in
Xiamen to focus on developing the PRC market. In 2004, the Group
further acquired the assets and MSG business of Shanghai Vedan
Foods Company Limited, which will be developed into its business
operations center in the PRC, signifying its determination and
commitment to become a major player in the PRC market. To ensure
the Group has a stable supply of starch and a strong production
platform for starch related products, Vedan Vietnam acquired Ve-Thai
Tapioca-Starch Co. Ltd. in November 2005.

Leveraging on our production facilities located in Vietnam and the
PRC, steady upstream supply of raw materials, our possessing of
advanced fermentation production technology and other biochemical
processing technology, coupled with the experienced management
team, the Group boasts strong competitiveness over its peers.
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Vietnam Office # it = &=
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Tel: (84) 251-3825 111

Fax: (84) 251-3543 160
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Financial Highlights
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For the year ended 31 December

2020 2019
us$'000 US$'000 Difference
FERT FET =&
Revenue Wz 360,741 357,857 0.8%
Gross profit EF 72,556 66,565 9.0%
Profit for the year REE R 16,677 15,585 7.0%
Profit attributable to owners wB AELRR 16,650 15,563 7.0%
Basic earnings per share SRELRF 1.09 US cents Xfll  1.02 US cents A4
Diluted earnings per share SRR 1.09 US cents Efll  1.02 US cents A4
Final dividend proposed per share RKESRFRARKS 0.462 US cents Efll  0.214 US cents
Total dividends paid and B Rtk
proposed per share BRKEHRE 0.656 US cents £fll  0.614 US cents Al
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS REVENUE
e AELRT Y &
in US$'000 F37T in US$'000 F37T
25,000 500,000
20,000 400,000 356,772 357,857 360,741
! 16,650 ' i —
14,285 15,563 — : =
15,000 300,000
10,000 200,000
5,000 100,000
0 0
2018 2019 2020 2018 2019 2020

REVENUE BY PRODUCTS
BERSBEZWE

12 months ended 31 Dec 2020
HE_T-_TF+_A=+—HI+ZER

6.0%
6.9%

5.2%

64.3%
17.6%

. MSG and seasonings . Specialty chemicals
LRSIk FLER
Modified starch & . Fertilisers and feed products
native starch & maltose A ERfRR
BRI+ RABIN+ B HE Others

.gm

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHIC LOCATION
it E 2Rz W

12 months ended 31 Dec 2020
HE_T-_TF+_A=t+—HI+ZER

8.1%

74%

7.2%
47.3%
13.0%
17.0%
Vietnam ASEAN
. fiza) . REER
Japan us
. A7 . E e}
PRC Others
. hE Hith
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Chairman’s Statement

Yang, Tou-Hsiung 15 581
ChairmanZ &

Armed with modern technology and
sound management, we have successfully created a number of
quality products to cater to the consumers’ tastes and demands.
BREAANERXFEHREE BRI BEEER
M E HEBERNOKRMENK-
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Chairman’s Statement

Looking back at 2020, the global economy was hit hard by the
COVID-19 pandemic and economic activities in all key regions saw
a sharp decline as a result. Consumption largely stagnated and
the supply of some commodities was off-balance for a short while
during the year due to transport interruptions caused by various
lockdowns and containment measures. Almost all major economies
around the world, including the US, the European Union, the PRC,
Asia, and Central and South America, were seriously affected.
Global economic growth was also dealt a blow by the pandemic
and economic activities were sluggish, adding much uncertainty to
the overall economic environment. Vietnam, the Group’s largest
market, imposed rather stringent entry restrictions on foreigners and
managed to bring the pandemic under effective control. However, its
main trading partners were still adversely affected by the pandemic,
and its economic growth slowed as a result. Nevertheless, Vietnam
managed to achieve a positive Gross domestic product (GDP) growth
of 2.91% for 2020, which was a relatively impressive economic
performance when compared with other countries. The overall
economic development of Vietnam is expected to remain in a positive
and upward trend.

In terms of the financials for the year, the Group's revenue amounted
to approximately US$360,741,000, an increase of approximately
US$2,884,000, or around 0.8%, against last year. Despite the sales of
MSG, hydrochloric acid and soda falling due to weaker demand and
intensified market competition, the performance of modified starch,
maltose, fertilisers and feed products, and the trading of distribution
products and coffee beans in the PRC rose significantly. Moreover, the
gross profit for the year amounted to approximately US$72,556,000,
a growth of 9.0% from last year, and gross profit margin was 20.1%.
The increase in gross profit was primarily due to greater demand for
and the increase in selling prices of modified starch, maltose, and
fertilisers and feed products. Net profit for the year increased by
approximately US$1,092,000 to approximately US$16,677,000, when
compared with last year, and net profit margin was 4.6%. The loss
provision for goodwill and assets of some of the Group's affiliated
companies also affected the net profit of the year during the year.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk IR (382 AR A S
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Chairman’s Statement

The performance of the Group’s major geographic markets and
segments varied in accordance with the demand for products and
the degree of competition in different markets. In Vietnam, the
performance of various products including MSG, modified starch and
feed products improved alongside the increasing market demand,
benefiting from stable product quality, strong brand influence
and the support of well-established sales channels. However, the
selling prices and sales volume and thus the revenue of seasonings,
maltose, hydrochloric acid and soda of specialty chemicals and feed
products dropped due to the COVID-19 pandemic, weaker demand
and price competition in the market. Therefore, the Group's revenue
from Vietnam decreased by 4.0% year-on-year during the period.
In the PRC market, products such as MSG, seasonings and starch,
which were impacted by the pandemic, limitations on product
transportation and weaker demand, recorded a decrease in sales
volume, hence the Group’s performance in those segments faced a
downturn compared with last year. However, revenue from trading
of distribution products, bulk food ingredients and coffee beans
increased remarkably year-on-year, owing to segmentation of sales
regions and stronger sales channels. The overall revenue of the PRC
market recorded a growth of around 7.7% compared with 2019. The
recovery of the Japanese economy was relatively slow. The COVID-19
pandemic, coupled with price competition, dragged down the sales
volume of the Group’s MSG, modified starch and feed products in
Japan. As a result, the Group's performance in this market decreased
by around 5.6% year-on-year. As for the ASEAN market, the sales
volume of its main products including MSG, modified starch and
fertilisers dropped due to weaker market demand, and as a result
revenue from the market fell by 2.8% year-on-year. In the US, as sales
jumped significantly due to the Group's effort in promoting modified
starch and maltose products as well as exploring new markets and
new customers, the performance of its US operation increased by
approximately 24.9%.

EERIETHREBEETE SHHEY
FRERNBERERFHFENKRRE -THE
W5 REEEARENRE mMHEFES
BoEEmEHERR KB EHRNERANE
EmNEEHARAR - BERZIBERE
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HER AEHBERTEATBEERIFZE
Z EEEHEENTHR E2FERENRA
RABEZTA - BEEXFRAHUBTHHN
ERBREFTH4I0% HEENEESE +
ERIEREE EmERKABERZIRG
R AR R ERL  REREE
TE;BREERAZEZAERE AFREMA
MBS FRCHEEEEIREERE & IAa
REFERABEZRE £HEEREREW
RATHAIE RA7 7% S5 BEHBNEES
o FECESRRERRE BN LEBER
BEZHEEREHHTHERRT KB Z4ER
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Chairman’s Statement

The Group’s major products are MSG and seasonings. Although
operations and sales remained stable in Vietnam, the PRC and other
overseas markets were impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic and
international market competition, hence the overall revenue declined
by around 0.6% against 2019. With regard to another of the Group's
key product categories; modified starch products, the supply and
price of its main raw material, cassava, stabilised when compared
with last year and its products with new specifications were also
launched during the period. The demand for modified starch products
was lower in Japan and the ASEAN market, but the product recorded
stable growth in Vietnam, the US and the PRC. Therefore, the sales
and revenue of modified starch increased overall. Maltose was
another key starch product of the Group that also benefited from the
stable price and supply of raw materials and the introduction of high
value-added products, boosting the sales volume during the year.
In particular, maltose achieved satisfactory sales growth in the US,
and therefore, revenue from starch products and maltose increased
by approximately 7.5% against last year. Observing the market
potential and bright development prospects of these products, the
Group is working hard on the development of these products and
their variants, hoping to offer more diverse and high value-added
products. As for hydrochloric acid and soda products within the
specialty chemicals segment, industries related to these products,
including the iron and steel, electroplating and chitin sectors, were
seriously impacted by the pandemic and demand decreased sharply.
Hydrochloric acid and soda also recorded lower selling prices and
sales volumes due to market competition, and revenue of these
products dropped markedly during the year. Overall revenue of
specialty chemicals decreased significantly by 23.7% year-on-year.
With regard to the Group's fertilisers and feed products, although
overall demand for fertilisers and feed products was weakened due
to climate change and the outbreak of the pandemic, overall sales of
fertilisers and feed products increased by around 2.4% year-on-year
as a result of the acquisition of new customers and the improvement
of product structure. With regard to trading of distribution products
in the PRC, including bulk food ingredients and coffee beans,
performance surged notably and recorded growth of 67.8% year-on-
year, primarily due to the Group's strategy to strengthen the product
mix and sales network.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk IR (382 AR A S
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Chairman’s Statement

Looking ahead to 2021, we realize that the Group’s operations will
continue to encounter uncertainties in the business environment. In
particular, the possible shortage of local raw materials in Vietnam,
the rising prices of raw material in the international markets, the
price competition of various products, weaker demand due to the
pandemic, the inflation risk and the rising international shipping
costs are all concerns. In this regard, the Group will continue to strive
to secure major sources of raw materials and alternative sources
to stabilise production costs and hasten the development of new
products and the pace of entering strategic alliances. In doing so, we
will be able to strengthen and effectively execute our sales strategies
as Vietnam further opens its market and its economy continues to
grow at a steady pace. We will also have more opportunities to
expand our different businesses and markets elsewhere.

In addition, we have seen that the Vietnamese economy achieved
growth amid adversity under the pandemic, and with the signing
of trade agreements such as EVFTA, UKVFTA and RCEP, with the
EU, UK and different countries in the region, there are tremendous
development opportunities on offer. Well-positioned to tap into
the strong potential in that market, the Group will remain prudent
yet optimistic. We will expedite investment in the development and
connection of new products and new markets in order to enhance
our brand influence. By more effectively using our channel resources,
we can more flexibly and dynamically operate the business, with
the aim of capturing opportunities and coping with the rapidly
evolving business environment. Building on its current solid business
foundation, the Group believes that its businesses will continue to
advance along the right development track. All members of the
Group are well aware of the opportunities and responsibilities in the
changing business environment, and they will therefore pragmatically
and diligently execute the Group’s planned operational strategies
with an open mind and proactive approach, and thereby develop and
achieve breakthroughs in our operations and results.

By Order of the Board

Yang Tou-Hsiung
Chairman

23 March 2021
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Standing out In
a Specialised Industry
RBEIRERT
EEhmmReE -
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As a successful long-term player in a market
with significant entry barriers, Vedan International has distinct
competitive advantages that add real value to its products.
With advanced expertise in large-scale fermentation technology,
starch processing conversion technology and chemical and
electro-chemical technology, Vedan International is developing
new products which represent the latest breakthroughs in industrial
science and look set to be major profit drivers in the future.

KAERFIIEENEZATRES MERER
eI H BRRAAXREE SN G FEZBERMBEENEBERERT -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

We experienced an unprecedented crisis in 2020, as COVID-19
spread across the world and brought significant changes to
countries worldwide. Global economies fell into recession,
with rising unemployment rates and borrowings. According
to the International Monetary Fund (“IMF"), global economic
growth for the year was —4.3%. In the PRC, strong domestic
demand supported economic recovery, making it the first large
economy to record positive growth in 2020, leaving other large
economies such as the US, the EU and Japan, new emerging
markets and developing economies in recession. However, it
is still uncertain whether global economic activities can return
to pre-pandemic levels. Besides, the prices of international
bulk commodities and oil plummeted started to rebound in
April, while weak market demand suppressed the prices of
consumer products. Economic experts expect that rising levels
of vaccination and further stimulus policies will be the keys to
economic recovery. However, as employment and inflation rates
remained at relatively low levels, the global economy will still
face challenges in the post-pandemic era.

Thanks to the effective containment of the disease, significant
foreign capital flew into Vietnam, and as a result the country’s
Gross Domestic Product (“GDP”) grew by 2.91% in 2020.
While this does represent the lowest growth in nearly 30 years,
it is still exceptional compared with other countries around the
world. Total imports and exports amounted to approximately
US$543.9 billion, with a trade surplus of approximately
US$19.1 billion, the highest since 2016. The US was the largest
export market, with exports to the country having reached
approximately US$76.4 billion, representing a year-on-year
increase of 24.5%. Foreign Direct Investment (“FDI”) totaled
approximately US$28.53 billion, which dropped by 25% from
2019. However, many companies invest in Vietnam to utilise
the benefits from joining Free Trade Agreement (“FTA"),
so foreign investments have increased in the country. The
exchange rate of the Vietnamese Dong against the US Dollar
remained stable throughout 2020, resulting in a controlled
inflation rate. The consumer price index (CPI) increased to
3.23% year-on-year, which was lower than its target 4%.
Benefited from the quick and effective containment of
COVID-19 and mechanisms and policies that are attractive to
foreign capital, its economic activities have returned to normal
and the market remains cautiously optimistic about its future
economic growth.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk IR (382 AR A S
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Following its success in containing the pandemic, Vietnam
became one of the fastest-growing economies in the world
in 2020. It attracted huge foreign investments and created
more opportunities and competition for local companies. The
Group’s main products, modified starch and maltose, benefited
from a slower rise in raw material costs, lower energy costs
and the continuous development of new functional products,
and thus recorded higher revenue and gross profit. As the
raw material costs surged and product prices fell due to keen
market competition, MSG and seasonings’ gross profit dropped
sharply. The selling prices and revenue of specialty chemicals
also decreased notably due to weaker demand and cut-throat
price competition amid COVID-19. Sales volume of coffee beans
and bulk food ingredients increased and recorded a surge in
revenue, thanks to the Group's effective sales strategy. The
Group's revenue amounted to US$360,741,000 for the vyear,
representing an increase of 0.8% or US$2,884,000, while
gross profit grew 9.0% or US$5,991,000 from the previous
year to US$72,556,000. The Group’s overall gross profit
margin climbed from 18.6% in 2019 to 20.1% in 2020. Due
to the impairment of assets of a subsidiary in Vietnam and
an impairment loss on goodwill of a subsidiary in Shanghai,
net profit of the Group amounted to US$16,677,000; 7.0%
or US$1,092,000 higher than the previous year. Net profit
attributable to owners was US$16,650,000, which was 7.0% or
US$1,087,000 higher year-on-year. Net profit margin increased
from 4.4% in 2019 to 4.6%, which was mainly attributable to
a slower rise in some of the raw material costs and rising sales
volumes of products with higher added value, so the Group’s
revenue and profit for the year increased.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The timely containment of COVID-19 by governments in 2021
will determine which countries are the winners and losers
economically in the coming year, which means vaccine rollout is
the key to economic recovery. While the new administration has
been inaugurated in the US, the tariffs are not expected to be
lifted in the short-term. As both government budget and GDP
within the Eurozone are in the red, quantitative easing policy
is likely to remain in place, and thus raise the uncertainties in
the economic growth. Despite a strong domestic market, the
PRC still relies heavily on export trade and needs to improve its
relationship with the US, and this will add uncertainties to its
economic growth. However, as one of the few countries which
has successfully managed to contain the disease, Vietnam's
long-term economic growth remains stable. Moreover, many
companies have chosen to relocate their production facilities
to Vietnam in response to the intensifying conflicts between
the PRC and the US. It also actively takes part in regional
economic and trade consolidation by signing free trade zone
agreements including FTA, the Comprehensive and Progressive
Agreement for Trans-Pacific Partnership (CPTPP) or the Regional
Comprehensive Economic Partnership (RCEP) with developed
economies such as the UK, EU and the PRC. It has also
accelerated the construction of infrastructure, nurtured skilled
labor, and simplified different procedures systematically, in a
bid to improve its business operating environment. In response
to the influence that the changing international economic
environment may have on the Group, Vedan will adhere to
its prudent operating strategy, strengthen the operation,
management and integration of its supply chain and seek to
raise production standards by working with strategic alliances
of its or other industries, in order to enhance the Group’s core
competitiveness and increase its value.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(1) Sales Analysis by Market (—) HBHEDR

Unit:US$'000 B FTETT
2020 2019 Difference
—ECEE —_T-NE Z82
Amount % Amount % Amount %
Country Ex &8 % &5 % B %
Vietnam e 170,547 47.3% 177,635 49.6% (7,088) (4.0%)
Japan Bz 61,195 17.0% 64,820 18.1% (3,625) (5.6%)
The PRC HE 47,016 13.0% 43,669 12.2% 3,347 7.7%
ASEAN REEX 26,112 7.2% 26,857 7.5% (745) (2.8%)
The US £H 26,717 7.4% 21,394 6.0% 5,323 24.9%
Others HA 29,154 8.1% 23,482 6.6% 5,672 24.2%
Total &t 360,741 100.0% 357,857 100.0% 2,884 0.8%
Vietnam 1. HEFS

Vietnam is the Group's largest market. In
2020, the Group's revenue was approximately
UsS$170,547,000, down slightly by 4.0% or
approximately US$7,088,000 when compared with
2019. The share of revenue from the Vietnam
market also decreased slightly to 47.3% of the
Group’s total revenue from 49.6% in 2019.
The decrease in revenue in Vietnam in the year
was mainly due to weaker demand for specialty
chemical products (soda) and the price competition,
which affected the overall sales volume and led
to a below satisfactory performance. During the
year, the Group adjusted the selling prices of MSG
and modified starch based on market changes,
strengthened inventory control and management,
thus improved the production efficiency. These
measures effectively boosted sales volume and
revenue. In addition, the Group adjusted the
product structure of fertilisers and feed products by
adding new high-end products, which stimulated
the ASP and revenue and improved profitability,
even though the overall sales volume dropped.

HMEAXEERSE—ATmH
FREWHNA170,547,000
ET O E2019F H LK
7,088,000 7T K-4.0% » &
W5 EEER2019F49. 6 % B E
47 3% c AFHWEHIHEE IR T
B ETERFMCES G 2
MEERELEFHAREEGR
BERE ENEEHEEN
BER L EERUNTEEA o BRAE
HEERMNERNRETIS
BILABE@E BICERFE
BB EWE W HET
E2HERZIER FRER
BRAOUESHEEHRAEIESR
EEREHE THHEEEHA
EWIER HAEBEHEEET
B BEMADEFRIE -

Annual Report 2020 £ %R



Management Discussion and Analysis

(1)

Sales Analysis by Market (continued)

2.

Japan

Japan remained the Group’s second largest
market. With the intensifying pandemic clouding
the country’s economic recovery, the MSG market
shrank, which dragged down the selling prices and
sales volume, causing a notable decline in revenue.
The modified starch segment recorded a lower sales
volume due to weaker market demand. However,
the Group continued to secure new customer
groups, promote product use in different industries,
develop products with higher added value and
expand production capacity to reduce product
costs, so profitability still grew substantially despite
an overall decline in revenue. In 2020, revenue
from the Japanese market fell approximately
US$3,625,000 or 5.6% from 2019 to approximately
US$61,195,000, and its contribution to the Group’s
total revenue decreased from 18.1% to 17.0%.

The PRC

In 2020, the Group’s revenue from the PRC market
was approximately US$47,016,000, which was
around US$3,347,000 or 7.7% more than 2019,
and its revenue contribution increased from 12.2%
to 13.0%. The obvious growth in revenue from the
PRC was a result of enhanced product mix and sales
channels of the trading products distributed by the
Group in the country, and further development and
cooperation in between the industrial chain, so the
growth strategy of leveraging its economies of scale
started to bear fruits and boosted the sales volume
and revenue considerably. However, revenue from
the MSG segment decreased as the Group had to
adjust selling prices due to market competition.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(1)

Sales Analysis by Market (continued)

4.

ASEAN Countries

The Group’s revenue from ASEAN countries
(excluding Vietnam) dropped by approximately
US$745,000 or 2.8% year-on-year to approximately
US$26,112,000, and its revenue contribution
decreased from 7.5% to 7.2%. During the year,
the decrease in revenue was mainly attributable
to weaker demand for modified starch, and
intensifying price competition in the market, which
resulted in a dramatically fall on both the sales
volume and revenue. Nevertheless, sales volume
and revenue of the MSG products improved
moderately, benefited from an effective sales
strategy. ASEAN countries remain the Group’s key
development market. With this in mind, the Group
aims to leverage its edges in the industry, expand
other businesses with its core products, establish
closer partnerships, and further develop sales
channels, so as to ultimately make breakthroughs in
sales.

The US

Revenue from the US market rose by approximately
US$5,323,000 or 24.9% year-on-year to
approximately US$26,717,000 during the vyear,
accounting for 7.4% of the Group’s total revenue,
an increase from the 6.0% of the previous year.
The remarkable growth in results was brought
about by the rising demand for organic maltose and
high-end modified starch products, which boosted
selling prices and sales volume, thus increasing its
revenue and profitability. As the Group has seized
key technologies and integrated the product value
chain, it will continue to develop more functional
products and enhance the competitiveness of
products, so the sales volume is likely to increase in
the future.

Other regions

Other markets mainly include Taiwan, Korea
and the European Union. Total revenue from the
markets for the year amounted to approximately
US$29,154,000, up 24.2% or approximately
US$5,672,000 from 2019. The share of the
revenue from other regions increased to 8.1% of
the Group’s total revenue compared with 6.6%
in 2019, mainly because the rising demand for
MSG, modified starch and feeds and fertilisers
significantly boosted revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Sales Analysis by Product

(Z) ERHEDN

Unit: US$'000 Bl F=E
2020 2019 Difference
—E_EE ZE-hE Z82
Amount % Amount % Amount %
I5H E % L % E %
MSG and seasonings  Bk#E+3B 0k} 232,093 64.3% 233,524 65.3% (1,431) (0.6%)
Modified starch & native 1 B i3+K A
starch & maltose B+ NS 63,262 17.6% 58,866 16.4% 4,396 7.5%
Specialty chemicals HEER 18,828 5.2% 24,682 6.9% (5,854) (23.7%)
Fertilisers and AR S A
feed products 24,966 6.9% 24,388 6.8% 578 2.4%
Others H 21,592 6.0% 16,397 4.6% 5,195 31.7%
&t 360,741 100.0% 357,857 100.0% 2,884 0.8%
MSG and seasonings 1. BkiE AR

During the year, revenue from MSG and seasonings
related products amounted to approximately
US$232,093,000, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 0.6% or approximately US$1,431,000
from 2019, mainly owing to stagnant economic
activities and weaker market demand in the
PRC, Japanese, US and European markets due to
COVID-19, as well as price competition from the
Group’s peers. Sales volume and revenue both
dropped slightly as a result. The sales performance
was better than the previous year in Vietnam,
ASEAN countries and other markets, but overall
revenue from MSG and seasonings related products
reduced and their contributions dropped from
65.3% in 2019 to 64.3%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(2)

Sales Analysis by Product (continued)

2.

Modified starch/Native starch and Maltose
Benefited from the stable price of its raw material,
cassava, in the year, coupled with an effective
strategic procurement plan and a rising demand
for organic products, the overall sales volume and
profitability of modified starch, native starch and
maltose products have surged, thus generating a
higher revenue of approximately US$63,262,000,
which was approximately US$4,396,000 or 7.5%
higher than 2019. The share of these products
increased from 16.4% to 17.6% of the Group's
total revenue. Affected by cut-throat price
competition in South East Asia, sales of modified
starch in the ASEAN market were dropped, but the
sales volume and revenue in the US surged due to
the rising demand for high-end products. Moreover,
maltose reported an increase in sales volume and
price in the US due to new customer groups and
new usages of organic maltose, resulting in an
increase in revenue from the product. It is worth
waiting to see how much the profitability will
benefit from the Group's efforts in developing
new products with higher added value and deepen
cooperation with leading companies around the
world.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(2)

Sales Analysis by Product (continued)

3.

Specialty chemicals

Specialty chemicals including hydrochloric acid,
soda and bleach are sold in the Vietnam market.
During the year, users of basic chemical products
were affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, leading
to a decline in demand from key industries and
hence the substantial price dropped in both
international and domestic markets and contributed
to intense price competition. Revenue from
specialty chemicals amounted to approximately
US$18,828,000 during the year, down by 23.7%
or around US$5,854,000 from 2019. This segment
accounted for 5.2% of the Group’s total revenue,
decreased from 6.9% in the previous year. In light
of the intensified low-price competition of soda
products during the year, selling prices of these
products were adjusted according to market trading
conditions, causing a drop in both sales volume
and selling price and resulting in a decline in results
performance. Hydrochloric acid also suffered from
keen competition from imported and local products.
Its selling price was adjusted based on production
volume and market demand. Although sales volume
and revenue increased, the product’s profit was still
lower than expected.

Fertilisers and feed products

Fertilisers recorded notable profit growth despite
the decrease in the sales volume of various products
during the year. This was mainly attributable to
the impact of the pandemic and the climate which
dampened overall market demand. As such, the
Group proactively searched for new customers and
improved product mix by launching new high-end
products in addition to implementing its strategy
to set higher prices, allowing it to achieve revenue
and profit growth. Meanwhile, the Group will
continue to promote high value-added special
fertilisers and develop new sales channels in the
future. Revenue from fertilisers and feed products
increased by US$578,000 or 2.4% year-on-year to
US$24,966,000 and its contribution to the Group’s
total revenue rose slightly from 6.8% to 6.9%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(2)

Sales Analysis by Product (continued)

5. Other products
Revenue of other products increased by
approximately US$5,195,000 or 31.7% from 2019
to approximately US$21,592,000 this year. This
segment’s contribution to the Group's total revenue
grew from 4.6% to 6.0% year-on-year, which was
mainly attributable to the strong sales volume of
coffee beans and bulk food ingredients distributed
in the PRC, as the Group strengthened the depth
and breadth of its products in this category in
order to meet different market demand for similar
products and enriched product offerings to drive
high revenue growth.

Cassava

In the production season of 2019/2020, operations
gradually resumed at plantations in main production
countries like Thailand, Vietnam and Cambodia.
However, the prolonged COVID-19 pandemic discouraged
consumption demand, and therefore the price increases
of cassava and starch raw materials slowed compared
with 2019. The cassava industry also continued to
experience various challenges such as pest problems,
competition from alternative agricultural products, drastic
climate change and changes in market size and supply
and demand, thus product prices remained volatile. The
Group will continue to consolidate its long-term strategic
partnership with suppliers, seize new sources of raw
materials in a timely manner and stabilise the supply
chain procurement cost.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Molasses

In the beginning of the 2019/2020 production season,
the output of major sugar production regions was
unsatisfactory and the production volume of molasses
also continued to drop, resulting in a shortage in supply
in the global market. However, the international sugar
market changed in the wake of the pandemic, when
it experienced an excess supply once again. The gap
between supply and demand caused the prices to rise
initially then drop and rebound again. In the 2020/2021
production season, the International Sugar Organisation
issued a report stating that, as the world enters the post-
pandemic era with strong recovery in consumption and
demand, the supply gap in the global molasses market is
expected to be approximately 3,500,000 tons. Although
Brazil and India, the two major production countries,
delivered higher molasses production volumes, these
countries remained affected by factors such as extreme
climate, surge in fuel and ethanol consumption and tight
animal feed markets which created a gloomy prospect for
the production volume, export and economic outlook of
molasses. The product’s price continued to stand firm.

In addition, since the beginning of 2020, Vietnam has
cancelled the import tariff quota for imported molasses
from ASEAN countries to Vietnam. This policy, plus
import tariffs on molasses of only 5%, has substantially
increased the number of imported molasses in 2020,
which have not only posed a threat to the interests of
local molasses plants and consumers in Vietnam, but also
directly affected the supply and costs associated with the
Group’s molasses procurement in Vietnam. The Group
will monitor the movement in the international molasses
market and actively look for alternative sugar sources in
order to secure a reliable raw material supply.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Energy

Global coal output saw a year-on-year decline of 6.5%
in 2020. Affected by the pandemic at the beginning of
the year, coal consumption was relatively low and the
recovery in coal production was faster than consumption.
The market's concern for coal demand caused coal prices
to decline. Later, the market reduced coal production and
supply, and the price of coal then stopped its downward
trend and began to rise. Global oil and natural gas prices
also dropped due to the pandemic and weak market
demand. Major energy suppliers around the world started
to downsize oil exploration. According to the forecast by
the International Energy Agency (“IEA"), global energy
demand in 2020 is expected to record a year-on-year
decline of 5%, and the rollouts of COVID-19 vaccines
will not be able to offset the large-scale negative impact
brought by the pandemic to global crude oil demand.
While international oil prices are expected to increase
in 2021 and the international natural gas market will
begin to recover, the pace of growth in various aspects
would still be below expectation. The greatest risk of
price fluctuations is another drop in demand and relative
increase in supply. The Group will pay close attention to
the changes in the energy industry so as to formulate
corresponding plans in advance.

Regarding the price of electricity, to help enterprises or
units navigate the difficult time under the pandemic, the
Vietnamese Government implemented the electricity price
concession policy in 2020 and continued to transform
and upgrade electricity engineering to meet the electricity
demand generated from the resumption of work and
production following the containment of the COVID-19
virus. The Group has been using the cogeneration power
generation system to ensure stable electricity supply.
As the Group mainly uses self-generated electricity, the
reduction in purchased electricity cost has had a limited
impact on it.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposits and structured bank deposits amounted to
US$72,158,000, an increase of US$12,758,000 or about
21.5% compared with the end of 2019. Short-term bank
borrowings increased year-on-year by US$11,695,000
or about 78.0% to US$26,694,000. Medium-to-long-
term bank borrowings decreased by US$5,460,000,
or approximately 21.7%, to US$19,665,000. Total
bank borrowings were US$46,359,000, an increase
of US$6,235,000 or approximately 15.5% compared
with the end of 2019. The rise in total bank borrowing
was mainly due to capital expenditure. 95.5% of the
total borrowings were denominated in US dollars and
the remaining 4.5% were denominated in New Taiwan
dollars. The proportions of short-term and medium-to-
long-term bank borrowings were 57.6% and 42.4%
respectively. Owing to the increased Vietnamese Dong
fixed deposits, net finance income for the year grew by
US$302,000 year-on-year.

Trade receivables were US$30,298,000, representing an
increase of US$787,000 or around 2.7% when compared
with the end of 2019. Around 68.1% of the trade
receivables were aged within 30 days. Total inventory was
Us$91,665,000, down by US$4,163,000 or around 4.3%
when compared with the end of 2019. The decrease in
inventory was mainly attributable to the reduction in the
Group’s raw materials during the period.

As a result of the slight increase in both total borrowings
and total equity, the Group's gearing ratio (total
borrowings to total equity ratio) was 16.4%, higher
than the 15.0% recorded at the end of 2019. With
cash on hand exceeding borrowings, net gearing ratio
(total borrowings less cash and deposits to total equity
ratio) was —-7.6%, lower than the -5.6% recorded in
2019. During the period, as the increase in short-term
borrowings increased the current liabilities, the Group's
current ratio decreased from 3.4 at the end of 2019 to
3.2, and quick ratio was at a similar level as the 1.8%
recorded at the end of 2019. The Group maintained a
healthy financial structure.

Capital expenditure

During the year, capital expenditure amounted to
approximately US$33,957,000, US$16,188,000 more
than the capital expenditure of US$17,769,000 recorded
in 2019. The increase in capital expenditure was
mainly due to the funds used in the specialty chemicals
production facility expansion project of the Group’s
Vietnam subsidiary and the gelatinised starch project of
the starch plant.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Exchange rate

Benefiting from the strong export recovery, Vietnam
achieved new high in foreign exchange reserves. The
ample foreign exchange reserves also served as a
foundation for maintaining the stability in the exchange
rate of the Vietnamese Dong. As the Vietnamese
Government refused to stimulate export by adopting a
currency depreciation approach, the performance of the
Vietnamese Dong was strong relative to major ASEAN
economies including Singapore, Indonesia and Thailand
amid the pandemic in 2020. The State Bank of Vietnam
announced that the Vietnamese Dong appreciated 0.1%
in 2020, from 23,155 Vietnamese Dong to US$1 at
the end of 2019 to 23,131 Vietnamese Dong to US$1
at the end of 2020. Vietnam's COVID-19 situation has
been brought under control, and that, coupled with the
country’s introduction of new Free Trade Agreements
signed with the EU and the UK has created important
drivers for its economic recovery. Moreover, Vietnam
has also enhanced various beneficial measures to
attract continuous foreign investment. Hence, various
sectors expect Vietnam to continue its export growth
momentum, maintain a trade surplus position and keep
inflation at a low level in 2021. The Vietnamese Dong
will continue to stay strong under a generally stable
macroeconomic environment.

The Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly responsible
for local sales with transactions denominated in RMB. In
2020, the exchange rate between the RMB and the US
dollar initially appreciated followed by a depreciation. In
early to mid-January, the signing of the first-phase trading
agreement between the PRC and the US drove the RMB
to a strong level of 6.84. In late January to May, the RMB
depreciated to 7.18 as a result of heightened risk aversion
in the global financial market and the US dollar liquidity
crisis due to the pandemic. Later, in June to December,
RMB continued to appreciate to 6.5 as affected by the
implementation of liquidity easing policies by central
banks in various countries. Experts expect the RMB to
maintain higher flexibility and a relatively stable trend
in the coming year compared with other key currencies,
despite its appreciation pressure. The Group will continue
to monitor the exchange rate trends between the RMB
and the US dollar going forward.

Earnings per share and dividends

Basic earnings per share were 1.09 US cents for the year.
The Board resolved to pay a final dividend of 0.462 US
cents per share. The dividend payout ratio was 60%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The world experienced substantial change in early 2020. The
global outbreak of COVID-19 forced countries to introduce
lockdown, quarantine and closure measures, which hit
economic activities hard and resulted in huge economic
recession. Although the development of vaccines and further
stimulus packages are expected to help support global
economic recovery in 2021, major negative factors such as
the rise in new strains of the virus, reactivation of lockdown
measures and uncertainty surrounding vaccine efficacy will
continue to bring challenges to various economies.

Although facing an unprecedented economic environment,
the Group has made some progress with initial achievements
in the development of regional markets. Looking ahead,
it will continue to improve the flexibility of the overall
operation, adjust business portfolios and models, strengthen
organisational operations to raise management efficiency,
actively develop new products, expand production scale, focus
on satisfying the demand from customers and consumers,
optimise cost structure and industry chain integration,
implement set action plans and create new growth drivers to
raise profitability. The main tasks and direction are listed below:

o Expand product lines and optimise product mix to
partially upgrade existing third-party products, launch a
series of extended commodities and develop more flavors.
The Group will also increase the proportion of highly
functional and high value-added products to enlarge
market share and boost profit from product sales.

° Actively expand new channels and new markets, identify
customers and consumers with the same product demand
in different markets, adjust product positioning and sales
methods, look for cooperative partners to expand market
size, strengthen brand positioning and competitive
advantages so as to improve the Group's results
performance.

° Continue to advance production technologies and
enhance production efficiency, develop customised
products, improve operational and management
techniques and utilise key technologies to enhance core
competitiveness so as to achieve the dual objectives of
raising quality and lowering costs.

° Capture the price trends of bulk raw materials, actively
look for alternative raw material solutions, maintain long-
term cooperative relations with domestic and overseas
suppliers and execute procurement strategies to ensure a
stable supply of raw materials.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

° Adopt the co-opetition strategy to boost product and
service value, use its production base in Vietnam to
actively develop the ASEAN market and the markets
which are signatories of the Free Trade Agreement (FTA),
Comprehensive and Progressive Agreement for Trans-
Pacific Partnership (CPTPP) and Regional Comprehensive
Economic Partnership (RCEP), offer mutual support within
the Group and realize core advantages to expand the
Group's business presence.

° Accelerate the formation of strategic alliance or
cooperation with different businesses to jointly develop
the markets through effective consolidation of resources
and strengthen its Research and Development (R&D)
function surpassing the technological threshold,
facilitating the upgrading and transformation of the
Group, in addition to the development of new products,
expansion of business scale and improvement of business
performance.

o Establish a strategic organisational structure and special
strategic teams to enhance the organisational efficiency
of all units, explore the products or distribution products
that match business needs, explore the manufacturers
that offer cost competitiveness, and develop products
that fit customer requirements in order to improve
revenue, profit and economies of scale.

o Expedite the introduction of an electronic process
and information system for the management and
application of big data, so as to obtain immediate
feedback information for optimising business processes,
understanding customers and developing better
corresponding strategies.

° Adopt financial management for ongoing management
of capital allocation, improve the operational efficiency of
assets and reduce risks of exchange rates, interest rates
and prices amidst the volatility of the global financial
market.

Looking ahead to 2021, the prospects of economic recovery
remain uncertain following another wave of the COVID-19
pandemic, which has hit many economies worldwide. The
Group's business operations will encounter significant
challenges. It will continue to develop new drivers for its
operations in the future, maintain competitiveness in the
industry by adapting its mindset to cope with the changes
in the environment, adopt a flexible business strategy,
and capitalise on the initial results from core technologies,
market penetration and sales channels and the exports and
development advantages of various products produced by
Vietnamese factories. The Group believes that by leveraging
its integrated operational strengths and building on its existing
business foundation, it will create a strong growth momentum.
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At the heart of Vedan International’s business success is
a group of core products with widespread applications and strong brand
recognition, one of the Group’s most important and well-guarded assets.
Its renowned “Vedan” brand MSG, for example, is considered
essential throughout the food processing industries across Asia for
its role in enhancing the flavours of a range of foodstuffs, and enjoys
a huge and constantly growing market throughout Vietnam,
the PRC, ASEAN countries, Japan and the United States.
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, 78, the Chairman and an Executive
Director of the Company, as well as the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee, has been a director of the Company since 2002. Mr.
YANG, Tou-Hsiung graduated from Taichung Min Der Commercial
Vocational High School. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung has approximately
58 years’ working experience in the MSG industry and is one of
the founders of the Taiwan Vedan Group. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung is
responsible for formulating our overall corporate strategy. Mr. YANG,
Tou-Hsiung is also a director of Vedan Vietnam, Taiwan Vedan, Billion
Power Limited and King International Limited. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung
is also an executive director of Taiwan Amino Acid Manufacturers
Association.

Mr. YANG, Cheng, 66, an Executive Director of the Company, has
been a director of the Company since 2002. Mr. YANG, Cheng had
approximately 45 years’ working experience in the MSG industry.
Mr. YANG, Cheng is responsible for formulating our business
development strategy. Mr. YANG, Cheng is also a director of Taiwan
Vedan, Billion Power Limited and King International Limited. Mr.
YANG, Cheng is presently the Chairman of Vedan Culture and
Education Foundation and Wanpao Asset Management Co., Ltd.,
the president of Fongle Real Estate Co., Ltd., the commissioner
of Industrial Development and Investment Promotion Committee
of Taichung City, the Executive director of New Taiyuan Urban
Development Association and the supervisor of Taichung Culture &
Education Foundation. Mr. YANG, Cheng obtained an EMBA Degree
from Xiamen University in the PRC in 2004.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang, 63, the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, has been a director of the Company since 2002. Mr.
YANG, Kun-Hsiang is responsible for overseeing the Group's
operations and strategic management. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang
obtained a master degree in agricultural chemistry from Meiji
University, Japan. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang has been involved in the
development of the business operations of Vedan Vietnam since
1991. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang is currently a director and President of
Vedan Vietnam and also a director of Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power
Limited and Concord Worldwide Holdings Ltd. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang
is also an executive director of Taiwan Amino Acid Manufacturers
Association and Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang has 34 years’ working
experience in the MSG industry.

Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen, 57, an Executive Director, has been a
director of the Company since 2002. He is also a director of
Vedan Vietnam, Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power Limited, High Capital
Investments Limited and Chairman of Shanghai Vedan and Xiamen
Vedan (formerly known as Xiamen Maotai). Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen
has approximately 27 years’ working experience in the MSG industry.
Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen is responsible for coordinating our purchase
activities. Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen obtained a bachelor degree in
mechanics in 1993 from Waseda University, Japan.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou, 61, an Executive Director, has been a director
of the Company since 2012. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou had approximately
39 years’ working experience in the food, beverage and consumer
products industry. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou is a director and Vice
President of Taiwan Vedan and is also a director of Vedan Vietnam,
Shanghai Vedan, Xiamen Vedan (formerly known as Xiamen Maotai)
and Concord Worldwide Holdings Ltd. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou also
holds directorship in Ve Wong Corporation (a company listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) since 28 June 2006.
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, 67, a Non-executive Director, a member
of the Remuneration Committee, has been a director of the Company
since 2002. Mr. HUANG is also the Vice President of Taiwan Vedan.
Mr. HUANG graduated from the department of accounting and
statistics of the National Taichung Commercial College, Taiwan
in 1974. Mr. HUANG has approximately 43 years’ experience in
administration and finance.

Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng, 60, a Non-executive Director, has been a
director of the Company since 2006. Mr. CHOU is the Supervisor of
Taiwan Vedan and an Independent Non-executive Director of Shin-
Kuen Plastics Co., Ltd. (a publicly-traded company on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation). Mr. CHOU was the founder member
of Legalway Law Firm, the director and legal consultant of Wincome
Incorporation and a supervisor of Shih-Kuen Plastics Co., Ltd. (a
publicly-traded company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation).
He has over 21 years of experience in the legal industry. Mr. CHOU
obtained his Bachelor of Law degree from Soochow University, Master
of Law degree from East China University of Political Science and Law
and Doctorate of Law degree from Peking University.

Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, 59, an Independent Non-executive Director
and the Chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of each of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee, has been a
director of the Company since 2002. Mr. CHAO obtained a bachelor
degree in law in 1984 and a master degree in law from Soochow
University, Taiwan in 1986 and a master degree in law from the
University of Houston in 1992. Mr. CHAO is an executive partner of
Jurist Law Offices, a law firm in Taiwan. Mr. CHAO is also a director
of Hua Yu Lien Development Co., Ltd (a company listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation, formerly known as Fui Industrial Co.,
Ltd. and was renamed on 19 June 2013) and the Independent Non-
executive Director of Force-MOS Technology Co., Ltd (an emerging-
stock company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation). Mr.
CHAO has approximately 31 years’ experience in his practice.

Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, 60, an Independent Non-executive Director,
a member of each of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee, as well as the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, has been a director of the Company since 2004. Mr.
KO graduated with a Bachelor of Business Degree from Feng Chia
University, Taiwan, and subsequently obtained a Master of Science
Degree in Accounting from the University of Delaware, USA. Mr.
KO has been the executive partner of Weyong International CPAs
& Co., Certified Public Accountants in Taiwan since 2000. Mr. KO
is also the Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
the Remuneration Committee of Kunyue Development Co., Ltd. (a
publicly-traded company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation).
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, 61, an Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee, has been a director of
the Company since 2008. Mr. CHEN, holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the Eastern lllinois State University, and
a Bachelor Degree from the National Taiwan University. Mr. CHEN
is presently the Chairman of Ray Wing Research and Investment
Corporation and also a supervisor of Forcecon Tech. Co., Ltd., the
Independent Non-executive Director of Pili International Multimedia
Co.,Ltd. (a publicly-traded Company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation). Mr. CHEN has more than 33 years of experience in
securities business in Taiwan and was the Vice Chairman and General
Manager of Yuanta Securities Investment Consulting Co., Ltd,. the
Chairman of Concord Capital Management Corp. and the Senior Vice
President of Concord Securities Co., Ltd.

Mr. HUANG, Chung-Fong, aged 65, an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee, has been a director
of the Company since 2018. Mr. HUANG holds a bachelor’s degree
in electrophysics and a master’s degree in management science from
National Chiao Tung University in Taiwan. Mr. HUANG is currently
a technical expert in the rank of adjunct associate professor at the
department of transportation & logistics management of National
Chiao Tung University in Taiwan. He is also the president of Citpo
Technologies Inc. Mr. HUANG was the founder secretary general of
Chinese Professional Management Association of Hsinchu, Taiwan
and was the chairman of Provision International Inc. and Ecom
Software Inc. Mr. HUANG was the president of Taiwan Regional
Operations of Acer Inc. and Lottery Technology Service Corporation.
Mr. HUANG was the vice president of Quality Assurance, ITGO,
Acer Inc. Mr. HUANG was also an adjunct assistant professor in the
Department of Industrial Engineering and Management of National
Chiao Tung University in Taiwan.

The relationships of the following directors are as follows:

- Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng are brothers.

- Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang and Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou are brothers.
- Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng are cousins of Mr.

YANG, Kun-Hsiang, Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou, as well as Mr. YANG,
Chen-Wen.
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

Mr. NI, Chih-Hao, 55, the Group’s Chief Financial Officer and
the Executive Vice President of Vedan Vietnam and Financial Vice
President, is responsible for the finance functions of the Group.
Mr. NI graduated from University of Oregon, major in finance and
marketing, and holds a master degree in business administration from
Tunghai University, Taiwan. Mr. NI joined Vedan Group in 1993, and
has been the vice manager of business and foreign trade department
of Vedan Vietnam, special assistant to the chairman, senior manager
of financial department, project manager of finance department of
Taiwan Vedan as well as the manager of the Group's Taiwan branch.
Mr. NI has full qualification in finance, marketing and executive
administration, and has accumulated approximately 28 years of
working experience.

Mr. CHAO, Wen-Jui, 57, general plant manager of the production
management department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for
managing and overseeing all production departments of the
company. Mr. CHAO graduated from National Tsing Hua University
with a master degree in chemistry. Mr. CHAO joined Taiwan Vedan
in 1987, and was the vice plant manager of a recycle plant and
the manager of a MSG plant. He joined Vedan Vietnam in 2009
as the vice general plant manager of the production management
department. Mr. CHAO has over 31 years of working experience in
the MSG and food additive industry.

Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang, 59, Vice President of specialty chemicals
business department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for the
marketing planning and sales management of the company’s
specialty chemicals products. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang graduated from
National Taiwan University, major in economics. Mr. YANG, Tzu-
Chang joined Taiwan Vedan in 1991 as the assistant manager of
international trading department. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang joined Vedan
Vietnam in 1996, and was the manager of amino acid business
division and marketing planning division. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang has
over 30 years of sales management experience in the food production
industry.

Mr. KO, Chung-Chih, 58, Vice President of Vedan Vietnam, is
responsible for planning the overall management system and
overseeing the administration of the company. Mr. KO holds a master
degree in management from National University of Kaohsiung. Mr.
KO joined Taiwan Vedan in 1988, and had served as the supervisor
of the finance department. He joined Vedan Vietnam in 1991 as the
assistant manager of the finance department, and was subsequently
promoted to senior manager of the General Manager Office,
Corporate Administration Management Division. Mr. KO has 32 years
of working experience in finance and administration.
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

Mr. ZHUANG, Kuixing, 53, General Manager of the Group in
Chinese mainland region. Mr. ZHUANG graduated from Zhi-Ren
School of General Education. He joined Vedan Taiwan in 1997
and had acted as Manager of the Consumer Goods Division and
Assistant Vice President to the Agent Products Division successively.
Mr. ZHUANG has rich agency sales experience in international brands
such as Kinmen Kaoliang Liquor, SPEY Whiskey, Gekkeikan Sake, and
Cha Cha Spiced Sunflower Seeds. Mr. ZHUANG has over 25 years’
profound sales, operational, and management experience in the food
industry.

Mr. YANG, Meng-Ta, 47, senior manager of the Group’s Taiwan
Branch, is responsible for overseeing various aspects of the finance,
business and administrative function of the company. Mr. YANG,
Meng-Ta graduated from National Taiwan University with a bachelor
degree in civil engineering, and holds a master degree in civil
engineering from Pennsylvania State University. Mr. YANG, Meng-
Ta is also the director of Vedan Vietnam, Shanghai Vedan and
Xiamen Maotai. Mr. YANG, Meng-Ta joined Taiwan Vedan in 2001,
and was the supervisor of consumer product business department,
international trade department and finance department. He was
subsequently promoted to the senior manager of Taiwan branch. Mr.
YANG, Meng-Ta has accumulated extensive experience during his
service in various departments in the food production industry, and
has 20 years of management experience.

Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella, 45, is a Director, Corporate Services
of Tricor Services Limited ("Tricor”), a global professional services
provider specializing in integrated Business, Corporate and Investor
Services. Ms. WONG has over 22 years of experience in the corporate
secretarial field and has been providing professional corporate
services to Hong Kong listed companies as well as multinational,
private and offshore companies. Ms. WONG is a Chartered Secretary
and a Fellow of both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries (“HKICS”) and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators (“ICSA") in the United Kingdom. Ms. WONG
is a holder of the Practitioner’'s Endorsement from HKICS. (Note:
The Company has engaged Tricor as external service provider and
appointed Ms. WONG as the Company’s company secretary since 1
April 2012.)
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Corporate Governance Report

The Group always believes that high-level corporate governance
standards and a sound and efficient board of directors are the
crucial foundation for the assurance of the Company's effective
operation and sustainable development. In addition to mitigating
operational risks, pursuing performance excellence and enhancement
of the shareholders’ interests by making significant efforts through
continuous improvement of the corporate governance and internal
monitoring system, we also fulfill the environmental and social
responsibility of the Group in the ordinary course of business, which
has become a power for the advancement of society.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are disclosed based
on the principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
"CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). The Group
commits to maintaining and ensuring a high level of corporate
governance standards and continuously reviews and improves our
corporate governance and internal controls practices, and the Board
endeavors to take the necessary actions to ensure the compliance
with the provisions of the CG Code introduced by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

The positions of Chairman of the Board and CEO are held by Mr,
YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang respectively. The
Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading the Board in
establishing and monitoring the implementation of strategies and
plans to create values for shareholders.

The CEO is responsible for managing the operation of the Group’s
businesses, proposing strategies to the Board and the effective
implementation of the strategies and policies adopted by the Board.

As of 31 December 2020, there were 11 members on the Board,
which are the Chairman, the CEO, 3 other Executive Directors, 2
Non-executive Directors (“NED"”) and 4 Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INEDs").
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The INEDs are considered by the Board to be independent of the
management and free of any relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgments. The
Board considered that each of the INEDs brings his own relevant
expertise to the Board and its deliberations. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs
with one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise and the
requirement of having sufficient number of INEDs representing one-
third of the Board. None of the INEDs has any business or financial
interests with the Group nor has any relationship with other directors
and confirmed their independence to the Group.

The relationships between some members of the Board are disclosed
under “Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company
Secretary” on page 34.

The Board met regularly during the year. The Board's primary
function is to set and review the overall strategic development of
the Group and to oversee the achievement of the plans to enhance
shareholders’ value. Daily operational decisions are delegated to the
Executive Directors. The Board met four times during the year. The
NED and INEDs may take independent professional advice at the
Group's expense in carrying out their functions.

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company's affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and
providing a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent
judgment on corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances for discharging their duties to the
Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

The Group has established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference as suggested under the former Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the then Listing
Rules. The relevant terms of reference was revised on 25 December
2018 to comply with the existing Listing Rule. The Audit Committee
comprises Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr. CHEN, Joen-
Ray and Mr. HUANG, Chung-Fong, all Independent Non-executive
Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. CHAO, Pei-
Hong. Each member brings to the Committee his valuable experience
in reviewing financial statements and evaluating significant control
and financial issues of the Group who among themselves possess
a wealth of management experience in the accounting profession,
commercial and legal sectors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors, and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and
annual financial results and reports in respect of the year ended
31 December 2020 and significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, scope of work and appointment of external auditors,
connected transactions and arrangements for employees to raise, in
confidence, concerns about possible improprieties.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr.
CHAOQ Pei-Hong, Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, the Independent Non-executive
Directors, and Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, the Non-executive Director.
The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. KO, Jim-Chen.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
determining/reviewing and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management, the remuneration policy and structure for
all directors and senior management; and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met once to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Company, and the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and senior management and other related
matters.

Senior Management remuneration by band are set out in Note 32 to
the accounts.

The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung,
Executive Director, Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen and
Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, the Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of directors, and assessing the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Board adopted the board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) in accordance with the requirement set out in the CG Code.
Such policy aims to set out the approach towards achieving diversity
on the Board.

In assessing the Board composition and recommending candidates
of directors to the Board, the Nomination Committee would
consider a number of perspectives as set out in the Board Diversity
Policy, including but not limited to skills, regional and professional
experience, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, gender
and other characteristics.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk IR (382 AR A S

FMEEENEBEBIIFNTESTERRL
E HEREE RIUWEERFHPITESS
RREL - HFMEEENEFEANEREE -

FNEEENTIENEAEETE R ER
TESEhEREBAENFMTE 2RES
REBRERANENFINBERRREBIL I EE
FEREHERR  RRIUEAEFUFIEFH
MEBERRRE EtMEFRBEEEFEHEARSE
MBMRALI2ABEEHASHHM -

HWNEZEGERT —RNEH UBRELTH
MERRRE URRTEEREREEAR
NHEMNSEREMEFREE TMIEtAESEE
RHEBSR-

BEENS T EREEASHESBRNEENE
320

RLZECNEBERATESHHEBELE B
MFMITEFHBRAE HEEEERRSE
ML - REEZEENEFERIBEBRE

RAZEENIENEOERNEFEENA
B HERBRERGKREEESTNHEBER
MEFZARBEIFEMNEFTSREEESR
B U R B IFRITESENE It -

EFEER(EEERTRD ZEXRRKMNEFTS
MEZTIEBR -ARBRSEIHRERES
L= S (n: PR

RN EFENERARERHREARHERERS
TEFENRER RLEZETREREZEINA
REFEMESTEHERNEER  8F (EFR
) REEHE  FXEER XEREBFER K
B MR REAMMSE -



Corporate Governance Report

The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors, and to consider the
qualifications of the retiring directors standing for election at the
Annual General Meeting.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The Board reviewed the
Company's corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance with the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code”) and Written Employee Guidelines, and the
Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

The principal businesses of the Group are manufacturing, R&D and
sales, of which the Group has not engaged in any high-risk and high-
leveraged investment. The members of the Board and the senior
management have not engaged in any conduct of business which is
beyond the risk acceptance level of the Company.

The Board of the Group oversees the Company to establish an
appropriate and effective risk management mechanism and internal
control system. The Audit Committee of the Board assists the Board
to oversee the management of existing or potential risks in the
Company. The management of the Company constantly supervises
risks and the implementation of the internal control system to
guarantee its effectiveness.

According to the characteristics of the industry in which the Group
operates, a designated internal audit department and personnel are
set up and appointed in each operating region with an operating
cycle of control customised for the regions to carry out regular
audit based on an annual plan and professional division of labour.
Analysis on the seriousness and deficiency rate of each operational
risk will be made, the results of which will be promptly reported to
the management of the Company and subsequent improvements
will be followed up. In addition to the monthly submission of audit
reports to the Audit Committee for review, the audit department also
presents major audit findings to the Board for examinations by the
members of the Board in order to effectively mitigate the operational
risks of the Group.
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The major scopes of work of the risk management and internal
controls of the Group are summarised as follows:

o Financial and financing cycle management — Alleviate risks
through stringent internal controls and legitimate taxation
planning applicable locally, credit risk management and control,
evaluation and prediction of factors attributing to financial
crisis; regularly assess capital position in markets, changes in
exchange rates and bank interest rates, and prudently manage
the fund allocation of the Company.

o Sales and payment collection cycle management — Oversee the
due execution of the procedures in the sales business, including
orders, credit provision, delivery, payment collection or refund
and customer complaints so as to minimise the risks in relation
to operating revenue.

o Procurement and payment cycle management — Perform
internal controls on operating procedures in relation to
supplier management, purchase requisition, price negotiation,
contracting, quality check for purchased products or product
returns, verification on payment or purchase discounts in order
to ensure the openness, fairness and incorruptibility of the
procurement system.

o Investment cycle management — The Group has established
the “Investment Review Board” to rigourously evaluate mid-
to-long-term investment or the subject matters of strategic
alliance and to timely deal with investment projects.

o Information risk management — Maintain the soundness of the
information management system of the Company, manage
and safeguard the security of network information and
swiftly provide the management with effective information on
operational management.

o Legal affairs, intellectual property rights and R&D cycle
management — The legal affairs department of the Group
collaborates with professional legal counsels to achieve risk
mitigation, transfer or aversion and to secure law compliance
by offering education, training and consultation in relation
to indentures, product liabilities, legal disputes and litigation,
patents, trademarks, intellectual property rights and other
relevant matters.
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Environmental protection management for production cycle:
Implement all environmental protection stipulations and plans
in accordance with the local regulatory requirements of the
operating regions; and establish special units to plan, execute,
supervise and track all environmental protection measures in
order to assure the fulfillment of environmental protection
responsibility.

Occupational safety and hygiene management for production
cycle — Conduct review and risk analysis on the detrimental
level of abnormal environmental safety and hygiene incidents;
and require the relevant departments of the plants to formulate
improvement measures.
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The main courses of study taken by finance personnel of the Group

stationed in the plant site in Vietnam in 2020 are as follows: FaTF

Date of Course

Name of Course

FEEUPBRERFAENR2020E T EEEE

Hour of Study

SRR HIEHTE EERE

2020/05/23 Regulations for Loan Procedures 2
ERIEERE

2020/05/28 Measure on Receipts and Payments through Bank 2
BIBIRITW - ITRIEERE

2020/05/30 Training Courses on Personal Income Tax 2
BAFERBBINRRRE

2020/06/25 Introduction to the New Requirements of Legal Provisions 2
NEBERIRHRTE

2020/08/29 Introduction of Method for Establishing Cost Attachment 2
TARBIL AR5 0%

2020/09/25 Fixed Assets Management 2
EEEEER

2020/11/27 Calculation of Cost and Financial Report in SAP System 2

The main courses of study taken by finance personnel of the Group

ESAPRM T ER T RMBHREHIFE

stationed in the plant site in the PRC in 2020 are as follows: T

Date of Course

Name of Course

FEETEBREMHASNR2020F T REER

Hour of Study

EERRE RERE EERH

2020/03/20 The Audit of the Monetary Fund 2
GEEE

2020/07/03 Promotion of Risk Prevention of the Corporate Income Tax Inspection 2
TEMERNBET AR

2020/09/16 The issues of the Inclusive Tax Deduction and Exemption policies for 3
Enterprise
TEEEERRBREABE

2020/12/16 Continuous Education on Accounting in Songjiang District 24

WIBEEERS
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During the year under review, all Directors have reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group, including
the resources on accounting and financial reporting functions of the
Company, the qualification and experience of staff members and
the training programmes participated by the staff members and the
relevant budgets. The Board considered the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group are adequate and effective.
The Group will, from time to time, review its risk management and
internal control system in order to optimise its effectiveness and
in turn heighten the overall corporate governance standard of the
Group.
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Attendance/Number of Meeting

HEE/eERY
Audit Remuneration Nomination  Annual General

Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting

B3g BitZ8g iWzEg REZEET  RRBAEAE
Executive Directors BTESR
YANG, Tou-Hsiung (Chairman) GElE (28 414 NAFER NATER 101 0
YANG, Cheng BE 24 NAF @R NARER NARER 0
YANG, Kun-Hsiang (C£0) B (THE%) 414 NATER N/AT R NAT R 11
YANG, Chen-Wen BRX 4/4 NATIE NATRER NAFREH 0
YANG, Kun-Chou B 3/4 NATIE NAREH NATREH 0/
Non-executive Directors FRTES
HUANG, Ching-Jung BRE 4/4 NATIE 1 NARER 0
CHOU, Szu-Cheng AHE 4/4 NAT I NATRER NAFREH 0
Independent Non-executive BUERTES

Directors

CHAQ, Pei-Hong HER 414 ) 10 0 0/
KO, Jim-Chen 1t 4/4 2 1n 101 111
CHEN, Joen-Ray BB IE 4/4 2 17 10 0
HUANG, Chung-Fong BiER 4/4 2 NAREA NARER 0/
Notes: Mk :

Mr. YANG, Cheng authorized Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung to exercise the voting
right on the third, fourth board meeting. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou authorized Mr.
YANG, Kun-Hsiang to exercise the voting right on the second board meeting.

In respect of code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors of the
Company have developed and refreshed their knowledge and skills by
reading books and articles relating to legal and regulatory updates.

All Directors have already provided the training records for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to the company secretary.
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Corporate Governance Report

During the reporting period, the Company has complied with the
code provisions as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, with
the exception of code provision E.1.2.

In respect of code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. YANG,
Tou-Hsiung, the Chairman of the Board was not able to attend the
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 19 May 2020 due
to business commitments.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that Non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election,
whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors appointed to
fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after appointment and that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Each of the
Non-Executive Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific
term of 1 year or 3 years, where Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung and Mr.
CHAO, Pei-Hong were appointed for a term of 1 year and Mr. CHOU,
Szu-Cheng, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray and Mr. HUANG,
Chung-Fong were appointed for a term of 3 years. Each of the
Non-Executive Directors of the Company is subject to retirement by
rotation once every three years.

BRF AR SCE 1 2R 290 IR EHARE > R A F
—HET LEHRAMER14FTEZ FRMES -

MAEEEBTR) ZTFREXE 1218 EFF
TEEREERRAFAE -EFFTIFIHEE
REREBRRRRHEARBDN _ZE_FF
ERTABETZREBERG -

RIEETHRANE3 136 AR EBEBULIE
HITESHIHEBUM -ARBDRRMAEBIL
FRTEFHIR/UN -

EEEBTRZFRIMREXA 4 1FSTRIEATT
EERUREARESME LARREE MT
AMRXXA.4 2185783 FRE SRR IS EREE
ZAENEFANEZEIREEARRAT LER
RERESR MEBRLEF (BEUFEETHRZEN
ERRVABZFRERE—R-ERAEE
IIRMITEFHAURERER (1 EH3F) HE>
EREREAERBEEREENETHA—F
MABRELE - WEEEE RAKTERE
EREENERR=ZF - AREEZFNTES
AB=FRERE R
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor. During the year under
review, the Group is required to pay approximately US$353,000
and US$4,000 to the external auditor for their audit and non-audit
services, respectively.

The Directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the Company’s accounts for the year ended 31 December
2020. The reporting responsibilities of the independent auditor of the
Company on the financial statements are set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 109 to 116.

Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella of Tricor Services Limited, external
service provider, has been engaged by the Company as its company
secretary. Its primary contact person at the Company is Mr. NI, Chih-
Hao, Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

Ms. WONG has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Corporate Governance Report

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholders’
meetings, including the election of individual directors. All resolutions
put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
after each shareholders’ meeting.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends. The Company do not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio. Depending on the financial conditions of the Group
and the conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy,
dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the Board during
a financial year and any final dividend for a financial year will be
subject to the shareholders’ approval.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address:  Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong

(with attention to Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella,
Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2528 3158

Email: vdi@vedaninternational.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

PAERERRNA D REN RREAG L&
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(852) 2528 3158
vdi@vedaninternational.com
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The COP26 UN climate change conference has been postponed to
2021 due to the global spread of COVID-19 in 2020. The COP Bureau
of the UNFCCC (United Nations Framework Convention on Climate
Change) states that the world is currently facing an unprecedented
global challenge for the new crown epidemic, but the climate
change is the biggest threat facing humanity over the long term. In
particular the scientific evidence shows that during the recovery from
the COVID crisis, the extreme weather has not changed, greenhouse
gases in the Earth’s atmosphere hit a record high this year and
the impact is expanding, which may further aggravate the socio-
economic recession caused by the epidemic. Therefore, despite the
postponement of COP26, the members of the UNFCCC will continue
working tirelessly with all involved to increase climate ambition, build
resilience and lower emissions to reduce the impact of the climate
crisis on the lives and livelihoods.

As an international corporate citizen, Vedan International Group
pays constant attention to the issue relating to climate change
and supports the civil notion of environmental protection, energy
conservation and carbon reduction and earth preservation with
practical actions. For many years, the Group has complied with
the national standards and regulations applicable to all production
bases and has formulated environmental policy which includes
environmental protection in daily management with all-staff
education in daily operation concerning energy conservation in
respect of self-initiated carbon reduction and energy efficiency
enhancement while participating in ecology-care activities and
proactively developing green economy with significant importance
attached to comprehensive development of corporate social
responsibility in hope to maximise its local corporate influence and
make valuable contribution to the local environmental protection.

Vedan International Group has established the “Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee”. The committee members practically
promote environmental education with combination of regional
production and sales strategy and the concept of environmental
protection and earth preservation and implements sustainable
environment plans with regular meetings to review the achievements
under the respective indicators. In this report, the Group truthfully
discloses the implementation of CSR. In 2020, the Group has a
positive and significant performance in emissions management
and energy consumption management. In the future, the Group
will continue to implement the corporate governance policy in
accordance with the laws and strive to achieve the most outstanding
operating efficiency of the Group with an aim to realise mutual
benefit with the environment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

To uphold the mission of sustainable operation, corporate social
responsibility of the Vedan International Group entails not only
environmental protection and energy conservation education,
but also maintenance of sound corporate governance and risk
management, provision employees with a safe and healthy working
environment where they can fully exploit their potentials, and balance
of the interests of employees, customers, supply chain, investors
and the overall development of the community. We undertake to
make our best endeavour to constantly contribute to economic
development, environmental protection for the earth and society
through good and solid corporate governance.

RREKBEEENED  EEHEETHKRAR
REBMS FTRERERE ERHMEH
Bz UEERE2NABAEEREREE-
REBT—EAZ2RBRASUROCEZFENN
ITFRGE UTHREST -FA HEE - REA
RitEERZERZHHMNE  RMRERTE
EERFEBENTEEL DBELENRE:
EREBELAMIKRBEFREBREANHE -

The Vietnam Plant (Primary Production Base) Promoted Park-like Construction in

Factory Areas with Colossal Tree Plantings to Conserve the Ecology

TELEEMBRRERTIRARC AEEMREBALR

This report has been prepared in compliance with the requirements
of the Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Reporting
Guide under Appendix 27 and the principles of the CG Code under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
for the purposes of general disclosure responsibilities. The period and
areas covered by this report are as follows:

FTREGKRBE BB AR5 AT LA R BII &
“HEtRERE HERERKREES) KM
BHI(EEEATR) ZRABIT—RIRER
FoAREREHERBIBUT :

Period covered

From 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020

2 B 75702020418 1H £2020%12831H
Areas covered The production bases in Vietnam and China and the business footholds of
HE branches in Taiwan and Cambodia covered by Vedan International Group

KA ERRE ERE R PR EEE

CBEDRERFEERD N EEEM
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation

The Group upholds the concept of “care for environment and
sustainable operation” and proactively carries out the efficiency
management of water resources, carbon reduction management
and waste management, while initiating energy management
system and continuous management of power consumption, and
adopting energy-saving electrical equipment to enhance the energy
conservation performance in the offices, as well as promoting
parklike construction in factory areas with colossal tree plantings to
conserve the ecology.

In respect of environmental protection and energy conservation, the
Group undertakes to carry out the following actions:

(1) Emission management — Striving to reduce discharge of
wastewater, exhaust gas and waste

o Employee safety, environmental protection and resource
conservation are the prime principles of all operating
activities of the Group. In the ordinary course of business,
the Group shall, as long as technically practicable, provide
treatment for, and secure the reduction of, emission
of exhaust gas, wastewater and waste, and achieve or
overachieve the provisions of the prevailing national laws
of the places where its production bases are located and
the requirements of internal standards.

° The Group regularly reviews the progress and
effectiveness of each resources management plan every
year and improves the deficiencies to ensure that there is
no substantial impact on the surrounding environment in
the factory areas.

. In 2020, the emission standard of each emission of the
Group was in line with the requirement of environmental
impact assessment for all production bases. The Vietnam
plant (primary production base of the Group) reformed
the concentration system in production plants in 2020
for the purpose of reducing the consumption of steam
energy. In addition, enhancing the connection of various
wastewater treatment systems and the collection of
various types of wastewater is also expected to achieve
better water pollution prevention and pollution-free
discharge.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation

(continued)

B BEIRE KEKE (B

(1) Emission management - Striving to reduce discharge of (1)
wastewater, exhaust gas and waste (continued)

o According to the statistics, the types of emissions

FRMER-SHRLVEK BEREER

Mz B (48)

o BT 200E T EREEEBRTE

produced in the production process of the primary plants ZHBRYEEREESFIWT -
in 2020 and the relevant data are set out below:
2019 2020 Difference Unit

Type of emissions HenEs 20194 2020 ER B

Total volume of wastewater B E (L AK) 5.57 4.95 -11.13% m3/ton
discharged (m?)/product JERER (A Vb VN
output (ton)

Wastewater - Chemical Oxygen BEk—1EBEEE(COD) (AF) 8.69 8.59 -1.15% kg/ton
Demand (COD) (kg)/product /EREE (AH) NN
output (ton)

Air emission ~ Sulphur oxides (SOx) ERHR-RAESOx (AF) 5.18 4.85 -6.37% kg/ton
(kg)/product output (ton) /EREE (AH) NN

Air emission - Nitrogen oxides (NOx) | ZEREF—AELYINOX (AFT) 3.65 4.96 35.89% kg/ton
(kg)/product output (ton) /EREE (AH) NN

Total greenhouse gas emission BERBAGNZE 854,248.28 840,900.44 -1.56% ton COze

YNIN:

Total emission intensity of RERBEHNERE 134 1.40 4.48% | ton COaefton
greenhouse gas NN

Total hazardous waste BEBENEE 73,022.48 59,779.06 -18.14% kg AF

Total non-hazardous waste BREEEVRE 42,354,830 36,751,103 -13.23% kg Af

Hazardous waste intensity BEBENERE 0.11 0.10 -9.09% kg/ton
(kg/ton product output) R/ AEERES) NN

Non-hazardous waste intensity BEBENERE 66.56 60.98 -8.38% kg/ton
(kg/ton product output) R/ AEERES) NN
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation

(continued)

(1) Emission management — Striving to reduce discharge of (1)
wastewater, exhaust gas and waste (continued)

Explanations on major differences in 2020 as compared to

B BEIRIE KEEE (B

FRMER-SHRLVEK BEREER
Mz HE (48)

2020 HE20190F 2 F EEERA ©

2019:
Difference
Type of emissions HER #£E | Explanation for difference EEHH
Total volume of wastewater BEKEBHHE (LHK) -11.13% | In 2019, the domestic wastewater (including | 2019E#2AFITHE  EEEBZE
discharged (m?)/product /EREE (A) toilet wastewater, cleaning and bathing EEK (BERMEK B BAR
output (ton) wastewater) from the administrative and K RRMEESKEERER
production areas of the Company was all

piped to the wastewater treatment plant for

treatment.

In 2020, we exercised tighter control over WNFERRENFRKERSEA

water usage across the Group in addition to | EEKRE AL LREME HOEK

the launch of the high ammonia nitrogen HHE [RFE2020F5HBZHDER

wastewater denitrification system, which 2o

helped effectively reduce the wastewater

discharge, and contributed to a significant

reduction in emissions in 2020.

Air emission - Nitrogen oxides ERAR-FRYINOK 35.89% | 2020 witnessed an increase in NO 2000ENOGRER2019ENOGREE
(NOX) (kg)/product (AF) /EREE concentration as compared with 2019: m:
output (ton) () 1. The abnormal operation of the boilers 1. F2020%5~7B AR A B HBIE
at the thermal power station of our REBERE ERERERHEK
Vietnam plant from May to July 2020 REE.
resulted in unstable emission from the
chimney.

2. Our use of coal in 2020 resulted in 2. 2020 ERE A E M A H2019
higher NOX density in the air emission B EEMEERERFLRE
even after treatment, however, we stil ZNOXB L HB% BHME RN
managed to meet the local emission AHREMHNES 2EERY
standards in Vietnam, and passed their ERER - BRATHRERELS
tests during the year. Up till now, the REEMELREE-
boilers at the thermal power station
have been repaired and resumed normal
operation.

Total emission intensity of RERBRHRERE 4.48% | The boilers at the thermal power station R20205F5~7F ME A MR ER

greenhouse gas

of our Vietnam plant were not running
normally from May to July 2020, as a result,
the Company used heavy oil boilers and gas
boilers to ensure continuous production.
Such adjustment increased the use of heavy
oil and natural gas, and thus affected total
greenhouse gas emissions. Up till now,

the boilers at the thermal power station
have been repaired and resumed normal
operation.

BERE ARRLEER HPER
BERRHRD LABRE ERE
RERARE KAREN MR
EREAINE BAAEERERR
RREEMELRER.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation % BERIR KELE (@
(continued)

(2) Resources usage management - Promoting energy 2 BREHAEE-HEIHERE BREK
conservation, consumption reduction, recycle and reuse of BAAE
resources

° The Group advocates and implements the 3R policy
(Reduce, Reuse, Recycle) and recycles and reuses its
resources to achieve the goal of reducing materials
consumption and waste generation.

° The Group implements green procurement policy to
procure suppliers to minimise their impacts on the
environment.

° By implementing ISO 50001 Energy Management System,
the Group has established an energy management
system in the primary production bases and formed the
Energy Management Committee which is responsible
for the systematic management of all equipment in daily
operation in order to enhance the equipment efficiency
in a continuous manner. The Group has also implemented
energy saving and carbon reduction plan to rationalize
energy consumption and reduce energy cost.

o In 2020, the Vietnam plant (primary production base of
the Group) improved the concentration system in the
production process in production plants and reduced
the use of steam energy while also reducing water
consumption for cooling down.

° The Group proactively implements the resources recycle
policy which recycles the condensation produced in the
concentration process of production and reuse the same
in the production process. The amount of condensation
that can be recycled for every ton of products in 2020
was 1.71KL, higher than that of 1.11KL in 2019.

° In 2020, the packaging materials used by the primary
production bases of the Group in the production process
of main products can be classified into FIBC bags, paper
bags, carton boxes, plastic cylinders, etc. Towards the
goal of recycling and reusing the packaging materials
used for the finished products, the Company has recycled
and reused the plastic cylinders used for containing
maltose. According to the statistics in 2020, the recycling
rate reached 93.5%, higher than that of 89.8% in 2019,
and representing the higher recycling rate of plastic
cylinders.

EEEEHEBITIRBE(Reduce,
Reuse, Recycle): &EiREIWEF A
WER R VY EHFEREZBR

MEGERBBERER REMHE
BREHRREERZEHE-

EBE#ITISO 50001 AEREE R,
BFELEEMBEULERERG
B, TRIZEREEZSES AR
REOEEERRAMNEERER
fig, UIFBRARBRE LB
B AE BB 51 8 > (R EFERE B IBME
FERAETRAL A

EERTELEEMBERMIN2019F
EHREERPONBRERRET
ME BREEAERER BEH
WAL BKERE -

EEBERETEREIKENAZEK
ROBEEBRBEBETREEZ S
B B EIMNFZBFER > 2020F
SMNESRALKBER.71KLZ
BRI BR20194E1.11KLE ©

200 FEBMEFEREREETE
SmBREAERAEEMNITSA KT
BN R EERE AT
BRESFAZE8MEREF BN
FE BB RETRHRELTR
R BEBRETREWEFRA 2020
EHstZEIRNEBEIZI 5% B
20194 89.8% = > AR E BB [E UK
BHALEXRRES-
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B BEIRIE KEEE (B

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

BERERAEE-HEEHAERE BREK

(2) Resources usage management - Promoting energy (2)

conservation, consumption reduction, recycle and reuse of

resources (continued)

o The total consumption of energy used in the primary

BRA @

o 200E T EAERME REREE

production bases in 2020 is as follows: EMRFAWT
2019 2020 Difference Unit

Types of usage FEHEE 20194 2020 ER B

Indirect energy - Unit consumption REER-SHEMRE 718.90 727.793 1.24% kWh/ton
of electricity (total electricity (BHEAE (TR FTRNE/
consumption (kWh)/production JEREE (AM) YN
output (ton)

Indirect energy - Unit consumption of | BERER-—4£EMEEMEE 78.14 59.237 -24.19% kg/ton
biofuel (total biofuel consumption (EEMNERE (R NN
(kg)/production output (ton) /EREE (A1)

Direct energy — Unit consumption of | HiZfER—EREMNEE 42536 496.636 16.76% kg/ton
coal (total coal consumption (kg)/ (BiEmE (AF) / NN
production output (ton) EREE (AM)

Total water consumption aREKE 8,370,524 8,137,965 -2.78% m? L F K

Water consumption intensity BKEBE @FEKEQHK) /S 13.16 13.50 2.58% mé/ton
(total water consumption (m3)/ EmEES (NI AFHK DU
production output (ton)

Total packaging materials used FRNEEMREE-XTE 52,982 49,765 -6.07% kg RF
- FIBC bags

Total packaging materials used FRNEEREE-HE 424,297 375,470 -11.51% kg AF
— Paper bags

Total packaging materials used FRNEEYREE-HH 3,389,562 2,824,045 -16.68% kg AF
- Carton boxes

Total packaging materials used FRNEEMREE-2BR 461,936 425,473 -7.89% kg AF
— Plastic cylinders

Intensity of packaging materials used | ERNBEMHEE-XEE 5.19 4.74 -8.67% kg/ton
— FIBC bags YNSN

Intensity of packaging materials used | fEFRHBEYHBE—HR 10.25 9.38 -8.49% kg/ton
— Paper bags NSNS

Intensity of packaging materials used | fERBIBEYRERE -4 70.34 72.64 3.27% kg/ton
— Carton boxes NSNS

Intensity of packaging materials used | fERMIBEYHERE LB 40.64 41.23 1.45% kg/ton
~ Plastic cylinders YNTN
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation

(continued)

(2) Resources usage management - Promoting energy
conservation, consumption reduction, recycle and reuse of

resources (continued)

Explanations on major differences in 2020 as compared to

R | BEIRIE  KEEE (B)

(2) BREREE-HIEHAERE BREW

BRA (@)

2020 FEAHE2019FE 2 F EEZRREA ¢

2019:
Difference

Types of usage ERER Z8& | Explanation for difference EEHH

Indirect energy - Unit consumption | FE&AETR— £ EIE B -24.19% | The frequency of bucket elevator failure at | 2020EBIERMIBRARERBRE
of biofuel (total biofuel EEERNERE (AF) the by-product processing plant decreased | E&2019E KB T BZBEAHN K
consumption (kg)/production /EREE (D) significantly in 2020 as compared with i MO REEERE RELEM
output (ton) 2019, which, in addition to the new TN

technologies adopted to reduce bucket
elevator maintenance hours, led to a
significant reduction in unit usage of
biofuel.

Direct energy - Unit consumption | Ei&AETR— @ BHRE 16.76% | 1. The boilers at the thermal power station | 1. F202055~7 A HEHAEHBER
of coal (total coal consumption BREEE (BF) / of our Vietnam plant were not running HER FREMER R &8
(kg)/production output (ton) EREE (/\ 7)) normally from May to July 2020, as BB ENEREREABNRE.

result of which heavy oil boilers and gas
boilers were used instead to generate
electricity, making our efforts to reduce
energy consumption roughly go void.
~ We reviewed the rationality of energy 2. BRBHEREREZAEN UL
consumption monthly, and set the fKERISO 50001 HIE S EERZ AR
baseline of energy consumption for each Eifo
product in accordance with 150 50001.

Water consumption intensity EKEE @EKE AR 2.58% | 1. The leakage of the environmental 1. 20205 RARBRERNZER

(total water consumption (m:)/ JEREE (R) protection accident testing pool with a RNEEFAERA EREXRK

production output (ton)

considerable storage capacity in 2020
resulted in a significant increase in the
demand for water.

. Due to the impact of COVID-19, our

product output was lower than that of
2019, resulting in an increase in water
consumption as we could not accelerate
the manufacturing process.

. We prepared a water balance chart

every month and reviewed the rationality
of water consumption/wastewater
discharge/amount of water recycled to
prevent occurrence of abnormal events.

BABLF

2. BCOVID-19RE¥E EREER
R20195 MiERRRELAE U
REKBELH-

3. EANEKTHE ENHEKE
JERERE/ERKBEAE
1t UEREREEFEE.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

(3)

Environment and natural resources management —
Enhancing efficiency of energy consumption, caring for
environment and protecting natural ecosystem

In order to combat the global warming and devote our
efforts against the climate change, the Vietnam plant
(primary production base of the Group) obtained the
ISO 50001 energy management system certificate in
October 2016. We established an impeccable equipment
maintenance and examination system through a high
standard certification inspection. The usage of energy
consuming equipment has been gradually optimised,
which facilitated reasonableness and efficiency of energy
consuming equipment and reduced energy costs.

Based on the differences of soil and changes in climate
among different business footholds globally, the Group
adopts environmentally friendly designs for its plants and
grows a variety of appropriate and diversified plants and
trees in the surroundings and at the same time promotes
park-like construction in factory areas. Various animals
are commonly seen in the landscaping wildlife ponds at
certain business footholds. The Group aims to bring land
greening, carbon reduction, biodiversity and ecosystem
and environmental protection into its daily operation.

With reference to the international environmental
education regulations, the Group merges the national
environmental protection concept into the employee
concept through daily trainings and enhances the
knowledge, skills, attitude and values of the employees
in respect of environmental protection while promoting
environmental protection, safety and hygiene propaganda
and continuously universalising civic environmental
protection education.

Since 2017, the Vietnam plant (primary production
base of the Group) has planned to use non-burnt bricks
equipment which recycled coal ash in electrical boilers
into non-burnt bricks and building backfill materials.
Being in line with the national development policy, it
reused and recycled waste and used such equipment
and technical skills to enhance reuse of resources,
which conserved energy and reduced consumption and
brought significant meanings to earth preservation. This
equipment was put into operation at the end of 2019,
and put into production officially in 2020. The plant has
produced a total number of 1.1 million pieces of non-
burnt bricks, and has reduced the coal ash by 1,760 ton.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation % BERIR KELE (@

(continued)

(3) Environment and natural resources management — (3)
Enhancing efficiency of energy consumption, caring
for environment and protecting natural ecosystem
(continued)

° In 2020, the primary production bases of the Group
organised a total of 66 training courses in relation to
environmental safety and hygiene with 4,155 participants
and the average training hours were 7.49 hours per
person every year. The contents of the courses are
summarised as follows:

No. Course Name

BR REHE

RERRABREE-RALREAY
X, BERBARESALEE (@)

20200 EEFERELRERIRIER
2HEEBBSIIGRREE 6615
RBIMAKXA4,155N, FHS AL
EEHATAVNE EHBER
AEIWT

1 Groups 1 — 6 Training Targets about Labour Safety under National Requirements

BERERZHZE1~6cAHIRER

2 Learning ISO 14001/ISO 45001 Environmental Management System, Occupational Safety and Hygiene

Management System/Internal Inspector

ISO 14001/ISO 4500 1 IRIEE IR A4 BELZHBFEBTIERARDH, RABIZE

3 Chemical Drugs Safety Course
E2ERLZERE

4 Waste Management and Resources Recycle Course
BEEYEE  BIREIWRRE

5 Safety of Gas Welder and Electric Welder
RIE-BIRZE

6 Operation Safety of Loading Equipment and Stacking Machine
mERE HERETESE

7 Electricity Safety
REZ2

8 Operation in Dust Area
M EE& I 12

9 Safety Training for Operation in Limited Space and Overhead Operation

ZEIIBRERREMEERSEIEE

Total Total training hours Total participation
for the year

=H 2 4RI BREF BX MBEAR
31,114 (hours) 4,155 (persons)
31,114 (EF) 4,155 (A)

Average training hours
of employees

BT FIZINRH

7.49 (hours/year)

7.49 (B 5)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

(4)

B BEIRIE KEEE (B

Internal inspection enhancement and cycle improvement (4) MEAEEZERIRNE
The Vietnam plant (primary production base of the EETFE4EENHERESES
Group) implements the Environmental Management HEHTIRIEEE RSO 14001)
System (ISO 14001), Occupation Health Safety BEZ2HEEERMAISO 45001)
Management System (OHSAS18001/ISO 45001) and HEEREIEAH(SO 50001) EHA
Energy Management System (ISO 50001) every year, and RBEFSEERINITRY I
regularly reviews the progress and effectiveness of all BB ERL HERNEUS TS
plans and proactively improves the deficiencies in order ERREERL BRER -
to continuously improve and govern with high-standard
international regulations and conduct self-reflection.
In 2020, in respect of all laws related to environmental 2020F EE PR IR R MER A E Rt
protection as well as the air monitoring, discharge of HAER-BURK - BEVME BERE
sewage and waste disposal, the Group met the national BEEEEMZERIEE-
standard of all the places where its production bases are
located.
In 2020, the external inspection and environmental 2000E X ELERMIBIEREEHE
examination in respect of environmental safety and T2 BE RSN ERAE 1% SR IR 15 A R AR 5T AN
hygiene and energy in the primary production bases are L
as follows:
No. Name Result
EHR &iE R
1 First Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
F—FIRIF A =R
2 Annual External Inspection (ISO14001& ISO 45001) Pass
FEIMEBFEZ(SO 14001&ISO 45001) Bk
3 Second Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
B _FRIBEA =R
4 Annual External Inspection (ISO 50001) Qualified
FEIMERFEZ(1SO 50001) =R
5 Third Quarter Environmental Examination Pass
B=FRIBEA B
6 Fourth Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
FEFRIFER =L

Note: The Group's production bases in China and business
footholds in Taiwan and Cambodia are principally engaged
in sales and light industry trade. The primary production
base of the Group is the Vietnam plant and therefore the
environmental emission and energy data disclosed in this
report mainly concern the Vietnam plant.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits

To gain trust from the employees, the Group maintains sincere
communication, proactively cares for the employees and values
employees’ benefits and opinions. The Group supports the
international labour and human right standards and achieves the
goal of “building corporate harmony and enhancing employees’
benefits” through three measures, namely “full compliance with the
labour laws, continuous optimisation of the safety and healthiness
of the working environment and proactive implementation of
employees’ training and communication”, which help build a sound
labour-employer interrelationship and maximise the benefits of the
Group and society.

The Group undertakes to earnestly implement the following
employee relations policies:

(1) Employment principles - Fair employment conditions,
compliant and reasonable remuneration

° The Group considers its employees to be its most
important cooperative partners. The employment of
an employee is based on the ability-oriented and fair
employment principles. There is no discrimination in
each division and department in terms of recruitment,
employment, promotion, training and reward. Upon
employment, the remuneration of an employee shall
be based on an equal pay for equal work principle and
there shall be no bias or discrimination against different
identities such as race, religion, nationality, gender or
disability in terms of appointment and promotion.

° The Group has long been complying the national labour
laws of the places where its production bases are located
to systematise the remuneration and report to the
competent authorities of the places where the enterprises
are located.

BR:BUCHEME - IBESTEF

FEBE#NBR IHMRET ERETHE
ZHEROESE DUESETER *&EEX
FERS IR ABRE MR EREETHEE
P RERAZZEENIFRE BEESE
ETHIIEBER = ERER B EMEEE
EETREIN ZER BEURFHNHEETHH
# AERRMEERREAEREANAE

REMAERNTUTEIREEER

(1) EBRERA-2ATFZEEGHRESRSE
Z 5B

e EKERBREIRREBNGHEBMH
BESIUSENRE FEERA
RA REE-ER & Hillk
BEE SBEMNSEKE -8
TEEE HMTURIRM F
FEEER R EFE - ERRER
EHoMAZARE MEEREFA
B EAPTRIASIRAR °

s EKERBETELEEERMZERS
Birc MERTHHMME®L I
REMEEMREMZ TERRBET
HERo
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

B BUTEME - BESTEN (@)

(1) Employment principles - Fair employment conditions, (1) BERI-ATZERFRGESRSE
compliant and reasonable remuneration (continued) Z R (48)
. In 2020, the Group had 3,823 employees in aggregate. . 2020 EE BB T 48 833,823 »

The statistics of employee turnover rate by gender and
geographic region is set out below:

NFmAEMR - thESE D AR, I
MEtHESMALLR !

Total number

Male in Female in of employees
The Group's primary base each region each region in each region
EEFEEM EEBBET EEBRET EBRETHAY
The Vietnam plant # = & 2,964 657 3,621
The China plant REI K& 118 65 183
Foothold in Taiwan & /&5 B 7 6 13
Foothold in Cambodia SRiHZFEH 2, 4 3 7

Total average

Total average

resignation resignation Total average

rate of male rate of female resignation

staff per month | staff per month | rate per month

EET %8BT | of each region

The Group's primary base BRm=E PR = ZEABEE
ERFEEM B I LRSS
The Vietnam plant #E K& 1.74% 1.41% 1.68%
The China plant FEIGR&E 1.25% 1.00% 1.25%
Foothold in Taiwan & /& ¥ & 0% 0% 0%
Foothold in Cambodia SRIHZFE K EL 5.17% 0% 3.17%
(2) Employees’ benefits — Enhancing benefits and good (2 BIfM-RAEANERTFHNIIEGRG

working conditions

° The Group attaches importance to gender equality °
at work and has included such into the standards of
the Company. It complies with the local governmental
regulations. Provisions such as maternity system
management measure, paternity leave and menstrual
leave are clearly stipulated.

° The Group has formulated relevant regulations which °
provide the managements served at the primary
production bases in Vietnam and China with benefits,
such as meals and free transportation.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(2)

(3)

Employees’ benefits - Enhancing benefits and good
working conditions (continued)

Employees’ benefits and working hour management
systems have been established for all operating areas
of the Group in compliance with the local labour laws,
including minimum wage, annual leave and other
statutory benefits. All are implemented in accordance
with local laws and regulations of each operating
location.

In 2020, in addition to the fixed monthly salary, the
Group’s employees can receive appropriate year-end
and performance bonuses based on the department or
individual performance. The Vietnam plant, the primary
production base, conducts promotion assessment twice a
year in order to encourage the talents to excel themselves
with a friendly management approach. In addition, the
overall salaries of all staff were raised in 2020 as in line
with the basic wage adjustments in Vietnam.

Labour communication - Strengthening communication
channels and valuing human rights

The Group provides diversified channels for internal
communication and opinion expressing which allows
it to persistently understand employees’ real opinions
and recommendations on each aspect of the Company
through diversified means such as the proposal system,
suggestion boxes and employee satisfactory survey, and
to make improvements based on the problems raised by
the employees upon discussion.

The Group respects the right of employees to form
associations and organise unions upon their own free
will in accordance with the laws, and regularly convenes
labour conferences to share opinions with the labour
representatives and directly respond to the queries raised
by the employees. Meanwhile, it regularly organises
“Employee Forum” with the labour unions which allows
the labour unions to promptly reflect each problem raised
by the employees and constantly follow up the execution
progress of each discussion topic.

B BUGEME - BESTEN (@)

(2)

(3)

BIREA-RAEMNERFOITIERMG

€))

EEFAREREEBISTEM
HHERNEIGTER IREEE
o BEEEIE - BARRRES
RENEHN 9RSEERMZE
AL AT o

2020 EEE TIREE B #r5h > 14
ARSFAREAERESES

BRERB¥RES TELEEMERE
BESEEEEM2RE AT
BERREEEFASTBAARIE
B R2020F Ef & E X A
BEATEMEZEAAZEE TH
o

SEBE-NMMBEEE -ERAE

EERHSTNARBERARKRE
BOHEEBREFE -ERME B
IwnEERESSZTAN, THE
ITHRRABZERNEEERER
FoOUHHE T REMNMEETS
i AR E B IKIR o

EESESTREAEMAGHKRAER
TENEN SEEMEARFHK
g RFPARETERERM I
EREBEEIZRE -BEREHA
TEHESM HSEREE) 2
TERRENNKREETIZRIEA
IR MRFEEHSEREZRT
EE-
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(3) Labour communication — Strengthening communication
channels and valuing human rights (continued)

° The Group has reported its internal regulations to
the competent authorities in the countries where its
production bases are located. Furthermore, it has
established the “Incentive and Disciplinary Committee”
comprising labour unions, legal personnel and relevant
competent units to deal with the matters of the reward
and punishment on the internal staff of the Company in a
transparent and open manner.

° The Group attaches importance to labour interests. The
Vietnam plant (primary production base of the Group) has
coordinated with international or local review institutions
to regularly carry out audits and collect employees’
opinions on labour management and relevant issues in
order to protect the relevant interests of the employees.

(4) Establishment of safe and healthy working environment
- Ensuring Company’s safety to maintain employees’
healthiness

° Adhering to the concept of “ensuring Company’s safety
to maintain employees’ healthiness”, the Group places
significant importance on the promotion of occupational
safety and hygiene. All of its policies, which are in
compliance with the relevant laws applicable to the local
operating area, have formed a safe working environment
to its employees, clients, underwriters and relevant
personnel.

° The Group offers labour insurance and health insurance
applicable to the local operating area to each employee
and arranges regular health check for the employees in
an endeavour to look after the physical and mental health
of all employees. Moreover, the Group cooperates with
professional medical institutions to find out whether an
employee suffers from an occupational disease based
on the differences of each business division in order to
safeguard the healthiness of the employees.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(4)

Establishment of safe and healthy working environment
- Ensuring Company'’s safety to maintain employees’
healthiness (continued)

In order to carry out the propaganda of the concept
of environmental protection, safety and hygiene, in
addition to organising environmental safety education
programmes for the management level and the
employees from time to time, the Group has also merged
the concept of environmental safety and hygiene into
major corporate events (for example, participation in tree
planting activities organised by environmental protection
units under local governments, and reception of
government agencies or academic groups for visits of the
sewage treatment system of the Company, etc.) in order
to create an impact by combining environmental safety
education with operating activities.

The Group regularly inspects the progress and outcome
of every environmental protection, safety and hygiene
plan and continuously improves those plans in accordance
with the requirements. The department in charge of
environmental management implements and supervises
various safety and hygiene drills in the factory areas
targeting at the harm of special or major equipment in
the factory areas, and performs precaution inspections,
such as fire safety equipment, use of chemicals and safety
inspections on electrical equipment to avoid risks of
potential disaster.

In 2020, there were 6 cases of work injury in the Group’s
primary production bases, which resulted in a total of
1,512 lost working hours due to work injury. Among
which, a total of zero hour of traffic accidents were
happened outside the factory area (accounting for 0%),
whereas a total of 1,512 hours of work-related accidents
occurred within the factory area (accounting for 100%).
The Group will continuously minimise the occurrence of
work safety accident within the factory area every year
through rigorous safety education, management system
and equipment.

B BUGEME - BESTEN (@)

(4)

EBZ2HEERNIFRIE-ATZE
2ERE (@
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MR EEEREZHECTRREE
R B0 200t 75 BT IR R BB AL
M EEES BB
SBWEB2FH AR TKEERRE
FOUWRBEZE2HEHEEED
EaZ-

EESFEHRARZEREFE
EERPTHN FEAEFER
S UHRREEEREEEBEMUNHE
ENAEERBREHEE G
LTHEHHEBRERKAEERFHEZL
SohBERBNEEREZ  FWH
hRFE EERERRERZEE
1ZE > BRI ARA
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(4) Establishment of safe and healthy working environment
- Ensuring Company'’s safety to maintain employees’
healthiness (continued)

o The Vietnam plant (primary production base of
the Group) has comprehensively acquired various
management system certifications including 1SO 14001,
ISO 45001, ISO 50001, FSSC 22000, HACCP, ISO 9001
and so on. Meanwhile, it adheres to the standards of
the management systems and frequently carries out
inspections and guidance with continuous improvements.

(5) Development and training - Talent cultivation and
establishment of learning and growing environment
which employees can follow

. The Group believes that talents are, above all, the
greatest assets of the Company. The nurture and
development of talents are valued and each employee is
provided with comprehensive educational training and
promotion system to satisfy their needs from different
countries and regions, which allows all employees to
deploy their skills and unearth their potentials.

° The Group regularly convenes meetings of the education
and training committee while proactively organising
professional courses and language courses based on
the job requirements of each department and regularly
conducting language and computer skill assessments to
improve occupational skills of the employees.

. The Group formulates the “Annual Plan for Education
and Training” every year. To enhance the diversification of
learning, in addition to assigning employees to training
institutions to participate in various education and
trainings, the Group also engages professional lecturers
to hold a variety of seminars in the factories from time to
time and nurture its employees based on their aptitudes
so as to boost their potentials and enhance their work
passions and at the same time raise their sense of
belonging to the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(5)

(6)

Development and training — Talent cultivation and
establishment of learning and growing environment
which employees can follow (continued)

Based on the global operating strategy of the Group,
it continues to cultivate talents for its future senior
management and strategically nurtures employees
possessing high potentials with emphasis on specific
trainings to heighten the professionalism and regularly
updates on their promotion and development to ensure
the instantaneity and integrity of its talent reserve in a bid
to satisfy the needs for the long-term business growth of
the Group and enhance the core competitiveness of the
organisation.

In 2020, there were a total of 48,730 hours of education
and training courses organised by the main production
bases of the Group with an average training hours
of approximately 13.46 hours per person every year,
representing a rise by 29% in training hours per person
as compared to 2019. In 2020, total hours of middle
and senior management personnel of the Group
taking occupational training courses were 7,890 hours
(middle management officers) and 6,676 hours (senior
management officers), respectively, reduced by 40% in
training hours taken by middle management officers and
reduced by 29% in training hours by senior management
officers as compared to 2019. The Group limited
the number of people gathering in one place due to
COVID-19 is the main reason for the reduction of hours
of training.

Labour standards — Ensuring compliance with labour and
safety laws

The Group strives to comply with all labour laws
applicable to the operating areas and achieve the goal of
"establishing a safe and healthy working environment”
by three aspects, namely “ensuring the compliance with
labour laws, constantly reviewing the development plans
and prohibiting the violation of human rights”.

B BUGEME - BESTEN (@)

BRAEN-ATERT BUSTIERE
NEBHRIRIR (8)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(6)

Labour standards — Ensuring compliance with labour and
safety laws (continued)

The Group adheres to the principle of employment
freedom and refuses to hire forced labour and child
labour. All employment shall be based on the employees’
own free will and imposition of mandatory measures
on employees in violation of laws or human rights of
employees is prohibited.

The Group accepts inspections on its labour safety and
hygiene system carried out by government authorities
or external independent inspection units to ensure all
operating activities are in compliance with the local
government decree and international standards.

The Group has an internal legal affairs department which
is not only responsible for revising the internal regulations
and systems of the Company in accordance with the
decrees issued by the government, but also for educating
the employees to understand and comply with the labour
laws through its education and training system.

Implementation of an annual external audit on human
resources recruitment agencies which cooperate with the
major production bases of the Group so as to ensure such
external agencies do comply with labour and safety laws
and regulations.

The fundamental obligation of the Group is to provide
its employees a safe and healthy working environment.
A specialised department for the management of
environmental safety and hygiene has been established
within the Group which is responsible for supervising
the management system for environmental protection,
safety and hygiene, formulating all safety and hygiene
management regulations, and set up the system of
safety manager in each plant, regularly reviewing the
improvement recommendations put forward by all units,
examining the abnormal incidents on environment,
safety and hygiene and analysing the causes thereof, and
suggesting feasible improvement proposals or refined
engineering designs to the Group in an endeavour
to assist the Group to continuously heighten the
management standards.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(7)

(8)

Continuous review on development plans in pursuit of a
better safety and health management system

o Annual targets of management on environment, safety
and hygiene have been set in each factory area of
the Group in accordance with local regulations. The
occurrences of abnormal incidents on environment,
safety and hygiene have been effectively reduced
through an implementation of environment, safety and
hygiene inspections, education and trainings and regular
inspections on working environment in order to maximise
the working efficiency of the employees in a safe and
healthy environment.

° In addition to self-initiated inspections on environment,
safety and hygiene by each unit of the Group, the internal
inspection department also regularly reviews all operating
control on environment, safety and hygiene in the factory
area and the relevant operating environment to ensure
the implementation management systems such as ISO
14001, ISO 45001, ISO 50001, FSSC 22000, HACCP, ISO
9001, etc.

Winning the recognition of Vietnamese governmental
authorities

For four consecutive years (from 2017 to 2020), our Vietnam
plant (primary production base of the Group) have been
granted the “Exemplary Enterprise Award for Commitment to
Workers” by the Vietnam General Confederation of Labour, The
Ministry of Labour, Invalids and Social Affairs and the Vietnam
Chamber of Commerce and Industry, in recognition of their
relentless efforts to improve the material and spiritual life of its
employees while actively improving their working environment,
giving full play to their talent and skills and striving to achieve
the goal of sustainable development together with them.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Strengthening Green Procurement and Maintaining
Mutual Growth with Suppliers

Under the primary condition of stable quality and honesty in the
process of determining the suppliers, the Group selects its suppliers
across the globe as if deciding a long-term cooperation partner.
Under the gradual surge of green energy awareness across the
globe, the Group also wishes to promote the relevant environmental
protection concepts or practices to the upstream suppliers through
its supply chain management strategy of green products and
encourage the suppliers to actively cooperate and participate in the
environmental protection movement with its influence as a local
enterprise in hope to establish a green supply chain in the food
industry with its suppliers and improve the performance of the Group
and its suppliers in terms of social and environmental responsibility.

The raw material suppliers of the Group include manufacturers and
distributors. Engineering constructions are undertaken by engineering
contractors of construction and machinery. The Group adopts
standardised procurement model which not only includes comparison
of quality, cost, service, technology and delivery, but also includes
linked management for the information of suppliers to ensure the
integrity of the long-term information storage and flexibly updates
the changes in procurement demands so as to reduce procurement
risks.

The cooperation agreements between the Group and its suppliers or
contractors firstly requires the suppliers to faithfully carry out every
transaction in accordance with the contracts and not to damage
the interests and image of the Group. No suppliers shall engage
in transfer of personal benefits or involve in loans, leases and
investments for any non-business purposes with employees of the
Group or their families, relatives and friends. Meanwhile, the Group
also takes into account of appeals lodged by the suppliers against the
employees of the Group who may have breached the procurement
rules, and carries out investigations to safeguard the interests of the
suppliers in a bid to build a harmonious trading relationship between
both parties and establish an open, fair and just procurement
management mechanism.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Strengthening Green Procurement and Maintaining
Mutual Growth with Suppliers (continued)

We undertake to implement the following supply chain management
policies with considerable efforts:

(1) Regular supplier assessment mechanism for purpose of
improving management system of both parties

° The Group has established a system for inspection upon
delivery, regular inspection and assessment, and explicitly
has required the suppliers to cooperate with the Group’s
investigation in the factories based on the “Suppliers’
Annual External Assessment Programme”. The top priority
is to guide the supplier to improve the deficiencies
found in the inspection and assessment. After notifying
suppliers the items which require improvement, regular
investigation shall be continued and gradings will be
given in order to improve the management system of
both parties and ensure its business relationships with
quality suppliers. In 2020, the Group fully completed the
annual supplier assessment as planned.

° The procurements of new raw materials or newly added
suppliers of the Group are all subject to the examination
and qualification judgement based on the “Assessment
Form for New Supplier” in order to ensure the standards
of the Group’s procurement management.

(2) Continuous promotion and encouragement to suppliers
for implementation of their own management systems

° In order to carry out safety management for contractors
and prevent constructional safety incidents, the
Group not only continuously reminds and informs
the contractors of the relevant safety management
requirements, but also conducts on-site supervision over
the operation safety of the manufacturers and procures
them to implement their own management to prevent
safety hazard to workers or damage to the environment
arising from improper operation.

o The Group also requires engineering contractors
to comply with and undertake to abide by all
requirements under the “Management Measures for
Safety and Hygiene of Contractors” and the policies
and requirements under ISO 14001 and ISO 45001 of
the Group and concurrently requires contractors to
assign safety management personnel and engineering
supervisors to the construction sites to confirm the safety
before, during and after the construction in order to
ensure the operation safety and environmental hygiene.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Strengthening Green Procurement and Maintaining
Mutual Growth with Suppliers (continued)

(3)

Continuously maintain the proportion of green
procurement

In principle, if the suppliers in the country of the Group’s
business footholds or the neighbouring countries share
the advantages in delivery time with the same favourable
conditions in terms of quality, service and price, priority
would be given to the local raw material suppliers and
contractors in order to reduce the carbon emission in
the process of transportation and jointly achieve green
efficiency.

In addition to continuously facilitating the replacement of
old and high-consumption equipment with new models
through plans on manufacturing process improvement
or special projects, the Group also participates in
various exhibitions of innovative technology and new
energy conservation equipment from time to time in
hope to continue to manufacture with relatively high
efficiency equipment, reduce energy consumption per
unit, reduce the cost of electricity used for operation,
thereby implement energy management and enhance the
competitiveness of the Group in the industry.

The Group advocates green procurement policy and
gradually carry out the environmental protection
concept of “low pollution, recyclability and resources
conservation”. We support ecologically friendly products
and green energy, and give priority to recyclable,
degradable, reusable and recoverable products in
response to the international environmental protection
standards. In compliance with the local environmental
protection regulations, we encourage suppliers to actively
develop green products so as to minimise the damage
to the environment. All in all, we make a contribution to
take the eco-friendly pledge for all mankind.

In 2020, the Group’s primary production bases
maintained a green procurement policy to achieve a
carbon emission control. Specific accomplishments
include: (a) continuous efforts in procurement at local
production places; (b) maintain the use of biomass energy
and production use unit demand purchase; (c) completion
of 100% procurement target for electrical appliances
with energy-saving labels.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Comprehensive Quality Management to Live Up to
Customers’ Satisfaction

High quality is an important core capability which the Group has
always maintained. In order to give customers full confidence in
the quality of the products, the Group continues to improve quality
control and achieve customers’ expectations through high standards
of quality control to create quality products and live up to customers’
satisfaction.

We undertake to implement the following product responsibility
policies with considerable efforts:

(1) In compliance with national quality and safety regulations

° In order to maintain the core competitiveness of the
product quality, the Group continues to maintain various
food safety management systems, including GMP+Feed
Safety Assurance, ISO 17025, HACCP, ISO 9001 and
FSSC 22000, and to enforce them on relevant production
aspects so as to enhance its competitiveness and satisfy
customers’ requirements on quality and the requirements
of food safety standards. In addition, the Group decided
to implement the new agreements and rules on relevant
foods announced by the governments during 2020, and
internal education training was implemented to ensure
that the new agreements were fully carried out.

° The Group ensures the quality of every product it
produced is in compliance with all requirements of
relevant local laws applicable to the operating areas.

° In 2020, the Group has fully implemented the monthly
review of the validity period of various intellectual
property rights in a bid to ensure the due completion of
registration procedure for renewal before expiration.

o The shipment of each batch of the products is subject to
a random inspection conducted by the Group. The fail
rate of the Group's product in the random inspection
was approximately 0.03% in 2020, remaining flat as
compared to the fail rate of 0.03% last year, and it was
maintained to enhance the system for the traceability of
source management.

° The Group performed a product recall drill in July 2020
for every main product (MSG, flavour seasoning, modified
starch, maltose syrup, rice protein, animal and plant liquid
and solid feed, and Cha Cha Spiced Sunflower Seeds),
enabling it to face potential circumstances with ample
experience.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Comprehensive Quality Management to Live Up to X . 2ERE EERE (@
Customers’ Satisfaction (continued)

(2) Preservation of customers’ interests and consolidation of 2) REXF#DZ ZEEZRAREG
customer relations

As the Group weighs its customer relation management
system, it has established feasible and effective customer
communication channels to understand the needs and
questions of customers. The Group has established the
“operating procedures for toll-free customer service
hotline”. Through the toll-free customer hotline, the
Group ascertains the procedures and scope of customer
service operation and matters which require customers’
cooperation in order to ensure customers’ interests as
well as to safeguard the interests of the distributors and
agents.

Addressing customers’ opinions and feedback and the
quality issues, each business unit has formulated standard
operating procedures in compliance with the local laws,
according to which it promptly provides proper responses,
makes reports and puts forward solutions through the
communication channels specified in the official website
of the Group and sales personnel to achieve the goal of
customer satisfaction.

In order to grasp the customers’ satisfaction with the
products operated by the Group, and to investigate
whether the products meet the expectations of customers
and market, the customers’ satisfaction survey is
conducted every year for various items managed by the
Group, in which the surveys on MSG and seasonings will
be made twice a year, hence the Group can fully obtain
feedback to adjust the market strategies.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Comprehensive Quality Management to Live Up to
Customers’ Satisfaction (continued)

(2)

Preservation of customers’ interests and consolidation of
customer relations (continued)

In 2020, the Group received 1 customer feedback
(excluding customer enquiries and other cases) in
total. The office of general manager has appointed a
designated person to arrange the response to customers’
feedback and the response rate was 100%.

Addressing customers’ data protection and privacy
management, the Group carried out 6 internal
inspections in 2020 (one inspection in every two months)
to ensure that the management measures are duly
implemented by every department.

The distribution partners around the world are important
market vanguards of the Group which help the Group to
deliver its brand value to the potential customers at every
corner of the world. The Group organises distribution
partner meetings or product launching events from time
to time to share the analysis on the overall market trend
and its marketing strategies in order to assure customers’
satisfaction and establish a long-term and stable market
operating foundation for the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Upholding Integrity and Formulating Standards

The Group highly values operation in good faith. It has established
a designated inspection unit, in addition to the establishment of a
transparent and open communication platform. The Group requires
its employees to comply with the regulations of integrity and also
reinforces the propaganda on a regular basis to prevent corruption
and fraud.

The Group requires all employees to abide by the prevailing
government regulations in each operating area and the internal
regulations of the Company in an endeavour to procure employees
to safeguard the Group’s reputation with the highest moral standard.
For the implementation of the Group's anti-corruption policy, penalty
shall be imposed on inappropriate conducts in accordance with the
relevant regulations of the Company, while local legal proceedings
shall be instituted on a serious breach.

The Group shall implement the following policies with considerable
efforts to enforce the regulations of integrity on employees:

(1) Continuous propaganda of integrity

The Group requires every employee internally, and reminds all
customers, suppliers and all third parties involved in business
transactions externally not to obtain commercial benefits
directly or indirectly through malfeasance or bribery. It has also
established standard operation procedure systems for business,
procurement and finance departments to prevent employees
from abusing their power for personal gains which would result
in conflict of interests.

(2) Establishment of transparent and open communication
platform

Integrity is a major criterion of the Group’s assessment on its
employees and employees who reported corrupt conducts shall
not result in any implication to their salaries and promotion
prospects or be subject to other unfavourable penalties.
There is a feedback channel which allows all employees to
report corrupt conducts to the management directly through
diversified means, where the whistle blower shall be protected
by the Group’s system. No employee in the Group was subject
to legal proceedings regarding corrupt conduct in 2020.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Facilitating Social Development and Willing to be
Corporate Volunteer

The Group provides special care to the relatively underprivileged
minority in society and gives long-term and appropriate support and
positive encouragement. With a thankful heart, the Group is willing
to be a cheerful corporate volunteer and communicate with the
community benevolently so as to requite the public for the support to
the Company.

Through internal coordination and planning of the public relations
department, the Group has been devoting itself to public welfare
activities, such as providing international medical support, taking care
of the impoverished families, promoting environmental protection
and energy conservation education and sponsoring outstanding
poor students for a long period of time in hope for encouraging
more enthusiasts to carry out charitable work and radiating
warmth to every corner in need through our modest contribution
and increased participation. Vietnam Red Cross awarded the “Red
Cross Outstanding Contribution of Business Enterprise Award” to a
Vietnamese company under the Group for multiple times, indicating
that the Company’s active participation in the public welfare has
obtained recognition by international charity and aid organisation.

The followings set forth a summary of the Group’s community
development and participation in public welfare:

(1) Continuous international medical support

Given that international human care has always been the
benevolent activity which the Group pays attention to, other
than sponsoring the “Agent Orange Victim Fund” and the
“Child Protection Fund”, the Vietnam plant (primary production
base of the Group) has been cooperating with the Government
of Dong Nai Province, Taichung Veterans General Hospital,
Taiwan and Huei-Kong Social Welfare Foundation for eight
consecutive years to carry out international medical support
activities which benefitted over ten thousand people.

(2) Encouragement to employees to participate in social
welfare activities

The Group always encourages its employees to participate in
all kinds of public welfare activities and several directors of
the Group and their families have set an example by working
as long-term volunteers of medical institutions and hospice
centres in an endeavour to motivate more employees to unite
their power through personal actions and serve the public with
contribution to society.
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BE:REMEUE HALEST (@

Policy: Facilitating Social Development and Willing to be
Corporate Volunteer (continued)

(3) Continuous charity and public welfare activities (3) FBETEEAMEH

To demonstrate the spirit of fraternity and help
impoverished families, the Group adheres to the concept
of gaining healthy lives through flavourful and delicious
food and organises various activities such as “Spreading
Warmth at the End of the Year”, “Gratitude Fund”,
“Building Warm-Hearted House” and “Poverty Fund”
every year to provide the most appropriate support to the
needy.
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Building Warm-Hearted House

BRRIBE

In 2020, our Vietnam plant organised instant donation
of money and supplies for the residents suffering from
the severe rainstorms and floods, extending appropriate
condolence and support to them, encouraging them to
help each other and overcome the difficulties together.
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Donations Construction of Schools and Encouragement to Students
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Tree Planting for Environmental Protection
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Spreading Warmth every year to provide the most
appropriate support to the needy
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BE REMEUE HKAEEIST (@

Policy: Facilitating Social Development and Willing to be
Corporate Volunteer (continued)

(3) Continuous charity and public welfare activities (3) HEETESLQ=EH @
(continued)

0 In 2020, the wide spread of the COVID-19 pandemic . 2020 B mEEEH AR F
plunged the global economy into a severe recession. %ﬁiﬁ‘“@f‘slfﬁiﬁﬁ THmEAE
Millions of businesses and workers in Vietnam were BEBLERGBEZTEE R
affected. During the period, our Vietnam plant, the main BERE EETELXEEMERE
production base of the Group, dedicated themselves BERAOEBF A\RREBERT
to the fighting against the pandemic together with the R IEE -

Vietnamese government, people and workers:

-~  Donating money to the COVID-19 Fighting Fund - BAREAREBRFEEEKREH

of Dong Nai Province and the COVID-19 Fighting
Fund of Taiwanese Chamber of Commerce
to assist farmers in selling their slow-moving

BEEE HHRRBRER
THRERGHBE®E 8K
RKEYEFTHBAEZREBRK

agricultural products jeopardised by the COVID-19 E’J?iEEE BENEBKFH
pandemic; donating rice and supplies to the nearby EHEHEAHRIRIEEE
communities affected by the pandemic; donating

bleach to the nearby communities for them to

disinfect the public areas.

- In the face of the serious blood shortage in Vietnam - UEhEREREEEmMBRE
due to the strike of COVID-19, our Vietnam plant fhin > AE R IMEEIRNE
staged a blood donation campaign to call on its FFHELRETIRERERE
employees and local residents to donate blood to 2> HEtiE61EBEE

the blood banks of 161 medical units. (A9 M E o

Work together with community epidemic prevention
personnel to improve environmental hygiene

BFHEE MRIREEE

Assisting farmers in selling their slow-moving agricultural
products jeopardised by the COVID-19 pandemic
B REREE TR E R T HEEE

CONGTY CPHH VEDRM VIET NAR
cuum mhﬁl HIEH umnuu HeuvEn

Our Vietnam plant staged a blood donation campaign to call on
its employees and local residents to donate blood to the blood banks of 161 medical units

AR BMIBEBINES THRE2EETRERBRESIN 5816188 R E (K0 ME
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Policy: Facilitating Social Development and Willing to be
Corporate Volunteer (continued)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Facilitation of environmental protection and energy
conservation education

In order to enhance the awareness of the importance of
energy and climate change issues among all people, the Group
cooperated with the local government and international
organisations every year to promote the concept of forest
conservation by organising different activities such as “Green
Sunday”, “Tree Planting”, “Environmental Protection Drawing
Competition” and “Classification of Household Waste”,
and sponsor a variety of environmental protection funds in
an endeavour to facilitate environmental protection, forest
conservation, forest expansion and improve the ecological
environment.

Continuous promotion of study encouragement

In order to incentivise impoverished students, the Group
not only entered into the “Industry-University Collaboration
Memorandum” with numerous higher education institutions,
but also regularly carried out study encouragement in
accordance with the local government policies and gave
scholarships and donations for construction of schools in a bid
to provide better education to outstanding students in order to
encourage students to study hard.

Generation of a centripetal force towards society by
culture education

The cultivation strategy of the Group is to rapidly and fully
integrate into local culture where it operates. As such, the
Group provides various recreational activities and supports the
relevant activities of local governments, such as celebrating
local festivals, participating in the International Women's Day,
tug-of-war competitions for employees, commending senior
employees, establishing party organisations and organizing
activities in a bid to enhance a sense of belonging of the
employees to the local culture and earn recognition of the
Company from communities.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk IR (382 AR A S

BE:REMEUE HALEST (@

(4)

(5)

(6)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

“Care for environment and sustainable operation” is the operational
mission of the Group and also a commitment and fundamental
responsibility of us as an international corporate citizen to the
environment and society. In process of the preparation of the
disclosure in this report, we have reviewed the actual actions taken
by the Group in a new perspective for implementing the three
sustainability measures, namely sustainable environment, public
welfare, and sound corporate governance. The Group will continue
to improve and formulate the most complete development solutions
which integrate operating procedures, and will continuously strive for
corporate excellence, facilitating social development and creating a
better environment.

With reference to the relevant regulations and international
standards, the Group will continue to review the hindrances and
risks to be involved in the future corporate governance, social
development and environmental protection. It will also formulate
mid-to-long-term improvement strategies and action plans as soon
as possible with effective communication with the stakeholders of
the Group, including employees, customers, suppliers, investors and
the community, that enable them to understand and support every
practical action taken by the Group for the environmental, social and
governance in order to face the trend of the macro-environment and
challenges together in a prudent manner and seek the best way for
coexistence and mutual prosperity.

The Group believes that the fulfilment of social responsibility is the
critical driving force for the sustainable growth of enterprises in the
21st century. In the future, we will continue to integrate the core
competence of biotechnology with social responsibility and develop
green economy. The Group expects not only to continue to grow
and develop in the food industry, but also to have a significant
influence — It will also focus on climate change, including issues such
as carbon reduction in an endeavour to contribute to the sustainable
development of the environment of the earth and create a better
home together.

MZHIRIE KECE  RAEBAOKE €
S REREELARBIRIT AT GRAEN
BEXAER-RZMAZBKEFIREENERE B
MREEEHNERXERE HELET S
REztEELR=-EXEEINERER L&
FENE BIURTHBAESEERENER
FEBAFBEREEIHMEE BEHL S
ERIAIGSRIERHE -

FEERSEZRMERKBEREE FERS
EERKRAELXAE - HERRARIBFRERN
REHBENEEARE BRERBAPRANER
BRTBHAE TEMBENRERZFEZ/HE
ABEEIT -FFR - HEE KREAKRKE &
ZTRIXFERTRRE HERERNEE
fFR HEZEEHRRENBZERE 8
REFHENREER

EEEEEEHEER REEEETT -t
KERRNBABER N R RARKFEER
EMEMZOENEHLEERES HRGEE
BE SERETEERmEERRURELER
X BEREEENTEN ERRARRBREL
BREAREZRENR T HEAMIKIREXE
ERB HRIEHFRE-
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE- G RkERBRSMHE

The Group's compliance of General Disclosures and KPIs: ERETREEMEAREVIEEZETE
I

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, BRIE- (2 RERBEIESI N Z2HER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls
TEHBE EE - —RIRERBRERER

Compliance as disclosed

“Comply or explain” Provisions in this report

TRETREER FREERBZETER

A. Environmental

IRIE
A1 Emissions: General Disclosure (effective from 2016.1.1)
HEm - — %% EE (2016.1.1%E %)

Information on:

BFRBRBEEREHB AKRIMHNGFST AERESER

MRNEEEZ !

(a) the policies; and As stated in the section

(@ HHE ;& headed “Environmental

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a Protection (1) Emission
significant impact on the issuer management” in this

(b) BFHBEITABEAXEMNEREERAGNER- report

MRS E NRFERE)HF
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into B EE SR

water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

Note: (1) Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other pollutants regulated
under national laws and regulations.

B2 (WERIKEEREtY MEtYRENMZEIEERRARE
B35 54 o

Note: (2) Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous
oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur
hexafluoride.

2 QRERBEE_StHK BR-ftags S8Rtay - 281t
RS ®mACH

Note: (3) Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations.

2 RFEEEEVIEERKRAFMAES -
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE- g RkERBRSMHE

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B(IRIE- (e RERBREIESINZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (&)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE -BE - —RIBERARERIER

Compliance as disclosed

“Comply or explain” Provisions in this report

TRETRRR FREERBEZEITER

KPI (effective from 2017.1.1)
RARERISIR (2017.1.1£%)

KPI'A1.1: The types of emissions and respective emissions data. As stated in the section
RARERIERA1  SE i R BB R B o headed “Environmental

Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report
ML EE NRIBHRE)HE
WY E R BRI
KPI A1.2: Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, As stated in the section
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, headed “Environmental

per facility). Protection (1) Emission
RAREMISRA1.2 RERBAHIME CUMETE) Kk (WMEA) ZE  management” in this
EWNESESE M SERHEHE) o report
MRS E NRIBERE)HE
WY E IR EERUM

KPI A1.3: Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where As stated in the section
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per headed "“Environmental

facility). Protection (1) Emission
RAEENIEEAI 3  FAIELEESEEYEE (UMEtE) X (W38 management” in this
R ZE MUSESEMN  §ERETH) ° report
M EE RIBEE)H
MY EE BN

KPI A1.4: Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, As stated in the section
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, headed “Environmental

per facility). Protection (1) Emission

FRBERIEEA 4 FESESEEYHEE UUNETE) X (W8 management” in this

B EE WMUSESEN SBEREE) o report
MREENRIBERE)HE
B EIR SR
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE- G RkERBRSMHE

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B(IRIE- M ERERREIESI ) Z2HER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (&)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEHR -BE —RRERBARERER

Compliance as disclosed

“Comply or explain” Provisions in this report
TRE TR TREERBZEITER
KPI A1.5: Description of measures to mitigate emissions and As stated in the section
results achieved. headed “Environmental
RASRAR IS IZAN S | MU EHI R EN B R RS R Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report
M EE NRIBRE)H
MY B BHROM
KPI A1.6: Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous As stated in the section
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved. headed “Environmental
FARENIERA1.6 HMEEREERBEEEEYMN A E - BMEZE  Protection (1) Emission
EENEHRFAERR management” in this
report
M EE NRIBRE)HE
MY E IR B EROR
A2 Use of General Disclosure (effective from 2016.1.1)
Resources: — A% IR EE (2016.1.14E %)
BIRER :
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water As stated in the section
and other raw materials. headed “Environmental
BRERER (BFER  KREMEMR) BB Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report
MBEE RIBREQ)E
REREE SRt

Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in
buildings, electronic equipment, etc.

7 BRUBAREE -#F EH - BF BEFRBET-
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B(IRIE-HHERERBEIEIINZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (48)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE -BE - —RIBERARERIER

Compliance as disclosed
in this report

FREERBEZEITER

“Comply or explain” Provisions

TRE TR

KPI (effective from 2017.1.1)
RARERISIR (2017.1.1£%)

KPI A2.1: Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. As stated in the section
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per headed “Environmental

unit of production volume, per facility).

RAREMIERA2  RERBSNERK HEEERWE R
o) BEE UTETRRSE REE MUSEEE( 8]

B E) -

KPI A2.2: Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit

of production volume, per facility).

RREWIERA2.2  BEKEREE MUSEREN BER

B o

KPI A2.3: Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and

results achieved.

RIS RIEIRA2. 3 | HHSETRE BN a5t BI R PRIS AR

KPI' A2.4: Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results

achieved.

RRENIEIRA2 4 HUREVERKE LR B ERRE UKkEE

FHRKR B R PRISALR

KPI A2.5: Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

FRAMIERA2S REMAABSEMHNEE UMEHE) &

(WnER) BEEBMGEE-

Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report
MREERIEREQE
BEREE EEM

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report

MKREE NRIBEREQE
TREREE ERut

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report

MBEE RIBREQ)E
BEREE EHMM

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report

MKREE NRIRREQE
REREE EHRm

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report
MKREERIEREQE
REREE EMmRuR
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE- G RkERBRSMHE

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

(continued)

(%)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEHR -BE —RRERBARERER

“Comply or explain” Provisions

TRETRER

B(RIRE-HERERRSES)ZHER

Compliance as disclosed
in this report

FREERBEZETHER

A3 Environment
and Natural
Resources:
RIERRAER :

84 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk A EIFR (%) BRAE o

General Disclosure (effective from 2016.1.1)

— R E (2016.1.145 %)

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

HEETABRRRRABERERNERZENBE-

KPI (effective from 2017.1.1)
RARAERISIZ (2017.1.1%30)

KPI A3.1: Description of the significant impacts of activities on
the environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

RARENIERA3 M EREHMHRIERRABERNEALE
RERNERGMEZENITE-

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (3) Environment
and natural resources
management” in this
report

MRS E NRIRREQ)IR
BRRARAEREE EM

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (3) Environment
and natural resources
management” in this
report

MKREERIBEFREQIR
BRRAABEREE EH




Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R -1 ERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B(IRIE- (e RERBREIESINZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (¢=))
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEHR EE —RRBEREARERER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures TREEREZ
TRE TR BEnE BiTiEH

B. Social 1 &

I. Employment and

Labour Practices

—ERERGIER

B1 Employment: General Disclosure

B (effective from 2016.1.1)
—RIE (2016.1.15%)

Information on:
BERFM kAR BEREH
TR BB TEEE %
b RERUAREMEERE
il

&

the policies; and As stated in the section
BiE & headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (1)
Employment principles”
in this report

&

(b) compliance with relevant

el nREd RTERR
. g BRI EBER) E6
on the issuer st
b) BIFHETAEEATE
B ERRRANER

relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE- G RkERBRSMHE

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

(continued)

B(RIRE-HERERRSES)ZHER

(%)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEHR EE —RKBERERERER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

Recommended Disclosures

BERE

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
FREEREZ
1T 1ER

B2 Health and

Safety:
REAZZ:

IRETHER

General Disclosure
(effective from 2016.1.1)
—MRIEE (2016.1.156%)
Information on:
BRRHZE2TERERGER
ERGHEMLBEN

&

the policies; and

B &k

=

(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the issuer

() BFHETAREATE
BRI A ERRAINER o

relating to providing a safe
working environment and
protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

86 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk A EIFR (%) BRAE o

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-MRENER

KPI B1.1
M IERB1.1

KPI B1.2
RSB EMIEIERT 2

Total work force by gender,
employment type, age group
and geographical region.

BUER - BESE FRENK
HEEDNESEE -

Employee turnover rate
by gender, age group and
geographical region.

7R ERARN R REI DK
BEMKL

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (1)
Employment principles”
in this report
NMBREEETEHRA
BRI RER ZH
G

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (1)
Employment principles”
in this report
NMBREEEIRHRA

BR(NERRR 6
it

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report

MBEEETBIRHRA
BRI EBL2HER
M TIERIR S EA




Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B(IRIE- (e RERBREIESINZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (¢=))
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEHR EE —RRBEREARERER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures FHEEHEZ
IRETHBRE BERE BT8R
Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-MRENER

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related  As stated in the section

B SR A5 1%B2.1 fatalities. headed "Employee
AIEBGRMETHAB KL  Practice and Benefit (4)
Ko Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report
NREEEIEHRA
BROBEZ2ARE
M TR IR EHRUL
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. As stated in the section
RN IEIER2.2 RIEERIERSC headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report
NMBREEEIEHRA
BR@REZ2EER
M TR IR EERUL
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational  As stated in the section
BB 151582 3 health and safety measures headed "Employee

adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.

BRFRANBERREZE2H
i URBERTRER S %

Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report
MBEEETBEIRRA
BRI EEL AR
M TIERIE S HAU
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE- G RkERBRSMHE

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B(IRIE- M ERERREIESI ) Z2HER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (&)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEHR EE —RKBERERERER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

IRETHER

Recommended Disclosures
BEHE

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
FREEREZ
1T 1ER

B3 Development
and Training:

BRREN

General Disclosure

(effective from 2016.1.1)

— MR E (2016.1.14%)
Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.

ERRARERTIREN

As stated in the section
headed “employees
Practice and Benefit
(5) Development and
training” in this report

A58 R e BE BB SR o R R AR NHREETBIRRA
Bo BR(5)ERAEI E

Note:  Training refers to vocational
training. It may include
internal and external courses
paid by the employer.

# BIERREEN JeEH
EENENRIMIRE

88 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk A EIFR (%) BRAE o

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-MRENER

KPI'B3.1 The percentage of employees  As stated in the section

B R MI51EB3.1 trained by gender and headed “employees
employee category (e.g. Practice and Benefit
senior management, middle (5) Development and
management). training” in this report
RUEAREEER MEREE NRESEIERA
B-PREERES) ANNT RBUCEBAZIIE
EEBDL- #Rt

KPI B3.2 The average training hours  As stated in the section

B A NIEIEB3.2 completed per employee by headed “employees

gender and employee category.

BRUNREEENID S4E

BRMRIINTEESY-

Practice and Benefit
(5) Development and
training” in this report
MBEETBIRRA
BRIOZEBRASZIE




Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B(IRIE- (e RERBREIESINZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (&)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEHR EE —RRBEREARERER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures FHEEHEZ
IRETHBRE BERE BT8R
B4 Labour General Disclosure
Standards: (effective from 2016.1.1)
SR —BRIE (2016.1.15%)
Information on:
B LEETHREIE T :
(a) the policies; and As stated in the section
@ BE, kK headed "Employee

Practice and Benefit (6)
Labour standards” in

(b) compliance with relevant this report

laws andl regglahoqs that MBLErETHEM
have 3 significant impact B (6)% T 2B B
on the issuer it
b)) BFHETABEARE
HAERE B RAFINER
relating to preventing child and
forced labour.
Recommended Disclosures - KPI
BREKE - RRENIER
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to  As stated in the section
R B MIE1ERA.1 review employment practices to  headed “Employee
avoid child and forced labour. Practice and Benefit (6)
BT REEGMNERLES%  Labour standards” in
BTIREFISETo this report
NMBREEEIEHRA
BR(6) T8 Z&
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to  As stated in the section
FARAEMIEIER4.2 eliminate such practices when headed “Employee
discovered. Practice and Benefit (6)
HRELRERBRAREMRER  Labour standards” in
BRI RN T & this report
NHREEETIERA
&H(6)% TR Z&
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE- G RkERBRSMHE

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

(continued)

B(RIRE-HERERRSES)ZHER

(%)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEHR EE —RKBERERERER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

IRETHER

Recommended Disclosures

BERE

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
FREEREZ
1T 1ER

II. Operating
Practices

" EERA

B5 Supply Chain
Management:

HhAEEEE

General Disclosure
(effective from 2016.1.1)
—fRIKE (2016.1.1%%)
Policies on managing environmental
and social risks of the supply chain.
EEMRERNIRE R SRR

o

90 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bx S BIFE (EHR) BRRAT o

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-MRENER

KPI B5.1
BB MIE1ER5 1

KPI B5.2
RS E MI51EB5.2

Number of suppliers by
geographical region.

BB DHHREHHE
Description of practices relating
to engaging suppliers, number
of suppliers where the practices
are being implemented, how
they are implemented and
monitored.
HAERHEAREENIES P
HEHTHERMEAMNMEREREE
URERBANBTRERS
e

As stated in the section
headed “Supply Chain
Management” in this
report

MKEE MEEEEE)
SR

As stated in the section
headed “Supply Chain
Management (1), (2)
and (3)" in this report

MBEEHERER
(ONO)-EMESiTen




Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R -1 ERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B(IRIE- (e RERBREIESINZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (¢=))
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEHR EE —RRBEREARERER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures FHEEHEZ
IRETHBRE BERE BT8R
II. Operating
Practices
A EERA
B6 Product General Disclosure
Responsibility: (effective from 2016.1.1)
ERAME: —BRIE (2016.1.15%)

Information on:
BRfMREERTRENRER
Z2 BE BERLBEEMU

RERHEN
(a) the policies; and As stated in the section
@) HE; R headed “Product
Responsibility (1)" in
this report
(b) compliance with relevant MREZTEREE))
laws and regulations that E=X-0E 6

have a significant impact
on the issuer

(b)) BTHETABEARE
MR EERAHINER

relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and
services provided and methods
of redress.
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE- G RkERBRSMHE

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B(IRIE- M ERERREIESI ) Z2HER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (&)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEHR EE —RKBERERERER

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
FREEREZ
1T 1ER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

IRETHER

Recommended Disclosures
BElkE
Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-MRENER

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold  As stated in the section
SR B 151286, 1 or shipped subject to recalls for headed “Product
safety and health reasons. Responsibility (1) in
BEXBEXERBHEHAREZE  this report
HEREAMARKNESL MEEEEREE()
St
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service  As stated in the section
B R RN I51E86.2 related complaints received and headed “Product
how they are dealt with. Responsibility (2)" in
BEMARERKRBNKZHFHE  this report
MURFEHF %o MESEEREEQ)
SR
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating ~ As stated in the section
B A NI51EB6.3 to observing and protecting headed "Product
intellectual property rights. Responsibility (1)" in
EAEERRENBEESRR  this report
HYE o MHREETERER))
=g
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance  As stated in the section
HRENI51386.4 process and recall procedures. headed “Product
ERE2BRTBRERERLKE  Responsibility (1)" in
Feo this report
MBREETERER())
S
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data  As stated in the section
RA SR 4B W 3512B6.5 protection and privacy policies, headed “Product
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R -1 ERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, BRIE-HHERERBREIESINZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (&)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEHR EE —RRBEREARERER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures FHEEHEZ
IRETHBRE BERE BT8R
II. Operating
Practices
A EERA
B7 Anti-corruption: General Disclosure
RES: (effective from 2016.1.1)
—RRIE (2016.1.15%)
Information on:
BERIb LI BR  REERA
REMN
(@) the policies; and As stated in the
@ HE;R section headed "Anti-
corruption and
Preventive Measures” in
(b) compliance with relevant this report
laws and regulations that mEEEREBHA

C2: 61

have a significant impact
on the issuer

b) BFHETABEARE
HAEREERAFIRER

relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - ERERBEME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, BRI -HHERERBEIESI N Z2HER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE €))
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEHR EE —RKBERERERER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report

Provisions Recommended Disclosures FHREEHEZ
IREFHBRE BERE BT8R
Recommended Disclosures - KPI
BERE-HRERIEE
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal As stated in the

R R B IR1ZR7 1 cases regarding corrupt practices  section headed “Anti-
brought against the issuer orits corruption and
employees during the reporting  Preventive Measures in
period and the outcomes of the  (1)" this report
cases. MEEEREGHA
RERANHETAZIEREER ()25
I EBENE T RARFNH
BRFMER

KPI B7.2 Description and preventive As stated in the

R EI51Z87.2 measures and whistleblowing  section headed “Anti-

procedures, how they are corruption and
implemented and monitored. Preventive Measures in

BB ERRBRER UK (2)" this report

ERRTRERA % NHREETRESHA
(2) ) E R
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B(IRIE- (e RERBREIESINZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (&)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

TEHR EE —RRBEREARERER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures FHEEHEZ
IRETHBRE BERE BT8R
1ll. Community
= HE
B8 Community General Disclosure
Investment: (effective from 2016.1.1)
HERE: —MREE (2016.1.1£%)

As stated in the section
headed “Community
Development and
Public Welfare” in this

Polices on community engagement
to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities

) ) ) report
take into consideration the MBLEHELSH
communities’ interests. mEN\G SH

BRNUME2ERTBEEME
HEZENRFHEREHEE
BHER EHEE-
Recommended Disclosures - KPI
BERE-MRERER

KPI B8.1 Focus are as of contribution  As stated in the section
B IEIEBS.1 (e.g. education, environmental headed "Community

R & 151288 2

concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).

EIEHER NMBE RES
EHIER -BE X6 B
B) e

Resources contributed (e.g.
money or time) to the focus
area.

HEIEBEMBDAER M
) o

Development and
Public Welfare (1)-(6)"
in this report
NMBREEHELEHA
BENwm(1)-6) JEH
As stated in the section
headed “Community
Development and
Public Welfare” in this
report
NMBREEMHELER
BEQT I EHHM
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Report of Directors

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) present their report and
the audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the production of fermentation-based
amino acids, food additive products and cassava starch based
industrial products. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in Note 9 to the accounts.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these
activities during the year under review.

Preface

For fair review of the Group's business, the description about major
risks and uncertainties and business prospects, please refer to
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
in this Report.

Subsequent events after year end date
No major event that influences business operation of the Group has
occurred since 31 December 2020 (the balance sheet date of the
financial year) until the date of this report.

Analysis of key financial performance indicators

For detailed key financial performance indicators that reflect business
performance of the Group, refer to “Financial Highlights” on page 5
in this Annual Report.

Corporate environmental policy and performance

Environmental protection has always been a key target that the
Group is concerned and works hard on. The Group has worked
out an environmental policy and included environmental protection
in daily management in accordance with related environmental
protection laws and regulations applicable to the production
base. The Group has also helped every employee cultivate their
environmental protection awareness, strengthen the environmental
protection concept, prevent environmental pollution, and cherish the
earth’s natural resources, so as to conserve energy, reduce carbon
footprint, and jointly build a sustainable green enterprise.
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Report of Directors

In line with the national policy for production base, the Group
regularly holds all kinds of environmental safety drills and review
meetings to enhance the disaster response capability of employees,
creates a safe industrial environment for all the employees, and
actively strives to become a model enterprise in labour safety and
health.

The Group will continuously promote its environmental protection
policy to meet the following requirements:

1. Comply with or surpass provisions of the related laws and
internal standards.

2. Carry out corporate activities in light of the principles of paying
attention to personal safety, environmental protection and
resources conservation.

3. Minimize the emission of waste gas, waste water and waste
material as far as technically feasible.

4. Advocate recycling of resources to achieve the objective of
reducing material consumption and waste.

5. Include the concept of environmental protection, safety
and health in employee training and carry out all kinds of
environmental safety and health activities.

6. Check the progress and implementation effect of each plan on
an annual basis and improve deficiencies to achieve the purpose
of continuous improvement.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group constantly updates related laws and regulations applicable
to the production base (in Vietnam and China) and ensures
compliance with them. The Group’s assets are located in Vietnam and
China respectively, while its income mainly comes from operations
of the Vietnam plant. During the year under review, the Group
observed the applicable laws and regulations of the country where
the production base is in all the aspects of significant influences.

Major relationships with employees, customers and suppliers
The Group energetically cultivates local talents of the production
base to become major officers, and provides outside training or
internal training specific to expertise of employees so as to enhance
professional functions of all employees. The Group promotes park-
like construction of plants, offers an elegant working environment
and employee dormitories, sets up books, recreation, balls and
other facilities, and organizes comprehensive and attractive welfare
and recreational activities for employees. The Group has been
implementing its corporate citizenship concept and recruiting
outstanding talents to support its sustainable operations. Neither
strike nor major occupational hazard cases ever occurred during the
year under review.
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Report of Directors

The Group has established sound interactive relationships with
suppliers to realize efficient cooperation and jointly meet the business
requirements of all the customers. The purchase department of
the Group regularly reviews the supply quality with suppliers, and
examines all the production processes of the supply plant on site to
ensure stable and high purchase quality of the Group. Prior to each
purchase project, the Group has clarified the Group's regulations
and standards to the supplier; all purchase processes comply with
the principles of openness, fairness and justice, and agreements are
signed to ensure rights and interests of both parties.

The Group highly values the opinions and views of all customers,
learns the consumption demand trends of customers by using
different methods and pipelines, analyzes customer feedback
regularly, and adjusts the production and marketing plan flexibly to
meet requirements of all the customers and enhance the Group’s
performance gradually. The Group carries out strict control and
inspection of product quality in accordance with international food
regulations so as to provide customers with products and services
of the best quality. The Group signs sales agreements with all the
major customers and distributors and maintains good cooperation
relationships with them by observing the standard sales procedures of
the Group.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 119.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of 0.462
US cents per share, totalling US$7,040,000 (2019: US$3,259,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2020. Subject to shareholders’ approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the final
dividend will be paid in cash on 10 June 2021 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
27 May 2021.

Donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2020 amounting to US$170,000.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s share premium reserve
(subject to the Cayman Companies Law and the articles of association
of the Company) and retained earnings available for distribution to
the Company’s shareholders are set out in Note 16 to the accounts.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31
December 2020.
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Report of Directors

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the percentage of revenue
from sales of goods or rendering of services attributable to the
Group’'s five largest customers combined was less than 30%.
Information in respect of the Group’s major suppliers is as follows:

- The percentage of purchases attributable to the largest supplier
8%

- The percentage of purchases attributable to the five largest
suppliers combined 30%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(who to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued shares) had an interest in these major suppliers.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 3,823 employees,
3,621 of whom were employed by subsidiaries in Vietnam, 183
by subsidiaries in the PRC, 13 by the Taiwan Branch and 7 by the
Cambodia Branch. The Group's employees are remunerated in ac-
cordance with prevailing industry practices, and with reference to the
financial performance of the Group and performance of individual
employees. Other fringe benefits such as accommodations, meals,
insurance, medical coverage and provident fund are provided to
employees to ensure staff loyalty and the Group’s competitiveness.
To enhance the quality of human resources, bolster the professional
skills and management abilities of employees and build localised
workforces, the Group provides job rotation as well as internal
and external training courses and seminars on professional skills,
languages, etc.

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors
YANG, Tou-Hsiung
YANG, Cheng
YANG, Kun-Hsiang
YANG, Chen-Wen
YANG, Kun-Chou

Non-executive Directors
HUANG, Ching-Jung
CHOU, Szu-Cheng

Independent Non-executive Directors
CHAO, Pei-Hong

KO, Jim-Chen

CHEN, Joen-Ray

HUANG, Chung-Fong

BE_Z-ZF+-RB=+—HIEFEE &
BRESANEEGAAGHEERBIRER
BHBABDLELR30% AEBTEHERS
HERIT :

- BRANHEHEFMEHBERE DS

- HESRKNHEBSHAPGHNEESRR
3EE30%

BREEE REBUMBANEARE GLES
FRAERE RN AR ERITRMNEBBS%) R&FE
EHEEREEED -

BE_ZE_TFE+_RA=+—H £&EHEA
BT A#3823% BEZENKABEHER
ElfY3,6210RE - KAPEEME AT E83
LEE-BEDARTINILEERRBEIA
M 7% EE AEERE—MITEERM UL
EEPHRRREENEIRREE RIS M-
EEERMAMEIREMN SEEBE -BER R
F BEERBRNREE URREIZEHER
FEFENGFEFN DHBESTHEEZE AL
BEREREEREN BELAMEBR K&
ETRAETRERB RN LRIERE KRBT
BB EREKRES FRIINBEIIRE R

‘%‘o

REOEFERBEARSBHREENESRN
T

BITES
ZPEY:
¥ 1IE
ke
HRX
bl

FERITESE

=ERE

B#iz

BIFERITES
HER
&1
B 8 3
=iEE

Annual Report 2020 £ %R



Report of Directors

According to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou, Mr. Chou Szu-Cheng,
Mr. Chou, Pei-Hong will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. All such Directors being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 32 to 36.

(@) As at 31 December 2020, the interests of Directors of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO"), were as follows:—

REBEARBDZEBEEMAET()NIF > HERLE
TE-HHNEE BERAERBEERSLSE
RRARBEERRAFERG LWEREFR
BEZEEENERRBEREEEE-

EFEAEREEEBNMEFHNBEI2E36R

(@ MIZZZHE+_A=+—HB HxRAE
ENARBDHEEMEREE (ERRE
FRIAE G EXVER) Z kM~ BRRM
REEETERZEEOT | —

Interests in shares

RGO ZEDR
Number of Percentage of
ordinary shares issued shares

(Long Position) of the Company

Name Capacity TiEREE EERTBEEIT
i 15 (F &) BB
Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung Interest of company 169,730,196 11.15%
ZEEM A controlled by him (Notes 1 and 3)

RHERZ X #E (fF5E1/3)
Mr. YANG, Cheng Interest of company 169,730,196 11.15%
BIESRE controlled by him (Notes 2 and 3)

RHERZ X #E (MfsE253)
Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung Beneficial owner 200,000 0.01%
BERERE BEEBEAA
Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong Beneficial owner 500,000 0.03%
BIEREE BEEBEAA
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Report of Directors

Notes:

1. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung was entitled to exercise or control
the exercise of more than one-third of the voting power
of King International Limited (“King International”). Mr.
YANG, Tou-Hsiung was therefore deemed to have interest
in the 169,730,196 shares of the Company as held by King
International.

2. Mr. YANG, Cheng was entitled to exercise or control the exercise
of more than one-third of the voting power of King International.
Mr. YANG, Cheng was therefore deemed to have interest
in the 169,730,196 shares of the Company as held by King
International.

3. The interests that Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng
had in the 169,730,196 shares were of the same block of shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange; nor had they been granted such
rights.

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes and
updates in Directors’ information during the year ended 31 December
2020 are as follows:

Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray was appointed as the Independent Non-
executive Director of Pili International Multimedia Co.,Ltd. (a publicly-
traded company on the Taiwan Stock Ex-change Corporation) from
26 May 2019. Mr. Chen no longer serves as the Independent Non-
executive Director of Kayee International Group Co., Ltd. (a publicly-
traded company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) from 8
January 2021.

Saved as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
change in the Directors’ information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of the
2019 annual report of the Company.

1. BEBEEBEETERZEHITE
King International Limited (King
Internationall) BB=92Z— 8RR
otz EBEAERMBRAMRKing
Internationali¥ %5 2169,730,196 2 & A
BRMPER T

2. BESXERRITEIIZERITHEKIng
InternationaliBiB =722 —HIRRIE 15
EARERMBERARKing International
HH 169,730,196 &~ A T B D ¥
Ao
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Report of Directors

Each of Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, Mr. YANG, Cheng, Mr. YANG,
Kun-Hsiang and Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial period of three years
commencing on 27 June 2003. Such service agreements may
continue thereafter from year to year until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party to the
other following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at any
time thereafter.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a fixed period of three years commencing on 8 March
2021.

Each of Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung and Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for an initial
term of one year commencing on 27 June 2003. Such service
agreements may continue thereafter from year to year until
terminated by one month’s notice in writing served by either party to
the other following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at
any time thereafter.

Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April 2021.
Mr. Chou and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of
the original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Chou do not agree to extend,
the service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original
term or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service
agreement. During the renewed term, Mr. Chou's appointment may
be terminated by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by
either party to the other.

Mr. KO, Jim-Chen has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April 2021.
Mr. Ko and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of the
original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Ko do not agree to extend, the
service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original term
or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service agreement.
During the renewed term, Mr. Ko's appointment may be terminated
by the giving of one month's notice in writing by either party to the
other.
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Report of Directors

Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April 2021.
Mr. Chen and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of
the original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Chen do not agree to extend,
the service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original
term or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service
agreement. During the renewed term, Mr. Chen’s appointment may
be terminated by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by
either party to the other.

Mr. HUANG, Chung-Fong has a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 22 October 2018.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment,
other than statutory compensation.

Except for the service contracts detailed above and continuing
connected transactions detailed below, no director had a material
interest in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during
the year.

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by or
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty; provided that this indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to any of the Directors.

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company
has not entered into any contract with any individual, firm or body
corporate to manage or administer the whole or any substantial part
of any business of the Company during the year.
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Report of Directors

Transactions with Vedan Enterprise Corporation (“Taiwan
Vedan”)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company entered into
the following transactions with its substantial shareholder, Taiwan
Vedan, a connected person of the Company, which constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company and were subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

BB EERMGARLR (TREKM) Z2X5

BE_TTFE+_A=+—HLEFEE T2
jﬁiﬁi%ﬂx%&%ﬁ@)\iﬁ%%ﬂﬁ T

X5 Mz

ERXGBRBETLEIHRAE14A

EEﬁiﬁ&"ifﬁmZﬁnﬁEﬁLx% P IR T TR
BERETRINFIAETHERFLHARMEKE !

Note Us$'000
B 5% FE=1
A.  Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan A. SR FAHE S W (i) 10,994
B.  Technological support fee paid to B. AR EKAE M (ii) 2,165
Taiwan Vedan RiTZiE &
Notes MisE :

The Group has been selling certain GA (acronym as “glutamic acid”),

MSG (acronym as “monosodium glutamate”) and cassava starch based
industrial products to Taiwan Vedan and its subsidiaries (other than
members of the Group) (“Taiwan Vedan Group”) for use in Taiwan. On
21 December 2017, the Company and Taiwan Vedan entered into an
agreement in respect of the sales of such products by the Group to the
Taiwan Vedan Group for a term of three years from 1 January 2018 to
31 December 2020 (“Taiwan Sales Agreement”). At the relevant time,
the Company estimated that the annual total aggregate amount of
sales of the products to the Taiwan Vedan Group will not exceed the
maximum cap of US$7,000,000 for each of the three financial years
ended 31 December 2020.

On 12 April 2018, the Company and Taiwan Vedan entered into the
supplemental agreement on substantially the same terms as the Taiwan
Sales Agreement, so as to revise the annual cap for the continuing
connected transactions under the Taiwan Sales Agreement for each of
the three financial years ending 31 December 2020 from US$7,000,000
to US$30,000,000.

US$10,994,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of
sales of the products by the Group to the Taiwan Vedan Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2020, which has not exceeded the
relevant maximum cap of US$30,000,000 as disclosed in the previous
announcement dated 12 April 2018.

On 7 December 2020, the Company and Taiwan Vedan agreed to
extend the Taiwan Sales Agreement for a term of three years from 1
January 2021 to 31 December 2023. At the relevant time, the Company
estimated that the annual total aggregate amount of sales of the
products to the Taiwan Vedan Group will not exceed the maximum
cap of US$7,000,000 for each of the three financial years ending 31
December 2023. The Directors believe that the sale of goods to the
Taiwan Vedan Group pursuant to the Taiwan Sales Agreement will
generate additional income to the Group.
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Report of Directors

(i)

(iii)

The Taiwan Vedan Group has been providing certain technological
support services to the Group. On 21 December 2017, the Company
and Taiwan Vedan entered into an agreement in respect of the provision
of such services by the Taiwan Vedan Group to the Group for a term of
three years from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020 (“Technology
Support Agreement”). At the relevant time, the Company estimated
that the annual total aggregate amount of service fee payable pursuant
to the Technology Support Agreement will not exceed the maximum
cap of US$2,500,000 for each of the three financial years ending 31
December 2020.

US$2,165,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of
service fee payable by the Group to the Taiwan Vedan Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2020, which has not exceeded the
relevant maximum cap of US$2,500,000 as disclosed in the previous
announcement dated 21 December 2017.

On 7 December 2020, the Company and Taiwan Vedan agreed to
extend the Technology Support Agreement for a term of three years
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. At the relevant time,
the Company estimated that the annual total aggregate amount of
service fee payable pursuant to the Technology Support Agreement will
not exceed the maximum cap of US$2,500,000 for each of the three
financial years ending 31 December 2023. The Directors believe that the
technology support from Taiwan Vedan Group will benefit the Group's
future business developments.

The prices of goods and services provided to connected persons of the
Company are determined within the normal commercial price range
and the price quotation of the product is determined after taking
into account the production cost and the local market price of the
product with an aim to maintain the overall gross profit margin within
a reasonable range. The management of the Company has reviewed
the prices of transactions with connected persons and those with other
independent customers on a quarterly basis to ensure that the pricing
and terms with connected persons are fair and reasonable, and has
reported the relevant information at least once every six months to the
Board for review.

Confirmations

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions for the year ended
31 December 2020 have been reviewed by Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company. The Independent Non-executive
Directors confirmed that the aforesaid connected transactions were
entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) on normal commercial terms or better; and (c) according
to the agreement governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders as a
whole.
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Report of Directors

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group on pages 104 to 105 of the annual report in
accordance with paragraph 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 32
to the accounts. Save for the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above, none of these related party transactions constitutes
a connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules which
requires to be disclosed.

Save for the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
and certain other continuing connected transactions/connected
transactions which is exempted from reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, during the reporting year,
there were no other transactions which constituted connected
transaction or continuing connected transactions that were subject to
the reporting requirements under the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the requirements for connected
transactions in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 210 of the annual
report.
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Report of Directors

So far as known to the Company, as at 31 December 2020, other
than the interests of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
as disclosed above, the following persons had interests in the shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

BARBMA R-_BE_EF+_A=+—
H BREXFRBEAADEFHARSTHRAES
BN UTALTRERF RN FHEERE
BERHAERPIBEXVERE 2R B3D B Z IR XA
BAATKENED  HIALRBRBES
REAGIRGIE336IRFIFE 2 B o MBI !

Number of
ordinary Percentage of
shares issued shares
(Long Position) of the Company
Name Capacity ZiEkEE EERTE
RaE 515 (#FR) BITRMBESL
Billion Power Limited (“Billion Power") Beneficial owner 512,082,512 33.62%
E@mBEAA (Note 1)
(BFEET)
Vedan Enterprise Corporation Interest held by its controlled 512,082,512 33.62%
("Taiwan Vedan”) corporation (Note 1)
R EERMERAT (T&EK) RHEEZERZGEZ#x (BFEET)
King International Beneficial owner 169,730,196 11.15%
BHEAA
Concord Worldwide Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 127,297,646 8.36%
BmEAA
High Capital Investments Limited Beneficial owner 127,297,646 8.36%
BHEAA
REECERNBRAS Beneficial owner 83,348,000 5.47%
BmEAA
Notes: PEE -
1. Billion Power was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiwan Vedan. Taiwan 1. Billion Power &EBKANEZEMB AR > K

Vedan was therefore deemed to be interested in these 512,082,512
shares held by Billion Power.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Company, as at
31 December 2020, no other person (not being a Director or chief
executives of the Company) had any interests or short positions in
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Annual Report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float.

BEKWIRAEE %L HEBillion PowerFif
B22512,082, 512Dz
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Report of Directors

Five Directors of the Company, namely, Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung,
YANG, Cheng, YANG, Kun-Hsiang, YANG, Chen-Wen and YANG,
Kun-Chou were also directors of the Group's controlling shareholder,
Taiwan Vedan. In addition, Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, YANG,
Cheng, YANG, Kun-Hsiang, YANG, Chen-Wen and YANG, Kun-Chou
indirectly held approximately 19.77 percent., 9.89 percent., 6.18
percent., 8.24 percent, and 6.18 percent. interest in Taiwan Vedan,
respectively and they were therefore considered as having an interest
in Taiwan Vedan under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

The Taiwan Vedan Group is principally engaged in, inter alia, the
production of food additive products, including MSG products, and
beverages in Taiwan, which may compete with the Group’s business
operations in respect of the product portfolio of the Group (“Product
Portfolio”).

Since Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and YANG, Cheng are both
responsible only for the overall strategic planning and the business
development of the Taiwan Vedan Group and the Group and the daily
operations of the Group are managed by Messrs. YANG, Kun-Hsiang
and YANG, Chen-Wen together with an independent management
team. In Taiwan Vedan, Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou is mainly responsible
for the sales of the products of the Company and products of other
companies which the Company acts as an agent within Taiwan.
In the Group, he provides guidance and assistance for selling the
Group’s products in Vietnam and the PRC markets. Taiwan Vedan
and the Group are operated by separate sales teams which are
independent of each other, while market segmentation shall comply
with the details of the territorial delineation agreement signed by
the Group and Taiwan Vedan. The Directors are of the view that
the management and the operational functions of the Group are
independent of and separate from those of other members of the
Taiwan Vedan Group.

For safeguarding the interests of the Group, the Independent Non-
executive Directors and the Audit Committee of the Company would
on a regular basis review the business and operational results of the
Group to ensure, inter alia, that the Group's business operations in
respect of the Product Portfolio is and continues to be run on the
basis that it is independent of, and at arm’s length from, that of
Taiwan Vedan.

The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board

YANG, Kun-Hsiang
Director and Chief Executive Officer
23 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

_E
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VEDAN INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Vedan International
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 117 to 209, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment of

goodwill.

Key Audit Matter
RSBt R

RAOESEFPHNFAREAFTREAHERE
R

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB N RIEMRBE N EE

Impairment of goodwill for the PRC MSG related
business

PEREERESNEERE

Refer to note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

F2RRAMBRRWES

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
goodwill is US$8.5 million, including US$7.8 million
for the PRC MSG related business, before provision
of impairment of goodwill of US$6.7 million which
is all attributable to the PRC MSG related business.
As described in the Note 2.7 to the consolidated
financial statements, goodwill impairment assessments
are undertaken annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment.

R _E_EFEF+_A=+—HB HREDPEKEERAE
BREEREEETBEEETA  BEREERSSA
BEn GEPEREEBESHNEEREDE/ CEEE
Too MR B M IRRNEE2. 7Pt BB FETRE
M TERASBSGLRNERNEE R EHIRBE
B> (EH SRR 5T A o

In carrying out the impairment assessment of goodwill
for the PRC MSG related business, management
determined the recoverable amount based on the higher
of value-in-use (“VIU") and the fair value less cost of
disposal ("FVLCD") calculations of the cash-generating
unit ("CGU"). In the absence of a market comparable,
management adopted the income approach and used
discounted cash flow (“DCF”) forecast to determine the
recoverable amount of the CGU under both VIU and
FVLCD methods and considered the recoverable amount
under the VIU method to be higher.
POETHEIREHAEBN B ERENGE SEER
BEREE (FRGEE) ABRNREEMN (HIUREE
i) ZAFEREERES (R FERBERE)) 2518
UREBEAE) EEIWREESE ANTIHL R
RIER BEBERMBRAERERARRREERE (T8
RRERE)) B UEEFERABERRAFEREER
FEBETHRNREBEUMNTKRE SR TAREHREE
FETAWEIEERRS -

We understood, evaluated and tested management’s
internal control and assessment process of impairment of
goodwill for PRC MSG related business and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and
susceptibility to management bias or fraud.

BMHETH TERAAEEEHPREKGHEBERNG
BN ERNANIBEG R EBERE TEBEEMEFREM

TEREEREIUGFHNTE NEE  THERHERNES
LR ©

We evaluated the appropriateness and consistency of
assumptions and estimates applied in financial budget
prepared by management such as sales growth rate, gross
margin and discount rate by comparing with relevant market
rates, current year and historical trends of the business and
the industry and management’s development plans.
BMEEBALEBREATE EBRTEZAFERELE
BURBEEEZERHGE TERANEEERE M
FEEPNER R HEERE - EANXRITREL) W
BEMR—HE-
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key Audit Matter
RSBt EIE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KBt EERE S EE

The DCF calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets prepared by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows of the related
CGU beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
the estimated growth rates.

MRS REFNENUEEERRN 2 AFHMBEEES
BEERBRRAIRSRESTER - 81 H F 8RB E
ReBUNREeERESEAGMERERR

The recoverable amount of the CGU for the PRC MSG
related business determined based on DCF was lower
than the carrying amount, and therefore, a further
provision for impairment of goodwill of US$3.1 million
was recognised against goodwill of PRC MSG related
business for the year ended 31 December 2020.
RIFBEMIRIAEREE TN PEKIBEBES 2 RIIRE
BuzrakbsfBERrHEREE Bt #E_2°F
F+ZA=Z+—HUEEE B EKBEHEBESNE
ERDE—TNHERERHFHEI1IBEET

We focused on auditing the impairment of goodwill
including the related disclosures because the calculation
is subject to high degree of estimation uncertainty. The
inherent risk in relation to the impairment assessment of
goodwill is considered significant due to the complexity
of the methods, subjectivity of significant assumptions
used, and/or significant judgements involved in selecting
data.

BMEINBEHERE (BFEERARE)  AREHE
FERSEENMGEGAEES AR A ENEMRML A
FRBARBMNEHRER RIEBHIRE S RNEXH
g HEm SR ET G EENE R AR RSBEK
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We involved our internal valuation specialist to assess
the valuation methodology, discount rate adopted and
the numerical accuracy of the calculations prepared by
management.

AR EEERE2ETGEEEENKER E KA
NITIRERETEN BB %R -

We challenged management’s sensitivity analysis which
considers the effect of reasonably possible changes of major
assumptions including sales growth rate, gross margin and
discount rate to the recoverable amount of goodwill.
RMEEREEENBREST EFEEETERRATLE
HIEMNSES NS SEHEEERER EMRKEHET
Bl EHAITIREK -

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to
impairment of goodwill in the context of the applicable
financial reporting framework.
EMBRBEERNMBREERTGH T HHERES AR
BRI

We also considered whether the judgements made in
selecting the method, significant assumptions and data
would give rise to indicators of possible management bias.
KMTEZBEEERSE ERABRRAEIEEFHOFE
AL IREEERRENIER

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that
the risk assessment of impairment of goodwill remained
appropriate and the method, significant assumptions and
data used by management in the assessment of impairment
of goodwill for the PRC MSG related business including
the related disclosures were supported by the available
evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Other information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk IR (382 AR A S
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Independent Auditor’s Report

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threads or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Chiu Kong, Edmond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2021
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December

®W+=ZB=+—H
2020 2019
—E_THF —E-NEF
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
B 5% FE FE7
ASSETS =13
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERZE 6 164,595 149,072
Right-of-use assets EREEE 7 4,914 5,073
Intangible assets EREE 8 2,096 4,746
Long-term prepayments and other REFEMMRIER
receivables Hih W ERIE 13 3,711 2,897
Investment in an associate R—REBE QT
ZKkE 10 4,903 6,020
Total non-current assets EREIEEMLE 180,219 167,808
Current assets MENEE
Inventories | 12 91,665 95,828
Trade receivables FEUN & 5 BR X 13 30,298 29,511
Prepayments and other receivables FENRIEREM
FE U =R I8 13 11,337 15,975
Amounts due from related parties FEWBREALRIE  32(d) 862 954
Structured bank deposits EEBMIRITER 14 7,982 2,293
Short-term bank deposits and ZHASR1TE A &
pledged bank deposits EHIRITEMR 14 21,817 15,980
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEBY 14 42,359 41,127
Total current assets TEBEELE 206,320 201,668
Total assets HERE 386,539 369,476
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of EKATHEEA
the Company et
Share capital %N 15 15,228 15,228
Reserves i 16 285,832 272,286
301,060 287,514
Non-controlling interest JEER S 210 213
Total equity W AR5 301,270 287,727
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December

®+ZHA=+—H
2020 2019
—E_THF —E-NEF
Note USs$’000 Us$'000
B 5% FE FET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities EREER
Bank borrowings RTEE 18 13,986 15,376
Lease liabilities HEaR 7 2,818 3,016
Deferred income tax liabilities IRIEFRSR AR 19 2,134 2,705
Retirement benefit obligations BAENEE 27 1,460 1,414
Long-term environmental provision REFIRIG B E 17 - 444
Total non-current liabilities ERBEELELE 20,398 22,955
Current liabilities mENARE
Trade payables FE{T B S BRFR 17 6,963 12,784
Accruals and other payables FEST & B R HAth
FE{d TR 1B 17 20,665 18,816
Amounts due to related parties FEdBEREALRIE  32(d) 1,358 1,351
Bank borrowings RITEE 18 32,373 24,748
Lease liabilities HEaR 7 199 111
Current income tax liabilities BNERFR SR Aas 3,313 984
Total current liabilities e B EEEE 64,871 58,794
Total liabilities B EL%E 85,269 81,749
Total equity and liabilities EankaERE 386,539 369,476

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction  Eiti4z& B &E & &K FEE R 48R M 5 — 5 59
with the accompanying notes. i o

The consolidated financial statements on pages 117 to 209 were HRFEI17E200BEZFEaHBREEN_Z

approved by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2021 and were Z——SZ=ZA_+=HAEEFGHZMRITHTIA
signed on its behalf. THREKREZ

Yang, Tou-Hsiung Yang, Kun-Hsiang

iR ERLE i i

Director Director

EE EZE

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk IR (382 AR A S



Consolidated Income Statement

Year ended 31 December

B#E+_A=1+—HLEFE

2020 2019
ZEZEHF —E-NEF
Note Us$'000 US$'000
B 5 FET FE7T
Revenue W %5 5 360,741 357,857
Cost of sales 4 & Al A 21 (288,185) (291,292)
Gross profit EF 72,556 66,565
Selling and distribution expenses HERSIHEX 21 (25,173) (25,081)
Administrative expenses THREX 21 (21,638) (22,618)
Other (losses)/gains — net Hith (B518) W=
—F%E 20 (2,866) 1,093
Operating profit BEET 22,879 19,959
Finance income BB A 728 871
Finance costs B (473) (918)
Finance income/(costs) — net BB A . (Z )
—FEE 22 255 (47)
Share of post-tax loss of an associate E{E—REE AT
RIS B AES1E 10 (1,117) (99)
Profit before income tax PREFEEMAIEF 22,017 19,813
Income tax expense FRrEMEX 23 (5,340) (4,228)
Profit for the year INEEHEF 16,677 15,585
Profit attributable to: UTEFESET
Owners of the Company KABEE A 16,650 15,563
Non-controlling interest JEER S 27 22
16,677 15,585
Earnings per share for profit KATHEE AEMN
attributable to the owners of FERBAHNZERER
the Company during the year (UESBEWTIR
(expressed in US cents per share)
Basic earnings per share SREXEH 25 1.09 1.02
Diluted earnings per share SRBEEF 25 1.09 1.02

The above consolidated income statement should be read in itz AUREREERIBRAME—FHRIE-
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 December

B#E+_-_A=+—HLFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —Z—hEF
US$’000 US$'000
FE=7x FEx
Profit for the year KEEEH 16,677 15,585
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hit2Ema=s (§5i8) -
Item that may be reclassified to profit or lossB] E#fr H 4B E #8722 B H
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal H & — & Hi B A &) ¥
of a subsidiary RIREREE = (3,707)
Currency translation differences EREZE 3,102 (576)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for EEERREEMEE
the year, net of tax W, (B518) 3,102 (4,283)
Total comprehensive income for TEEEZ@EBRALLE
the year 19,779 11,302
Total comprehensive income for UTEFEILEEE
the year attributable to: PHEUW AL :
— Owners of the Company i WYAEIE 2= DN 19,752 11,280
- Non-controlling interest —FEER R 27 22
Total comprehensive income EEEZTEMRALLE
for the year 19,779 11,302

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAFEEAER
Non-
Share Share  Exchange Merger ~ Statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interest equity

ke REE  EREE  AHEE  AERE  REERA @it FRREE  ESEE
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
T%n TEn R %0 TEn TER TER TEn TEn

Balance at 1 January 2019 RIE-h&E
—B—-Bzf&EH 15,228 47,358 11,057 79,994 828 131,891 286,356 326 286,682

Comprehensive income 2EHA
Profit for the year EEER - - - - - 15,563 15,563 2 15,585
Other comprehensive loss Hitt2EHR
Release of exchange reserve upon HE-BHBATR

disposal of a subsidiary BREQHE - - (3,707) - - - (3,707) - (3,707)
Currency translation differences ERER - - (576) - - - (576) - (576)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2 (548 / WALE - - (4,283) - - 15,563 11,280 2 11,302

Total transactions with owners ~ SEBEAZBRZE
Non-controlling interest for disposal ~ HE—HHBARZ

of a subsidiary (Note 33) JFRmREE (M5E33) - - - - - - - (105) (105)
Dividends (Note 24) RS (fz24) - - - - - (10122 (10,122) - (10,122)
Dividend payable to non-controlling ~ FEff—FEHBAR Z

interest of a subsidiary FERERZRE - - - - - - - (30) (30)

Balance at 31 December 2019 RIE-hE

+ZB=+-Rz#&H 15,228 47,358 6,774 79,994 828 137,332 287,514 213 287,727
Balance at 1 January 2020 RZBZEE

—R—BZ%&# 15,228 47,358 6,774 79,994 828 137,332 287,514 213 287,727
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit for the year EEERT - - - - - 16,650 16,650 27 16,677
Other comprehensive income HtZERA
Currency translation differences ERER - - 3,102 - - - 3,102 - 3,102
Total comprehensive income 2ERALE - - 3,102 - - 16,650 19,752 27 19,779

Total transactions with owners AREAZERSE

Dividends (Note 24) RS (5E24) - - - - - (6,206) (6,206) - (6,206)
Dividend payable to non-controlling ~ FEff—FMBAR Z
interest of a subsidiary FERERZRE - - - - - - - (30) (30)

Balance at 31 December 2020 R-B_B%
+ZB=+—-Rz#&8 15,228 47,358 9,876 79,994 828 147,776 301,060 210 301,270

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be L #lt4z & #E &5 & 8) K FE 32 (5] 48 BE B 53 — 1 BT

A

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 December

B#E+_-_A=+—HLFE

2020 2019
—E-THF “E—-NEF
Note us$’'000 Us$'000
M &E FET TFE7T
Cash flows from operating activities REEBREEXZ
RERE
Cash generated from operations E¥RELZIRS 29(a) 50,037 28,135
Interest paid BEFE (763) (1,107)
Income taxes paid B ER (3.632) (3,372)
Net cash generated from REEBEEXZ
operating activities RS FEE 45,642 23,656
Cash flows from investing activities KREFFEEZ
RERE
Purchases of property, BEVME -BERSZHE
plant and equipment (35,647) (16,561)
Proceeds from disposal of HEME BERKH
property, plant and equipment Z e sIa 29(a) 8 3
Purchases of intangible assets ,E%;;mﬂfﬁé 8 (76) (5)
Increase in short-term bank GHARITE R &
deposits and pledged bank deposits BIRIRE T N (5,837) (638)
(Increase)/decrease in structured bank EEMIRITER
deposits (g R (5,208) 6,595
Return on structured bank deposits EEMIRITER
PACIE:S 155 -
Interest received BUYFE 728 534
Net cash used in investing activities BEEHFIAZ
4558 (45,877) (10,072)
Cash flows from financing activities MEETHEEZ
RERE
Dividends paid BiRE 24 (6,206) (10,122)
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITEE Fﬁ?%?’ﬂ 72,536 59,715
Repayment of bank borrowings BERIETEER (66,299) (55,807)
Principal elements of lease payment HEMRZETERG (114) (324)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEEFFAAZ
REFEE (83) (6,538)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HERIRSTLEEY
cash equivalents GRZL) /8 hni3%E (318) 7,046
Cash and cash equivalents REVIZRER
at beginning of year &L EY 14 41,127 34,215
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and REKRRELEBEY 2
cash equivalents ERUE (F518) 1,550 (134)
Cash and cash equivalents REXRZRER
at end of year RELEY 14 42,359 41,127

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in Lti#iiz SRS REREER MM T — 4
conjunction with the accompanying notes. o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) manufacture and sell
fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products and
cassava starch-based industrial products including modified
starch, glucose syrup, Monosodium Glutamate (“MSG"),
soda and glutamic acid (“GA"). The products are sold to
food distributors, international trading companies, and
manufacturers of food, paper, textiles, and chemical products in
Vietnam, other ASEAN member countries, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"), Japan, Taiwan, and several European
countries.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box
10008, Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand Cayman KY1-
1001, Cayman Islands.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars ("US$'000"), unless otherwise stated.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements
are for the group consisting of Vedan International (Holdings)
Limited and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"”) and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap.622. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for the structured bank deposits
measured at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a high degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE @
(a)  New standards and amendments to standards (a) FKEEFRPZHTZERRZER

adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new standards
and amendments to standards which are mandatory
for the Group for the first time for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2020:

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of material
(Amendments)

HKFRS 3
(Amendments)

Definition of business

HKFRS 9, HKAS
39 and HKFRS 7
(Amendments)

Hedge accounting

Conceptual
Framework for
Financial Reporting
2018

Revised conceptual
framework for
financial reporting

The adoption of the above new standards and
amendments to standards did not have any material
impact on the current period or any prior periods.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk IR (382 AR A S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

The following new standards and amendments to
standards have been issued, but are not effective
for the financial year beginning on 1 January 2020
and have not been early adopted.

2.1 REEE (E)
b)) UTABEGER-ZZE
F—B—BHBzHBREE
iR TRE IR BT 2 B
R RAER ZE5TA

Effective for
annual periods
beginning

on or after
RTFBEAHZE
Mz EFEIRAER

HKAS 39, HKFRS 4,

Interest rate benchmark reform —

HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS  Phase 2

16 (Amendments)
BEAGERFE395%

ERAMBREENFEIR

EBMBREERH7H

ERVYBREENFIRK

BEEMBREEL

81658 (IBFT74)
Annual Improvements

Project (Amendments)

FENERE (BFTX)

HKFRS 3, HKAS 16 and
HKAS 37 (Amendments)

BEAMBREENEIN
ERAGHENE 169K
BB G EREI7R
(1B5T2%)

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

EBGERE 1R
(1BsT=%)

HKFRS 17

BRAMBHRESERNE175R

HKFRS 17 (Amendments)

BARAMBRESENE 7R
(EET %)

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

EBMBRESELF 165
(1B5T2%)

FRBENE-F MR

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2018 — 2020

ERMBBREEN _Z-N\EE

1 January 2021

—E_—%F—H—H

1 January 2022

2 "F—A—H

TECTEBRCEENE

Narrow-scope amendments

NEBEMEET

Classification of liabilities as
current or non-current

mEIFRBRESE

Insurance contracts
RIBE#
Amendments to HKFRS 17

EBPBREENFE 175 (1BTH)

Covid-19-related rent concessions

MEMXEREERR

1 January 2022

- _#F#—HA—H

1 January 2023

—_E_=—H—H
1 January 2023
—E-=%—A—H
1 January 2023
—E=F—H—H
1 June 2020

—EEFEXA—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b)  The following new standards and amendments to
standards have been issued, but are not effective
for the financial year beginning on 1 January 2020
and have not been early adopted. (continued)

2.1

RNEE (@

(b)

UTFRAEBEMER-ZT R
F-R—BRBZHBEE
iH R ER > TR AT R Z 3
R R R ZEET A - (1)

Effective for
annual periods
beginning

on or after
RTFBEBHZ%E
Fis 2 EFEIRAER

HK Int 5 (2020)

BRERESHS
(Z2ZFH)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
presentation of financial statements
— classification by the Borrower of a
term loan that contains a repayment on
demand clause (HK Int 5 (2020))

ERREESE (C2I2H) MBRRZ
2 -EEAHEEREREBERZ
BEHERZ2E (BERESSR
(ZE2ZZH))

Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint

1 January 2023

—E-_=F—8F—H

To be determined

venture
BAEAMBHRESENE 10K KX
BEARAGERIE285%R
(CHIEN)

BEEHEHIE

The directors of the Company have assessed the
financial impact on the Group of the adoption
of the above new standards and amendments
to standards. There are no new standards and
amendments to standards that are not yet effective
and that would be expected to have a material
impact on the Group in the future reporting periods
and on foreseeable future transactions. The Group
intends to adopt the above new standards and
amendments to standards when they become
effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

(a)  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity's
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
Consolidation (continued)

2.2.1

(a)

Business combinations (continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’'s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
Consolidation (continued)

2.2.1

(a)

(@

Business combinations (continued)
Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the
Group's accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate (Note 2.3), or financial
asset (Note 2.9). In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2

2.3

Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements of the Company
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group's investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3

2.4

Associates (continued)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of post-tax loss of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial
information of associate has been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Executive Directors of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.5

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in US$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement within ‘other
gains — net’.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, except for construction-
in-progress, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

— Properties 15-50 years
— Plant and machinery 10-20 years
— Motor vehicles 5-8 years
— Office equipment 5-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘other gains — net’, in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress, comprising capital expenditure
on buildings and plant where the construction work has
not been completed, is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for
construction-in-progress.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.7

Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

(c)

Gooawill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units ("CGUs”"),
or groups of CGUs, expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.

Trademarks and license

Separately acquired trademarks and the license,
which have finite useful lives, are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of trademarks and
license over their estimated useful lives of 6 to 10
years.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.8

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair
value through profit or loss, and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

They are included in current assets, except for
amounts that are settled or expected to be settled
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost
comprise trade and other receivables (Note 2.12),
amounts due from related parties, short-term bank
deposits and pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents (Note 2.13) in the consolidated
balance sheet. The Group's financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss comprise structured
bank deposits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.9

Financial assets (continued)

2.9.1

292

293

Classification (continued)

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset.

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at
amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income when
the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest
income from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective interest
rate method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.9

Financial assets (continued)
2.93 Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net
within other gains/(losses) in the period in
which it arises.

2.9.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instrument carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk. Note 3.1(b) details how the Group
determines whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.

For other receivables and amounts due from related
parties, the impairment provision is determined
based on the 12-month expected credit losses.

When measuring expected credit loss, the Group
considers both historical default rate and forward-
looking information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.10

2.12

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

The Group has no offsetting financial instruments in the
consolidated balance sheets as of 31 December 2019 and
2020.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Consumables are included within inventories and stated
at cost, using the weighted average method.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

Trade and other receivables (continued)

The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets
is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement within administrative expenses. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.17

2.18

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowings costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(@)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company, the Company's subsidiaries
and associate operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

2.19 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. A defined
benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.

The liability recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of high quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and
that have terms to maturity approximating to the
terms of the related pension obligation. In countries
where there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.19 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations (continued)

The current service cost of a defined benefit plan,
recognised in the consolidated income statement in
employee benefit expense, except where included
in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee
service in the current year, benefit changes,
curtailments and settlements.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to a termination
and when the entity has a detailed formal plan to
terminate the employment of current employees
without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.19

2.20

Employee benefits (continued)

(c)  Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(d)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs, and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.21 Revenue and other income recognition

(a)

(b)

(c)

Sales of goods

Sales are recognised when control of the product
has transferred, being when the product is on board
for delivery, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
product. The risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the customer upon delivery or
the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue from the sale of goods is based on the
price specified in the sales contracts. No element of
financing is deemed present as the sales are made
with a credit term from cash on delivery to 60 days,
which is consistent with market practice.

Receivable is recognised when the product is
delivered as this is the point in time when the
consideration is unconditional, which only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities primarily relate to the deposits or
payments received in advance for sales of goods not
yet delivered to customers. Revenue is recognised
when goods are delivered to customers.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.22 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the fixed payments.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third
party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.22 Leases (continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability; and

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost represents consideration paid for the rights to
use the land on which various plants and buildings are
situated for 50 years. Amortisation of land use rights
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of
leases.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases
of low-value assets are recognized on a straight-line basis
as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office
furniture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.23

2.24

3.1

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

Dividends proposed or declared after the reporting period
but before the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, are disclosed as a non-adjusting
event and are not recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.

Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate. If the grants do
not relate to any specific expenditure incurred and all
attached condition were complied by the Group, they
are recognised under “other gains — net” in consolidated
income statement upon receipt of the grants.

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risks), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (group treasury) under policies approved
by the board of directors. Group treasury identifies and
evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group’s operating units. The board provides principles
for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk

(a)

0]

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Vietnam Dong and Renminbi
against US$. Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations, which the Group does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management of the Group monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

At 31 December 2020, if the Vietnam Dong
had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the US$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
Us$1,777,000 (2019: US$1,442,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
losses/gains on translation of Vietnam Dong-
denominated trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other payables.

At 31 December 2020, if the Renminbi had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the
US$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have
been US$2,000 (2019: US$21,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
losses/gains on translation of non-Renminbi-
denominated trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other payables in subsidiaries which use RMB
as functional currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

(if)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets apart from bank balances, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group
exposure to interest rate risk related
primarily to variable rate bank borrowings of
US$39,743,000 (2019: US$28,908,000) and
fixed rate bank borrowings of US$6,616,000
(2019: US$11,216,000).

Borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk,
and borrowings issued at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. As
the tenure of the fixed-rate bank borrowings
range from one to two years, the directors
consider the exposures of present value
interest rate return to be insignificant. The
Group does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, management of the Group
monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2020, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
US$169,000 (2019: US$123,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on variable rate borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)  Credit risk
Credit risk arises from bank deposits and bank
balances, trade receivables, other receivables and
amounts due from related parties.

)

(if)

Risk management

The carrying amount of bank deposits and
bank balances, trade receivables, other
receivables and amounts due from related
parties included in the consolidated balance
sheet represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to these
financial assets.

The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers
with appropriate credit histories. The Group
has policies to assess the credit quality of the
customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal
or external ratings. The utilisation of credit
limits is regularly monitored.

For bank deposits and bank balances,
the Group only uses banks and financial
institutions with good reputation. As at
31 December 2020 and 2019, all the bank
balances as detailed in Note 14 are held in
major financial institutions, which are either
state owned or with high credit quality.
Management believes that the credit risk for
bank deposits and bank balances is minimal.

Impairment of financial assets

While structured bank deposits, short-term
bank deposits, pledged bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents are also subject to
the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(if)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected losses for all trade
receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

In respect of trade receivables, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that the
sales of goods are made to customers
with appropriate credit history and the
Group performs credit evaluations of these
counterparties and customers. The credit
periods of the majority of these trade
receivables are within 60 days and largely
comprise amounts receivable from business
customers. Given the track record of regular
repayment of receivables from customers,
the directors are of the opinion that the risk
of default by customers is not significant.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of trade
receivables is assessed to be close to zero.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HEERBKEERZR (@)
(b)  Credit risk (continued) b) EFERE #E)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued) iy HMHBEEEZHE @

FEWRE ZERFR (18)

TEHRRIEETL S B &
A ZEZE2EFE+ZA
=+—H#36ME 8 HR
ZHEMRES RN
HARKREZBEES S
EFEE-BELEEXE
AEURMEBEZER
FEMERHREREDZ
RBRBERNEZ EFi K%

Trade receivables (continued)

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period
of 36 months before 31 December 2020
and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables. The

Group has identified the GDP in which it sells AEMERN -KANEEE
its goods and services to be the most relevant HAHEHE S m&RR
factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical BEEMZBEANEER

ERAREREZ LR
BRSARZERED
MBS BIER-

loss rates based on expected changes in these
factors.

EUER L RZE
TER-F-NF+Z
A=+—B2EKES
AR A 2 A5 R

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31
December 2020 and 2019 was determined
as follows for both trade receivables and
contract assets:

BRELDETOT
More than
1-180 days  181-360 days 360 days
Current past due past due past due Total
Z3C% jali o o
31 December 2020 +-B=+-H B 1£180H 1813608 #3608 At
Expected loss rate BHERE 0.01% 0.89% 20% 100%
Gross carrying amount RIRERE
- trade receivables -BBEBZRT
(US$'000) (Fxm) 28,024 2,251 57 328 30,660
Loss allowance (US$'000) BREE (TE1) 3 20 11 328 362
More than
1-180 days ~ 181-360 days 360 days
Current past due past due past due Total
ZE-NE k] B B
31 December 2019 +ZA=+-H BN 1£1808 1813608 #i8360H Bt
Expected loss rate ki) opi kS 0.01% 0.22% 20% 100%
Gross carrying amount RIRER
- trade receivables -EREBZRT
(Us$'000) (F£7) 7,940 21,432 233 394 29,999
Loss allowance (US$'000) BEEE (TET) 1 47 46 394 488
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)
As at 31 December 2020, the loss allowances
for trade receivables were US$362,000 (2019:
US$488,000). Management are of opinion
that that adequate provision for uncollectible
receivable has been made.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Other receivables, amount due from an
associate and amounts due from related
parties

The management considers that its credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition with reference to the counterparty
historical default rate and current financial
position. The impairment provision is
determined based on the 12-month expected
credit losses which is minimal.

Liquidity risk
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group’s
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity
requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group's liquidity reserve which comprises undrawn
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents
on the basis of expected cash flows. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.1

(c)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going

concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new

shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MBAMRER (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) (c) HEEZEMR #)
The table below analyses the Group's financial T RERGEEHESHNE
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based MBsGRTHESEAERZM
on the remaining period at the balance sheet BEESAEMIEAARE
date to the contractual maturity date. The TR -NEREPIEBEZEEE
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual BENRERIRERE -
undiscounted cash flows.
Less than Between Between
Tyear 1and2years 2and5years Over5 years Total
—-ER —EERE REELE BRLE Bt
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

SE SE SEH SEVH ST

At 31 December 2020 AZEIEE
TZA=t-H
Bank borrowings (Note) RITEE (f13) 14,939 5,676 26,760 730 48,106
Lease liabilities (Note) REEE () 282 282 1,128 2,006 3,738
Trade payables ELERED 6,963 - - - 6,963
Other payables and accruals  EftFE FER Ext & A 7,451 - - - 7,451
Amounts due to related partiesFE{I B RIE A LB 1,358 - - - 1,358
At 31 December 2019 AZE-hE
+-B=+-H
Bank borrowings (Note) RITEE (M5 25,371 4,563 10,081 1,866 41,881
Lease liabilities (Note) RESHE (5D 198 282 1,128 2,319 3,927
Trade payables EHESERD 12,784 - - - 12,784
Other payables and accruals ~ ELfti {3 FUB KBS & 8,585 - - - 8,585
Amounts due to related partiesFE{1 BRI E A T7UE 1,351 - - - 1,351
Note: FEE -
The balances include interest payable on bank borrowings EREREEEESIHERE
and lease liabilities up to their respective maturities. TREREEABRMHGZFIE
3.2 BEXEHRE

FEEEREEZERARELE
BAERBUSEEELE RN
UBRREROEB R EMETFNE
wRAG UREFEEZERE
BLUR DB -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.2

3.3

Capital management (continued) 3.2 BEXERE @)
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group HERNHEMRT K AEBEAUE
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This EBALERAEEERE R ZLE
ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by owners’ ERIGEEEERBERMINZEEE
equity as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. Total BRUERE AR E - REEEE
borrowings include non-current bank borrowings, current ERBIBITBE -REBEE R
borrowings, non-current lease liabilities and current lease BHEaERABHEEAE
liabilities.
During 2020, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged ﬁ"_ TS OAERHRRE T
from 2019, was to maintain a reasonable gearing ratio. —NEMFRMEER B0 Thi
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2020 and 2019 were ?wﬁéﬁTﬂ EEEREEBAKT R
as follows: —EEFERZZE-NFE+ZA
=+—BZzEES8GLEDT
2020 2019
—ECEE —E-NEF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FEx
Total borrowings BmEE 49,376 43,251
Owners’ equity (including non- EE AR (BEFEIA
controlling interest in equity) W IEER ) 301,270 287,727
Gearing ratio BEEABMBLX 16.4% 15.0%
Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEMGE

The carrying values less impairment provisions of trade
and other receivables, prepayments, amounts due from
related parties, amount due from an associate, structured
bank deposits, short-term bank deposit and pledged bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, amounts due to
related parties and trade and other payables are assumed
to approximate their fair values because of their short
maturities. The carrying value of the long-term other
receivables approximates its fair value as it was estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.

E W E 5 R R H Mg W
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.3

Fair value estimation (continued)

(1)

3.3 AFEMGE (@

Fair value hierarchy (i) RNFEER
This section explains the judgements and estimates AEHERBREETRMBRERA
made in determining the fair values of the financial BATERINRGTENEH
instruments that are recognised and measured at TANAFEREDRH E
fair value in the financial statements. To provide an Kftst - ABHEEAFEFRR
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in AEAZSBNAEEEE &
determining fair value, the Group has classified its ERRGHENRESHEE
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed MTAESEA=ZERER-
under the accounting standards.
Level 2
Bk
Us$'000
TFE7T
Recurring fair value measurements BEMRNFEHE
At 31 December 2020 RIEZZEHFE+ZA=+—H
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEStABENMBEE
profit or loss 7,982
Recurring fair value measurements BEMENFEFE
At 31 December 2019 RZIZ—-hAE+ZB=+—H
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEEStABENHMBEE
profit or loss 2,293
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
There were no transfers among different levels of fair
values measurement during the year.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out
of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting
period.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and
equity securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the group is the current
bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a)

(b)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates and judgements (Note 8).

Current income taxes and deferred income taxes

The Group is principally subject to income taxes in
the PRC, Vietnam and Taiwan. Significant judgement
is required in determining the worldwide provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
expense in the periods in which such estimate is changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as FTEEERAKRECHTAZREBHITE
the Executive Directors collectively. The Executive Directors E HITESEREAEREZBERERER U
review the Group's policies and information for the purposes ARRBERSEBER - BE_Z__ZEHF
of assessing performance and allocating resources. During the +ZA=+—HUEFE xERKLE—E
year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has been operating B—XBo BNERHELEBRERA
in one single business segment, i.e. the manufacture and sale M4 tERERAERMIEER B
of fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products EEEBRM BEER KB HITEA
and cassava starch-based industrial products including modified [ (CTE2E—NE  MER) °

starch, glucose syrup, MSG, soda and GA (2019: same).

(a) Revenue (a) Uz
2020 2019
—TEF —E-NE
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FE7T
Timing of revenue recognition Ut 28 e 50 B
At a point in time RE—EFE R 360,741 357,857
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities MENEEHERZ W
The Group receives payments from certain customers FERRBITEOMKBRETER
in advance of the performance under the contracts. MR TRETRARSHME
The following table shows how much of the revenue MRz WG EEESNEa R ZEkH
recognised in the current reporting period relates to BE-
carried-forward contract liabilities.
2020 2019
—TEHE —E-hE
Us$’000 UsS$'000
FE7T FE7x
Revenue recognised that was AR ENEBEERZ
included in the contract liabilities B 8 W =
balance at the beginning of the
year 2,506 1,993
During the year ended 31 December 2020, no customers HE_Z2EF+RA=+—HL
individually contribute 10% or more of the Group's FE - REEREBEMAEERK
revenue (2019: revenue of approximately US$39,526,000 F10%HUE (CE—HEF  IRFELY
is derived from a single external customer located in 39,526,000 wAFRBHAZE—
Japan. This revenue is attributable to the MSG/GA SNEBEE - RTEWE R BKE &
products). KL E M) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a) Revenue (continued) (a) W= (8
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities HEAEBREZ W (B)
(continued)
The Group’s revenue by geographical location, which is AEBMBHMIEBMAE (AT HEMIEBA
determined by the geographical presence of customers, is BARAE) B9 ZWEWT -
as follows:
2020 2019
ZEIEE —E-AE
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FET
Vietnam HE 170,547 177,635
Japan Hz 61,195 64,820
The PRC FE 47,016 43,669
ASEAN member countries (other than R ER (FEEME)

Vietnam) 26,112 26,857
The US EEH 26,717 21,394
Other regions Hihith&@ 29,154 23,482

360,741 357,857
(b) Non-current assets, other than prepayments, by location, (b) #UE HREEMEEZKATE 25
which is determined by the country in which the asset is ZIEREEE (FAMTFIERIN) W
located, are as follows: T
2020 2019
—TEHF —E-NEF
US$’000 Us$'000
FET FE7T
Vietnam e 165,263 152,205
The PRC FE 11,245 12,704
Cambodia RIEE - 2
Total EE 176,508 164,911
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Construction Plant and Motor Office
in-progress Properties machinery vehicles equipment Total
HEIR ¥ BERESR AE HMAERE &t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FTEn FTEn FTEn TER FTEn FTEn
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-hE—A—H
Cost WA 18,651 108,862 460,387 9,322 19,749 616,971
Accumulated depreciation RiinE - (75,988) (359,923) (7,141) (17,924) (460,976)
Accumulated impairment RitEE - (1,100) (3,085) - (22) (4,207)
Net book amount REFE 18,651 31,774 97,379 2,181 1,803 151,788
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-Z-NE
+ZA=+-ALEE
Opening net book amount FNRERE 18,651 31,774 97,379 2,181 1,803 151,788
Additions RE 14,548 271 1,616 873 456 17,764
Transfer E (7,223) 598 6,328 - 297 -
Disposals (Note 29) HE (MiEE29) - (24) (79) (6) @ (116)
Depreciation (Note 21) e (fs21) - (3,023) (16,265) (560) (396) (20,244)
Exchange differences ERER - (93) (1) (4) ) (120)
Closing net book amount FERREFE 25,976 29,503 88,958 2,484 2,151 149,072
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AE+ZA=+-H
Cost WA 25,976 108,080 463,110 9,857 20,160 627,183
Accumulated depreciation RiiNE - (77,477) (371,067) (7,373) (17,987) (473,904)
Accumulated impairment RitEE - (1,100) (3,085) - (22) (4,207)
Net book amount REFE 25,976 29,503 88,958 2,484 2,151 149,072
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZE
+ZA=+-ALEE
Opening net book amount FENRERE 25,976 29,503 88,958 2,484 2,151 149,072
Additions RE 30,872 316 2,129 314 250 33,881
Transfer E (3,122) 205 2,917 - - -
Disposals (Note 29) HE (MiEk29) - - (39) (4 ) (45)
Depreciation (Note 21) & (f15E21) - (2,683) (14,340) (585) (440) (18,048)
Impairment (Note 20) A (ME20) - (114) (672) - - (786)
Exchange differences ERER - 385 116 15 5 521
Closing net book amount FXRERERE 53,726 27,612 79,069 2,224 1,964 164,595
At 31 December 2020 R-2-%%+-HA=+-H
Cost A 53,726 110,337 471,343 10,015 20,410 665,831
Accumulated depreciation REME - (81,511) (388,517) (7,791) (18,424) (496,243)
Accumulated impairment it RE - (1,214) (3,757) - (22) (4,993)
Net book amount REFE 53,726 27,612 79,069 2,224 1,964 164,595
Depreciation expense of US$17,199,000 (2019: MERMSE17,199,000E T (ZE—NF :
US$19,142,000) has been charged in cost of sales, US$288,000 19,142,000 7T) ~ 288,000 7T (=&
(2019: US$258,000) in selling and distribution expenses and — 5 258,000% 75) K2561,000%E 7T (=
US$561,000 (2019: US$844,000) in administrative expenses. T— N4 : 844,000 7T) ERRIREHE
A SHE RO HEET U R ITEEZ S0
Bk o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain property,
plant and machinery of the Group amounting to US$786,000

was impaired as no economic benefits are expected from use
or disposal due to the transformation of Phuoc Long Plant in

Vietnam.

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to US$379,000 (2019: US$283,000) on qualifying
assets.

()

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk IR (382 AR A S

Amount recognised in the consolidated balance

sheet

The consolidated balance sheet shows the following

amounts relating to leases:

BE_Z-_ZTH+Z

A=+—BHL#%E

B HREENEERNIE RRTE
REAIHEZTIHRPEFSEEND > &
EEHNEMET86,000ETZETYE
iR 55 Be 1 23 E R {E

ER - AEAECHEEREENEERAE
379,000 7t (Z&E— A4 © 283,000%7T)

BRERX-

() REEEERARBEINETHE

REEEREXRHIIUTREAESR

REEE

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
—E-TH —E-NEF
+=ZB=+—H +ZA=+—H
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE=T FE=T
Land use rights T {E AR 3,594 3,608
Building BF 1,312 1,458
Equipment Bodi] 8 7
Total right-of-use assets EREEEMLE 4,914 5,073
Current lease liabilities mEHEaR 199 11
Non-current lease liabilities EREBHEER 2,818 3,016
Total lease liabilities HEaEHEE 3,017 3,127
Movement of right-of-use assets for the year: FREAEEENES !
2020 2019
_ECEHE —E—hE
us$’000 Us$'000
FET FEx
At 1 January w—R—H 5,073 4,373
Addition for the year FARE - 1,426
Termination of contract FREIEEHK
during the year - (550)
Amortisation of right-of-use assets RS EHN (280) (145)
Exchange differences PERZERE 121 (31)
At 31 December W+ZB=+—H 4,914 5,073




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(i)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income (i) RiZEWRERERNEEE
statement
The consolidated income statement shows the following FEEWmRHIIUATHREBEEHEN
amounts relating to leases: £EE
2020 2019
—_EEHE —ES—hE
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FEx
Amortisation charged of FREEEN
right-of-use assets: ENkR#EEH
Land use rights o st {5 AR A 132 131
Building BF 148 13
Equipment B:di] - 1
280 145
Interest expense (included in MEMZ GTAMBXZEL)
finance cost) 89 94
Expense relating to short-term leases ~ ER4GHATE & A RIHY
(included in cost of goods sold and X GtABE&Em
administrative expenses) AR ITE ) 43 30
The total cash outflow for leases, including payment TESEHEMNRERHERE
for short-term leases, in 2020 was US$157,000 (2019: (BIEREBEE LR %157,000%

Us$354,000).

T (ZZE— N4 : 354,000%7T) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are

accounted for
The land use rights of the Group are located in the PRC
and Vietnam.

Xiamen Vedan Foods Co. Ltd (“Xiamen Vedan”) and
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd (“Shanghai Vedan”),
subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC, have
each been granted rights to use two lands in the PRC by
the relevant authority for 50 years, which will expire in
2042 and 2060, respectively.

Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited, a
subsidiary established and operating in Vietnam, has
obtained the rights to use certain lands in Vietnam by the
relevant authority for 43 to 50 years, which will expire in
2041.

Rental contract for building is made for a fixed period of
10 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk IR (382 AR A S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Software
Goodwill and licence Trademarks Total
He B RiER g &t
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
F=n T=n TEn TEr
At 1 January 2019 RZE—h&E—B—H
Cost Bz 8,120 2,008 12,189 22,317
Accumulated amortisation Rty - (1,634) (12,117) (13,751)
Net book amount REFE 8,120 374 72 8,566
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE_Z-h&
+ZB=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FENREFE 8,120 374 72 8,566
Amortisation charge (Note 21) B (5E21) - (117) 9) (126)
Additions HE - 5 - 5
Impairment loss (Note 20) BB (i5t20) (3,580) - - (3,580)
Exchange differences ERER (119) - - (119)
Closing net book amount FRIREFE 4,421 262 63 4,746
At 31 December 2019 RZE2-NE+ZA=+—H
Cost (DN 8,001 2,013 12,189 22,203
Accumulated amortisation Rty - (1,751) (12,126) (13,877)
Accumulated impairment REtRE (3,580) - - (3,580)
Net book amount IREFE 4,421 262 63 4,746
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-F-ZTE
+ZA=+—-BLEE
Opening net book amount FREFE 4,421 262 63 4,746
Amortisation charge (Note 21) BHRA% (M21) - (103) (1) (114)
Additions AE - 76 - 76
Impairment loss (Note 20) HERE (H3520) (3,107) - - (3,107)
Exchange differences ERERE 495 - - 495
Closing net book amount FREEFE 1,809 235 52 2,096
At 31 December 2020 RZE_2+”°B=1+-H
Cost B 8,496 2,089 12,189 22,774
Accumulated amortisation Rty - (1,854) (12,137) (13,991)
Accumulated impairment REtAfE (6,687) - - (6,687)
Net book amount IREFE 1,809 235 52 2,096
Amortisation charge is included in administrative expenses. BIHA St ATTHAX -
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Impairment tests for goodwill:

Goodwill is attributed to the Group’'s CGUs according to

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HERENH

HAEDREBEEESBIEELAEERN

operating segment. REE(Lo
The PRC Vietnam
MSG MSG
related related
business business Total
[ Bk Rk S
TERAER HERAETS st
Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000
FEr FEx FTET
At 31 December 2020 NRIBZETHF
+ZB=+—H 1,079 730 2,312
At 31 December 2019 RIZ—NEF
+—B=+—H 3,691 730 4,421

Management determined the recoverable amount based on
the higher of value-in-use (“VIU") and the fair value less cost
of disposal (“FVLCD") calculations of the cash-generating unit
("CGU"). As management considered the recoverable amount
under the VIU method to be higher, the recoverable amount
of a CGU is determined based on VIU calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets prepared by management and approved by the Board
of Directors covering a five years period. Cash flows beyond the
five years period are extrapolated using the estimated growth
rates stated below if applicable. The growth rates do not
exceed the long-term average growth rates for the MSG related
business in which the CGU operates.

The key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation of
the goodwill in the PRC MSG related CGU are as follows.

EERBREBEFERIREEMN (THRIGR
TEA) NEREE (RAEE) 22
FEAHERDS (T2 FERBEERE])
MERNRSEECATREITER -HRNE
EERAEREBERZTHNROEE
Bim RILBREIRE B 2 TR [E 2875
st EEREEZAREE RS EE
AEREERGRREKEESEHEZD
FHRMEEESHZBFRARERER
AET BHEFHZREREEAUT
FREFIZ fhstEREFERE WER) B E
RAEerRNRSBUMEBEZKE
HEEBHNRPFOERER

RBUSETRERGEEERNIESEMUR
BZEREEZEEZRRUW T

The PRC
hE

2020 2019

—_ECEHE —E—hEF

Sales per annum (US$'000) SEHER (T 11,608 — 13,287 13,238 - 14,571

Growth rate in sales HERRE 3% - 12% 2%

Gross margin EFE 18.3% - 19.0% 17.4% -21.3%
Other operating costs per annum SEHMEERA®

(US$'000) (F%7m) 1,615 - 1,708 1,966 — 2,113

Long term growth rate R REE 3% 3%

Discount rate (pre-tax) IRE (WA 15.4% 14.8%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Sales per annum and growth rate in sales is the average annual
growth rate over the five years forecast period. It is based
on past performance, management’s expectations of market
development and current industry trends and includes long
term inflation forecasts.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations of market developments. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant operating segments.

Other operating costs are the fixed costs of the CGUs, which do
not vary significantly with sales volumes or prices. Management
forecasts these costs based on the current structure of the
business, adjusting for inflationary increases and these do not
reflect any future restructurings or cost saving measures. The
amounts disclosed above are the average operating costs for
the five-year forecast period.

For the goodwill of the PRC MSG related business, the
recoverable amount calculated based on VIU calculation is
lower than its carrying value and therefore a further provision
for impairment of goodwill of US$3.1 million was recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The management has performed sensitivity analysis over the
PRC MSG related business. A decrease in annual sales volume
growth rate by 18.6%, a decrease in annual sales price growth
rate by 0.5%, a decrease in gross margin by 1.2%, an increase
in annual operating costs by 0.3%, a decrease in long term
growth rate by 4.9% or an increase in discount rate by 2.7%,
all changes taken in isolation, full impairment of the remaining
balance of goodwill would be required.

Based on the impairment review on the goodwill of Vietnam
MSG related business, the recoverable amount calculated
based on value-in-use calculations exceeds its carrying value.
As a result, no impairment loss was recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

SEHERRHER RIS AFRAUM
FTHEERZ EREBERER B
BHTHERNBHAARETERESR
o 3B 5 R RAVERTER

EEEDNRBBETREREHTHER
ZHRPEEREEN R -FTAIFRETE
TR0 3 f BRAR R AR 3 B0 2 45 E LR o

HthEEMAT BEREEEMRNEER
oM ABEHESHIHEBKNELS -E
ERERRBEFRBRAZFNE I
MBI EFFHRE  BE IR RE
IR EAE LA A LA FE T - E AR EEBY
TS DERARNTEEERE -

MPEKBEREEER 2 EEms Bt
HEREETESHNTKREISEERR
HifEEE ALEMBEE_S_SF+=
B=1+—HLIEEEB—XRIBERE
BE3IIAEET.

STIEECHPEKBHERAERETHR
Eot FEHEEBRERMEEIS.6%
FHEERRERTY®0 5%  EFETE
12% FEBEBRAER3I% REPEE
ETHRAIO%HITIRIRIER2. 7% FBEE
B REHBEIL RILEN EENGRE
EHE B HURE -

1R ¥ 2 8 = K A5 A8 B 22 5 7 2R B0 Rl B 5T
it BEAEEAESAAENTREE
BBHHEREE AL #E-_FT-FF
TR =+—HIFENERRBERR
(CE-NEF 8] -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2020:

THAR-_E-E&+-A=+—02
TEWBATEE

BE !

Proportion of

Place of Proportion of ordinary shares
incorporation/ Particulars of ordinary shares held by
establishment and Principal activities and issued/paid up held by non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity place of operation share capital the Group interest
SEMERIL/ R FEARAZ  FEREERAZ
&1 URiEERRE FTEEEREENY BRT/BRRAHE BERLH BERLA
Directly held:
b-1:3:7-
Winball Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
("BVI") US$1 each
Winball Investment Limited HEELHS TEBRELR 100% 8 REME
(EERZES) 1ETHEER
Talent Top Investment Ltd. BVI Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
US$1 each
Talent Top Investment Ltd. HEELHES GEERREER 1008 REME
1ETHERR
Indirectly held:
BREE
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$61,109,000 100% -
Ordinary shares
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. i EHIRREER 61,109,000& T EER
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$20,177,000 100% -
Ordinary shares
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. g THIRREER 20,177,000E T £ &R
Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Vietnam Manufacturing and sale of fermentation- 171,574,967 99.9% 0.1%
Limited based food additives and biochemical Ordinary shares of
products and cassava starch-based US$1 each
industrial products including MSG, GA,
modified starch, glucose syrup, soda
and acid in Vietnam and for export
%A (@) RAERAR am EERNERBERRERAME 171,574,9678%
EEERRAERNIXER, BREGBIZERN
DERE AR SRR BER
BERR BIRERLLEO
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG, starch and 15$9,800,000 100% -
company seasoning products in the PRC Registered capital
LEGAEEERAR HE ARERAH EREBERHEERE RAR 9,800,000% 7%
vl ee AMER
Xiamen Vedan Foods Co. Ltd PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG, starch and 15$20,270,000 100% -
company seasoning products in the PRC Registered capital
EMHAERERAT HE ARERAF EREBLRHEERE RAR 20,270,000%7%
sl ee AMER
Xiamen Darong Import & Export Trade PRC, limited liability Trading of cassava starch-based industrial ~ US$254,000 100% -
Co., Ltd. company products in the PRC Registered capital
EMABELOERERAT HE BRERAT ErAEEAEZRNIEER 254,000% TR ER
Vedan International (Cambodia) Co., Ltd Cambodia Sale of fermentation-based food additives  Registered capital of Riels 100% -
and biochemical products and cassava 2,640,000,000
starch-based industrial products in
Cambodia and for export
Vedan International (Cambodia) Co., Ltd RHR REBRUZERERAME EEER HBEX
RAERHIXERHERLD 2,640,000,0003 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Movement of the investment in an associate is as follows:

REERARNZREZEFHUT :

2020 2019

—EIEHF —E—hEF

US$'000 Us$'000

FE7 FE1

As at 1 January ®—HA—H 6,020 6,119
Share of post-tax loss of an associate FE{L AT BRI EEE (1,117) (99)
As at 31 December ®K+ZB=+—H 4,903 6,020

Nature of the investment in an associate as at 31 December
2020 and 2019:

RIEBE_ZEFEFR_E—HLE+ZAH
=t+—H REBEABTZREEENT :

Country of Particulars of % Measurement
Name Incorporation issued share capital interest held method
%tE S AL B BEITRAFER HEEE% tERE
Dacin International The Cayman Islands 21,027,559 shares of 30 Equity
Holdings Limited US$1 each
EMERZERERAR HENE 21,027,559 F R R
EE1ETZ K%

The associate is principally engaged in real estate development
in Vietnam.

Dacin International Holdings Limited is a private company and
there is no quoted market price available for its shares.

There is capital commitment amounting to US$112,000 (2019:
US$112,000) in relation to the Group's investment in the
associate.

ZHEARTENUBENEEMEZR -
EMERERBERARAMARE BE
BRp IR IRE

FEEMNZBE AT ZERER112,000

ET(ZE—NE:112,000ET) 2EXK
Ao
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Reconciliation of summarised financial information MBS EHER
2020 2019
—_EEHE “E-NEF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FEx
Net assets as at 1 January R—RA—HZEERE 20,067 20,396
Loss for the year FENEE (3,725) (329)
Net assets as at 31 December R+ZR=+—HBZEBEZE 16,342 20,067
Interest in an associate (30%) REE QAT 2R (30%) 4,903 6,020
2020 2019
—E-EE —E-NE
Us$‘000 Us$'000
F=x FE
Financial assets at amortised cost REHMEFEZHHFEE
— Trade receivables — B E Z AR 30,298 29,511
— Other receivables —HthE Uk RIE 2,151 3,442
— Amounts due from related parties —FEWBEREANLRIE 862 954
— Short-term bank deposits and —RERRITER R
pledged bank deposits EIRIRITER 21,817 15,980
— Cash and cash equivalents - RERREEEBY 42,359 41,127
Financial assets at fair value through R AFEFABHEZMBEEE
profit or loss
— Structured bank deposits — R EIRITER 7,982 2,293
Financial liabilities at amortised cost R A2 MEEE
— Trade payables — B ZRR 6,963 12,784
— Other payables and accruals —HthEAmIERETER 7,451 8,585
— Amounts due to related parties —ENAREANLTRIE 1,358 1,351
— Bank borrowings —iR1TEE 46,359 40,124
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2020 2019
—EEF —E-NE
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FE7T
Consumables JHFE M 6,403 5,875
Raw materials [FE Rt 45,890 48,688
Work in progress ERG 2,776 4,199
Finished goods BYRY G 36,773 37,293
91,842 96,055
Less: Provision for impairment losses 38 : Z &R {EEGEE S
on inventories (177) (227)
91,665 95,828
The cost of inventories of US$240,361,000 (2019: FEM4240,361,000% 7T (ZT—HE !
US$237,769,000) has been charged in cost of sales. 237,769,000 75T) Bt ASHEM A ©
The write-off and reversal of impairment of inventories included BEREERETZFERBEMHE R RE
in cost of sales amounted to US$3,000 (2019: US$7,000) and [B]43 B %A3,000% 7T (ZE—H%5F : 7,000
US$50,000 (2019: US$93,000), respectively. % 7t) K50,000% 7T (Z & — A4 93,000

I

Annual Report 2020 £ %R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2020 2019
—EEF —E—hEF
US$’000 US$'000
FE=7x FEx
Trade receivables from third parties FEWE=FE5RM 30,660 29,999
Less: loss allowance o EIERE (362) (488)
Trade receivables - net FEUR & B RN — R %8 30,298 29,511
Prepayments AT RRIE 11,794 14,362
VAT recoverable AU EIGER 1,103 1,068
Other receivables H fth & WL TR IE 2,019 3,320
Amount due from an associate FE W B & A B 7R 10 -
Loan to an associate (Note (b)) HTHBE AT ZER (MisEDb)) 122 122
45,346 48,383
Less: non-current portion B JEENERER
— Prepayment for plant and — BB &R ETENRIE
equipment (3,711) (2,775)
— Loan to an associate (Note (b)) —HBTHMEATZER
(F 5% (b)) = (122)
(3,711) (2,897)
Current portion BNHEAER 7 41,635 45,486
Prepayments mainly represent advance payment for the FENREFEREREBEREME HERE &
purchase of raw materials and plant and equipment. RETRRIRRIE
The carrying values of the Group's trade and other receivables AEFEEKEZRAREMERRIEZ
approximate their fair values. REEREQATEES-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The credit terms of trade receivables range from cash on EKEZRRZEERANTEIMIRE
delivery to 60 days. The Group may grant a longer credit period OR - AEFETAEFTEAEEREE
to certain customers, subject to the satisfactory results of credit B MEZRREETFHZRRER
assessment. The ageing of the trade receivables based on FEWE ZERFIRE R HEAZ BRESNT ©

invoice date is as follows:

2020 2019
—E_EFE —E-hE
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FET
0 - 30 days 0ZE30XK 20,880 21,622
31 - 90 days 31290k 8,292 6,906
91 — 180 days 91E180K 284 697
181 — 365 days 181&E365K 829 354
Over 365 days 365K E 375 420
30,660 29,999
Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their BN B EWERIEZ BN E  HIREE
carrying amounts are considered to be the same as their fair WHRABRHEQAFEES-
values.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 December 2019 and R_IE—hER_E_ZFE+_-H
2020 are the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables =Et+—HERZEAEERRKS LIRFE
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as I B 5 R R E At FEUGRR I 2 BRI © &<
security. EETBSEEAIKTRIERT
The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables are FEWE ZERM R EMERRIEZ REE
denominated in the following currencies: BTHNEEEE !
2020 2019
—_EEHF —E-NE
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FET
Vietnam Dong HEE 21,818 20,958
us$ e 14,703 15,714
Renminbi AR¥E 8,711 8,878
Others Hith 114 2,833
45,346 48,383
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a)

(b)

Loss allowance of trade receivables (a)
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to

measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime

expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

The closing loss allowance for trade receivables as at 31
December 2020 reconciles to the opening loss allowance

FEWE ZIRRZ IR EE
FEBEREBYBREENE
REEA A EBRBEERE &
FRERKE ZRRKB 2 ARG
BEH-

A _EBE_EBEFE+_A=+—HZE
WEZBRRZERGEBERATEY

as follows: BEBEZHIRNOT
2020 2019
—EEHE —E-NE
uss$‘000 Us$'000
FE=T FE=r
Opening loss allowance R—B—HZFE4]
as at 1 January 511 488 498
Decrease in loss allowance RERGERERPER
recognised in consolidated ZEEBER LD
income statement during the year (126) (10)
Closing loss allowance W+ZA=+—Hz
as at 31 December FEREEERE 362 488

The provision for credit loss of receivables have been
included in administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement. Amounts charged to the allowance
account are generally written off when there is no
expectation of recovering additional cash.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do
not contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet
date is the carrying value of each class of receivable
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral
as security.

Loan to an associate (b)
As at 31 December 2020, there is a loan to an associate

of US$122,000 (2019: US$122,000) which is unsecured,

bears interest at 4% per annum, denominated in US$ and

due for repayment on 21 May 2021.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk IR (382 AR A S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2020 2019
_ECEHE —E—hEF
US$'000 Us$'000
FET FE7

Short-term bank deposits with original REIHHABB=1EA
maturity over three months 25 RRIRITER 21,111 12,166
Pledged bank deposits (note (a)) EIFIRITER (MIsx@a)) 706 3,814
Structured bank deposits (note (b)) ,.ﬂ% YER1TER (FE5E(b)) 7,982 2,293
Cash at bank and on hand TRFHERES 42,359 41,127
72,158 59,400

As at 31 December 2020, cash at bank of US$42,181,000
(2019: US$40,962,000) and bank deposits of US$29,799,000
(2019: US$18,273,000) were exposed to credit risk.

The remittance of the funds out of the PRC bank accounts of
Us$16,631,000 (2019: US$10,661,000) and Vietnam bank
accounts of US$51,521,000 (2019: US$43,469,000) is subject
to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC and Vietnamese
governments.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposits and structured bank deposits are denominated in the
following currencies:

RIEZEFE+ZHA=+—H R
IH$42,181,000E T (ZE—HF !
40,962,000 75) K iR{TFEFR29,799,000
ET (ZE—NE 18,273,000E T) HER
Tagﬂf&“ﬁ"

BE P EER1TARE 2 B 516,631,000 7T
(ZZ—AH%F :10,661,000%7T) REH
HERITIRE 2&$51,521,000% 7T (=
F— N4 : 43,469,000 T) BEFHE
R it S BT B 9 BE 5 1 5 B o

FERZRERREEEY EHRTE
MR EBHERITERRUTERSE

2020 2019

—ECEE —E-NE

US$'000 Us$'000

FET FE=T

Vietnam Dong HrEE 34,325 28,560
uss$ e 19,844 18,102
Renminbi AR 15,770 10,704
Hong Kong dollar BT 74 89
New Taiwan dollar meE 2,143 1,944
Others HAth 2 1
72,158 59,400
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group at the end

RE|EMR > *EBZBRERNRHEIIM

of the reporting period were as follows: T
2020 2019
—_E_EF —E-hE
Short-term bank deposits with original FESHBEAEBE=ERZ
maturity over three months ZHARITERR 5.0% 6.1%
(a) Pledged bank deposits (a) IEHEIRITIEM
As at 31 December 2020, the Group's bank balances A ECEFE+_A=+—H' %K
amounting to US$706,000 (2019: US$3,814,000) were EEWIRITEERR706,000E T (=
deposited at designated bank accounts in certain banks T—NEF :3,814,000%7T) HESE
as guarantee deposits for certain letter of credits released FEREREENETERENE
to the Group's customers. RERERSE TIRITHIETIRITIR
Bo
(b) Structured bank deposits (b) #HEBMIRITER

As at 31 December 2020, the structured bank deposits
amounting to US$7,982,000 (2019: US$2,293,000)
represents wealth management products issued by
certain reputable banks in PRC with guaranteed principal,
variable interest and terms less than 182 days. Changes in
fair value of these investments were recognised in “other
gains — net” in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Authorised ordinary shares

EE L ER
Par value Number
Us$ of shares Us$'000
EEET Rin 8 E FEx
At 1 January 2019, A ZZ—-hE—HF—8-

31 December 2019, “E-AE+ZB=+—H"
1 January 2020 and “222F—-HF—HK
31 December 2020 - EF+-HB=+—H 0.01 10,000,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares

BERTRBERLER
Par value Number
uss$ of shares Uss$'000
EEXT i1 8 E FER
At 1 January 2019, RZZ2—NE—F—H-

31 December 2019, —E-AFE+ZA=+—H"
1 January 2020 and —ZTH—A-HkK
31 December 2020 —E-EF+"A=+—H 0.01 1,522,742,000 15,228
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Share  Exchange Merger ~ Statutory  Retained
Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve earnings Total
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
RNEE ERMRE GG  EERE  GRIERN A
(MEka)  (M3HDb)
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 UsS$'000
TEx TEn TEn FTEn FTEn TEn
At 1 January 2019 fZE2-NFE—-H-H 47,358 11,057 79,994 828 131,891 271,128
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit for the year KEEHF - - - - 15,563 15,563
Other comprehensive loss HittZ2mEAESE
Currency translation differences ERZEZ - (576) - - - (576)
Release of exchange reserve HE—HRB AR
upon disposal of a subsidiary RIRERHE - (3,707) - - - (3,707)
Total comprehensive income  2EWAKLE - (4,283) - - 15,563 11,280
Total transactions with BEFAZHERSE
owners
Dividends paid (Note 24) BARE (Hk24) - - - - (10,122) (10,122)
At 31 December 2019 RZIZ2—N&
+ZB=+—-H 47,358 6,774 79,994 828 137,332 272,286
At 1 January 2020 RZEZZE&5—-B—H 47,358 6,774 79,994 828 137,332 272,286
Comprehensive income EJL 0N
Profit for the year FEEEF - - - - 16,650 16,650
Other comprehensive income  Hfti2EKA
Currency translation differences ERZ%E - 3,102 - - - 3,102
Total comprehensive income  2EWAKLE - 3,102 - - 16,650 19,752
Total transactions with HEFAZHERSE
owners
Dividends paid (Note 24) BERRE (fsF24) - - - - (6,206) (6,206)
At 31 December 2020 RZ2ZEHE
+ZB=+—-H 47,358 9,876 79,994 828 147,776 285,832
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital and share
premium of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation completed on 26 December 2002 and the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefor.

Statutory reserve

The PRC companies are required to allocate 10% of the
companies’ net profits to the statutory reserves fund until such
fund reaches 50% of the companies’ registered capitals. The
statutory reserves fund can be utilised, upon approval by the
relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to increase

(b)

A
FEENEHHEGHEREN ST F
TR HRBRMNEREARIKE
MEABRNRAEERRDEERER
BMETKBMBETZRIAEENE
e

EEMEE

PEABARRRABFMNZI0%EEE
AR BEABRTERQRFEMES
Z50% - iEERMBERE  EEQTESE
AT AR R B RENEMA R
MEL AR ABMABRTAERNA

registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is BHRMEERRID25%
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered
capitals.
2020 2019
—ECEE —E-NE
US$'000 Us$'000
FE7T FE7
Non-current JEBPHA
Long-term environmental provision RERIGHEE = 444
Current BNHA
Trade payables FE(S B B ERER 6,963 12,784
Accruals FESTE R 9,096 8,240
Payable of purchase of property, ERNBEYE BMERRE
plant and equipment and MR BN AR
construction costs 1,466 3,437
Contract liabilities (Note (a)) aHaE‘E (k@) 4,230 2,506
Other payables H 1t fE < TR 5,873 4,633
27,628 31,600
Total trade payables, accruals and B ZERF B EA K
other payables H e FRIE48 %8 27,628 32,044
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the ageing of trade payables

based on invoice date is as follows:

RZBE_ZFR_FT-—NAE+ZA
=t+—B O BAEBESRIREZERZER

g

2020 2019

—_E_EHF —E—-NE

Us$’000 US$'000

SEE DI FE7T

0 - 30 days 0E30K 5,515 11,976
31 - 90 days 31FE90K 1,448 808
6,963 12,784

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables, accruals
and other payables are denominated in the following

FEBZENEZRT Bt BEAKREM

EARIBEZ REEE T EEEE :

currencies:

2020 2019
—_E_EHF —E-NE
uUs$‘000 Us$'000
FET FE=T
Vietnam Dong HEE 13,661 9,382
us$ ET 8,369 14,467
New Taiwan Dollar Hmat 24 21
Renminbi AR 5,522 8,019
Others Hih 52 155
27,628 32,044

(a) Contract liabilities (a) BAHEafE

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the deposits EHNBEFERRRINFERZE

or payments received in advance for sales of goods not
yet delivered to customers. Revenue is recognised when
goods are delivered to customers.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk IR (382 AR A S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2020 2019
—E-EF —E—hEF
Us$’000 Us$'000
F=E=7x FEx
Non-current JERNEA
- Long-term bank borrowings —RHEAIRITE™M
- secured — B 13,501 18,213
— Long-term bank borrowings —RERITE™R
— unsecured — IR 6,164 6,912
Less: current portion of long-term A RERITERZ
bank borrowings BOHAER 3 (5.679) (9,749)
13,986 15,376
Current BDEA
— Short-term bank borrowings — I HASRITE R
- secured — B 18,061 8,892
- Short-term bank borrowings —FRHAIRITE
— unsecured — KR 8,633 6,107
— Current portion of long-term —REBIRITERZ
bank borrowings — secured BUHEAER 3 — H L7 1,291 7,347
— Current portion of long-term —RERITERZ
bank borrowings — unsecured BDHRER 73 — ML IR 4,388 2,402
32,373 24,748
Total bank borrowings IRITEEREE 46,359 40,124
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank borrowings were
repayable as follows:

RIE_EFE+_RA=+—H &*&EHZ
IRITEREBENUTHRREE

2020 2019

—_E_EHF —E—hEF

us$'000 Us$'000

FET FE

Within 1 year —FR 32,373 24,748
Between 1 and 2 years —FEEME 5,536 4,394
Between 2 and 5 years MEERFE 7,786 9,361
Over 5 years AEME 664 1,621
46,359 40,124

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate
changes and the contractual repricing dates at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

REEHR cEEEEFREYNAXRE
BRENENITERRNT

2020 2019

“EEHE —E—hEF

Us$'000 Us$'000

F=xT FE7T

Within 6 months 6EA A 29,533 18,921
Between 7 and 12 months 7TE12E8 2,840 4,645
Between 1 and 5 years 1E55 13,322 14,937
Over 5 years SEM E 664 1,621
46,359 40,124

The carrying values of the Group’s borrowings approximate
their fair values.

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group’'s

FERBEZREEEZEAFEES

RESHR cEBEEZEREN XN

borrowings at the end of the reporting period were as follows: T
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NE
us$ ETT 1.7% 2.6%
New Taiwan dollar mats 1.8% 2.0%
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The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

FEBRBEZREERUATERSE

2020 2019
—E_EHF —E—hEF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
uss ETT 44,254 38,131
New Taiwan dollar mat 2,105 1,993
46,359 40,124
The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities: AEBREUTRIZERABEEME !
2020 2019
—E_EF —E-hE
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FE7
Floating rate: =R SN
— Expiring within one year —R—F R 105,480 104,916
— Expiring beyond one year —R—F%EH8 31,748 33,734
Fixed rate: TR
— Expiring within one year —R—FREH 6,100 474
— Expiring beyond one year —R—E%&EIH 9,299 9,299
152,627 148,423

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has aggregate
bank facilities of approximately US$203,162,000 (2019:
US$193,516,000) for bank borrowings, trade finance and other
general banking facilities. Unutilised amount as at 31 December
2020 amounted to US$152,627,000 (2019: US$148,423,000),
among them, US$98,658,000 (2019: US$96,010,000) of the
unutilised bank facilities were secured by corporate guarantees
issued by the Company.

RIEZEFE+ZHA=+—H £T5£E
SHERFAEL203,162,000E T (ZF
— L€ 1 193,516,000 7T) ZRITRME
EARRTEE ESREREM—MRIRT
ME-RZZEZEF+A=+—H"'X
FASEEA152,627,0008 7T (ZE—H
£ 1 148,423,000%7T) » Hh o REIAIR
fTRRE98,658,000E T (ZE—HEF !
96,010,000%7T) DHARABTELHZ AT
ERIEBIER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using the principal tax
rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The analysis of deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:

I A P48 T5 1R 2 5% LU A 46 [
FRE B R B0 B AL AT A W B
@itEo

EIEFASMEBEZOMWT !

2020 2019
—EIEF —E-NE
us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FEr
— Deferred income tax liabilities to —RBRiBiENREARKEZ
be recovered after more than 12 FIEFTISIREE
months 2,134 2,705

The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as

EIEFRISINEIRE B FRAUT ¢

follows:

2020 2019
—ECIEE —E-NE
uss$‘000 Us$'000
FET FE=r
At 1 January ®—B—H 2,705 3,238

Credited to consolidated income FAGERER (MFsE23)
statement (Note 23) (571) (533)
At 31 December ®K+=ZB=+—H 2,134 2,705

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

FFEEBRLEFRSREERER (Rt RIE
HEE IR B AR ERERA) BVEZE
T

BIEFRSRER

Accelerated tax depreciation

INERMIBITE
2020 2019
—EZEHF “E-NEF
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FET FE
At 1 January w—RB—H 4,362 4,655
Credited to consolidated income statement st ALZEEUKER (544) (293)
At 31 December B+=ZB=+—H 3,818 4,362
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Deferred income tax assets

RIEFRSMEE

Other temporary differences

HthgRr=%8
2020 2019
—_EEHE “E-NEF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE1 FE=7
At 1 January w—A—H (1,657) (1,417)
Credited to consolidated income statement st ALZEUEZER (27) (240)
At 31 December W+ZB=+—H (1,684) (1,657)

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the profits
of PRC subsidiaries of the Group derived since 1 January 2008
will be subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10% upon
the distribution of such profits to foreign investors. Deferred
income tax liabilities of US$1,055,000 (2019: US$931,000)
have not been recognised in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the Group's PRC
subsidiaries as the Group controls the dividend policy of
these PRC subsidiaries and it is probable that these temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The
unremitted earnings of PRC subsidiaries are intended to reinvest
to expand PRC markets.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised in respect of
tax losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits is
probable. The Group has unrecognised deferred income tax
assets of US$166,000 (2019: US$372,000) in respect of the
unrecognised tax loss of US$662,000 (2019: US$1,489,000)
which will expire within five years.

RIBPETERERZ AEEETHE
MBAREBE-_ZZN\E—HF—BEE4X
BEA > B D IR T INEIRE B R R 7
10%MMEHMMBINR AN SERE
FIZETEMNBARZRERSK  BX
EEZHEMBAR R HEANELZY
RIEZREAKAENR T R #E > i
BRSO EERDELEFEREas
1,055,000% 57 (ZFE— A4 : 931,000%
7o) cHEM B AT KREHNEF HEIE
BREBEUIERTETIS

BIEFMEREEREMARBREA
BRAKREREREMN SRS E
HRBEEEEHER AEEFMAARE
SRIRFER18662,000E T (ZE—NF !
1,489,000 7t) 2 R BIRLEFBRE
E%166,000% 7T (ZE—H5E : 372,000
Em) ZERBHEEBERREFEANIIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2020 2019
—EEHF —E—hEF
US$’000 US$'000
FET TFE7T
Net exchange gains/(losses) ERUE, (F5i8) B 137 (117)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME -BEX
plant and equipment REZEE (37) (113)
Impairment of property, ME- -BERSZERE
plant and equipment (786) -
Sales of scrap materials BE R} 8 & 290 452
Government grants BT B 32 160
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 33) HE—EKHBAEZ WS
(MF5E33) - 3,940
Impairment of goodwill (Note 8) mERE (MEEs) (3.107) (3,580)
Fair value gains on structural bank deposits 48 1EEITERZ
N EWE 173 -
Others Hth 432 351
(2,866) 1,093
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Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution

SHEM A HE R D HB X RITHHAXFR

expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BEZEZSHUOT
2020 2019
ZEISE —E—hEF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FEx
Changes in inventories and consumables FERERHEERES
used (Note 12) (HF5E12) 240,361 237,769
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8)  E B E# (M:E8) 114 126
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (Note 7) {ER#EEE Y Fisx7) 280 145
Auditor’s remuneration % 24 B & B
— Audit services —ZH AR 353 355
— Non-audit services —IEBAAR TS 4 4
Depreciation on property, plant and ME- -BERZEITE
equipment (Note 6) GE)) 18,048 20,244
Write-off of inventory (Note 12) MHEE (MsE12) 3 7
Expense relating to short-term lease BIGHATERRAMNRES 43 30
Employee benefit expenses (Note 26) EERAMZ (Hsk26) 40,684 39,053
Reversal of loss allowance of trade BN E SRR E 18
receivables (Note 13) B #mE (MsE13) (126) (10)
Technical support fee (Note 32(b)) KMz EE (MizE32(b)) 2,164 2,156
Travelling expenses EIRFEX 1,519 1,654
Transportation expenses B 8,330 9,223
Advertising expenses BERX 4,389 4,069
Repair and maintenance expenses HENGFRERS 12,308 16,676
Other expenses Hhf 6,522 7,490
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution $HER s« $HE R D84
expenses and administrative expenses X RITE 4858 334,996 338,991
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2020 2019

—E_EHF —E-NE

Us$’000 Us$'000

FE FET

Bank interest income RITF B ULA 724 768
Interest income from an associate KE—EBERTZ

B U A 4 5

Unwinding of discount of other receivables fZixEMhFEURIE Z IR - 98

Finance income WA 728 871

Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEEFERE (763) (1,107)

Interest expense on lease liabilities HEaEFEMEX (89) (94)

Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying W EEREE
assets (Note 6) BAR{CFRIE

(MizEe) 379 283

Finance costs EE N (473) (918)

Finance income/(costs) — net MIBEWA S () — 358 255 (47)
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Taxation on profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income
statement represents:

EHZRERERGSHERRNEF IR X
EHEEMERRZRITRENE-

RiFaRERAMFZ RSN EERTE

2020 2019

—EEE —E—hE

US$'000 Us$'000

FE=T FEr

Enterprise income tax (“EIT") MR 6,074 4,681
(Over)/under-provision of income tax in BEEEFRSR (BEE

previous years BE BERRE (163) 80

Total current tax BPERTRIE 48 %8 5,911 4,761

Deferred income tax (Note 19) IEIEFRISH (MF5E19) (571) (533)

5,340 4,228

The income tax on the Group's profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the applicable tax rate for Vietnam Vedan, which is a major
subsidiary of the Group, as follows:

FEFFFRERABENNFEREMNS
RATERTZENB AR ERKRANE
AREMtENERMRAR > &5/W
Lk

2020 2019

—EIEF —E-NE

Us$’000 Us$'000

FET FE7T

Profit before income tax FRET S AR R 22,017 19,813
Tax calculated at tax rate of 15% B15% 2 MEFEZRIE

(2019: 15%) (ZE—NFE 1 15%) 3,303 2,972

Tax effects of different tax rates TEMEZMBLE 1,536 816

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes ENCIE L 53 1,061 1,034

Income not subject to tax BARTUA (196) (591)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised B 2RI R ERRITEE

tax losses (201) (83)

(Over)/under-provision in prior years BEEE (BEEHE)
BELRRE (163) 80
Income tax expenses Frigfipaz 5,340 4,228

EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for financial
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.

RIS MR BB REEE & F &
B> BRAERNBARRNIFTHRE
W BEEFHAE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(i) Vietnam
The applicable EIT rate for the Group's principal
operations in Vietnam is 15%, which is an incentive tax
rate offered by the Vietnam Government and is stipulated
in the subsidiary’s investment license. For non-principal
operation in Vietnam, the applicable EIT rate for the
Group is 20%.

(ii) The PRC
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operation in the
PRC is 25%.

(iii) Singapore/Hong Kong/Cambodia
No Singapore/Hong Kong/Cambodia profits tax has been
provided as the Group had no estimated assessable profit
arising in or derived from Singapore, Hong Kong and
Cambodia during the year.

(iv) Taiwan
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operations in
Taiwan is 20%.

A final dividend of US$3,259,000 that relates to the year ended
31 December 2019 was declared on 19 May 2020 and was paid
in June 2020 (2019: US$4,042,000).

The interim dividends paid in 2020 was US$2,947,000 (0.194
US cents per share) (2019: US$6,080,000 (0.4 US cents per
share)). A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2020 of 0.462 US cents per share, amounting to a
total dividend of US$7,040,000, is to be proposed for approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. These consolidated
financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

() #&mE
BB ARKREF I EMREIRA
FERTHENEIEEBNERE
EFMBRER1S% ARREAH
BMBAFRETHEIERE -plls
NEETEEZMS ~EENER
EEMREMRER20%-

(i) HE
AEBAERRNESNERCERR
BRER25%-

(i) Mg, BB RIEE
HRAEEREAFEE T EEIHM
W~ B R SR R B A Bt
FE R AR 5 A > Bl Lth 7 4 F HH 3 0 3
BB RIBEANGREE-

(iv) &
SEBMEAENERNBERCERR
BREAH20%-

ERBE_ZT—hAhE+ZB=+—H
IEEEZKREARES,259,000E T (ZF
— 4 14,042,000 BN -_ZF
AA+HABERER-_ZE-_ZEF,ABF
EANE

RIZIZZZEIHNPHERE A
2,947,000% 7t (FR0.194E M) (ZF
— & 1 6,080,000E 7T (FR0.4EM)) ©
BRERERRAFEAT LIRS UM E
NBE_E -5+ "A=+—HLEF
EHRAREASIR0.462E )RE4E
RE3E7,040,000E T L F M HBEREK
I R MR EZ FE T AR B o

2020 2019
ZEZEF —E—hEF
uss$‘000 Us$'000
FET FEx
Interim dividend paid of 0.194 US cents SRR EER
(2019: 0.4 US cents) per ordinary share EAR0. 19431
—E—-hEFE:
0.451ll) 2,947 6,080
Proposed final dividend of 0.462 US cents  #IRKHIIR SR
(2019: 0.214 US cents) per ordinary EEAZ0.462E1
share (ZB—h=E:
0.2143AL) 7,040 3,259
9,987 9,339
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a) Basic (a)
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the

=%

BREXBFIZEQBDER AEMN
BRFRUER B EITE BRI

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue THHEE-
during the year.
2020 2019
—_EEHE —E-NE
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FET
Profit attributable to owners of the KATER ANELGER
Company (US$'000) (F=Em) 16,650 15,563
Weighted average number BRTEERN
of ordinary shares in issue MEEHEE (F)
(thousands) 1,522,742 1,522,742
Basic earnings per share BREAZA (FREW
(US cents per share) 1.09 1.02
(b) Diluted (b) 8

Diluted earnings per share is same as basic earnings per
share as there are no dilutive instruments for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

BE_Z_ZERZFT-AFTZ
B=+—HIEFE AR E#HT
TR #sRkBFRINASKESR

BFMER -

2020 2019

—ECEE —E-NE

US$'000 Us$'000

FET FE=T

Wages, basic salaries and allowances T& iRy 32,290 30,770

Bonus fE4T 2,311 2,108
Pension costs — defined contribution plans Bk E 7

—EREMHFRETE 2,944 3,079

Other employee benefits HitESEF 3,139 3,096

40,684 39,053
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As stipulated by the labour laws in Vietnam, the Group
operates defined benefit pension plans for its employees in
Vietnam employed on or before 31 December 2008. The
provision is determined based on the employees’ years of
services as at 31 December 2008 and their average monthly

RBUEFHEREE  *EFRBENRZ
EZNFE+__A=+—HIAUFEAN
BEEESRHEERNBRAREFE -ZF
BHEUEER_ZETNE+A=+—
BZRBEFHRRERS B NEAR

salary for the six-month period prior to the last service day. RN FEHSBHEL-

2020 2019
—ECEE —E-NE
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FET
As at 1 January m—B—~8 1,414 1,478
Current service cost BNERRR 5 RE 2 141 335
Payments INEN (95) (399)
As at 31 December w+-ZB=+—H 1,460 1,414

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows: FrfERNETERERRNOT :
2020 2019
—EEE —E-NE
Discount rate TIRE 9% 9%
Salary growth rate HEEREX 4.5% - 6.9% 3.0% - 7.9%
Expected years of service remaining TEERRIER AR TS IR 15-17 yearst 13-17 yearsfE

Pursuant to the Law on Social Insurance in Vietnam effective
from 1 January 2009, the Group is required to contribute to
a state-sponsored employees’ social insurance scheme for its
employees in Vietnam. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R MR AR Y R

28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28 EFENREDS (FALATEG (B
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622%) E383(F - AR (KEBEESEH
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE H=EE) RE (F622GE) REE L
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF HRARE Z W E)

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING

RULES)
(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EFERESRITHAEZMNE
The remuneration of every director and the chief BESERERITHAEZHNET
executive is set out below: mE
For the year ended 31 December 2020: BE—_T-FEF+HA=+—HL
FE:
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
in connection
with the
management of
Allowances Employer's the affairs of
and benefits  contribution to the Company
Salary Discretionary in kind aretirement o its subsidiary
Fees (Note a) bonuses (Note b) benefit scheme undertakings Total
HRESEE
ERARFH
& HMBAIEH
Fi3 RERENERN BHEHHE WEMRBEMR
Name of Director g2 bk (Hf3ta) R (Htzkb) MR ERZEMHS At
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
RE7 T£7n T£7n TR FER F#7 FET
Executive Director BTES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung RRELE 1 343 499 16 - - 859
Mr. Yang, Cheng BERE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note ¢) #3834 (c) - 382 484 16 - - 882
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 216 349 16 - - 581
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou wENEE - 181 349 16 - - 546
Non-executive Director F9TES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng ABERE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BRERE 1 - - 16 - - 17
Independent non-executive  BIFEHTES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BEREE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray RBHAE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen HEREE 3 - - 16 - - 19
Mr. Huang Chung Fong BgRE 1 - - 16 - - 17
Total BE 10 1,122 1,681 176 - - 2,989
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR EE

28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28 EEEMNRiER (é,ﬁ N BEERG (58
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622E) F3831F% AR WEEHTF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE =EH) HH ($622GE) RE#H L
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF HRAREZHE) (48)

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EERERITHAEZNE (&)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019: BHE_Z-NAEFE+A=+—HL
FE:
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
in connection
with the
management of
Allowances Employer's the affairs of
and benefits contribution to the Company
Salary Discretionary in kind a retirement or its subsidiary
Fees (Note a) bonuses (Note b) benefit scheme undertakings Total
RESHE
EEARTY
& HWBAIEH
i3 ERRENER BANERHE MEMRBEMD
Name of Director f 3z e (Hizta) BB (HfzEb) Pt Bz Et#E At
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
F£n TE£T TR TR TR RE T RE 3
Executive Director $rES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung REERE 1 343 467 16 - - 827
Mr. Yang, Cheng BERE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note )~ 18R 54 (Mizkc) - 380 454 16 - - 850
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 184 327 16 - - 57
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou L - 181 327 16 - - 524
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng ABERE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BERERE 1 - - 16 - - 17

Independent non-executive ~ BUFEHITES

Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong HREREE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray RBRAE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen ffREE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Huang Chung Fong ERERE 1 - - 16 - - 17
Total k] 9 1,088 1,575 176 - - 2,848
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(A) EFERSRITHRASZME (&)

(continued)
Aggregate other emoluments paid to
Aggregate emoluments paid to or or receivable by directors in respect of
receivable by directors in respect of their other services in connection with
their services as directors, whether of the management of the affairs of
the Company or its subsidiary undertakings the Company or its subsidiary undertakings Total Total
EENEAERZRE ESREEARAY
(FiaadRALEMBRARNZES) HEMBRAREBHEMN
BEXAHRKZzENE HitfRBEEX Rk it £ 2% At At
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZECEE “EhE k- 3.2 “E-hE —B°EE “E-0E
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
TEn FEx FER TEn TEn FEx
186 185 2,803 2,663 2,989 2,848
Note: st
(@)  Salary paid to a director is generally an emolument paid (@ XNIF—LESENHZBEAM

or receivable in respect of that person’s other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company or its subsidiary undertakings.

(b) Allowances and benefits in kind include meeting
attendance allowance.

(c) Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang is also the CEO of the Company, no
separate disclosure in respect of the remuneration of the
CEO has been made.

(b)

ZATRHEEBEARRQRFHEKR
BAREHARMNEMREME

XA RAEWAIEN £ -

R BEYEANEEHFEERZE

o

SHERERTEAQTITHAE
o WEMTBAEENHFINET

DRAIKER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(B)

©

(D)

(E)

(F)

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no other
retirement benefits were paid to directors in respect of
their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking
(2019: same).

Directors’ termination benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2020, no
termination benefits were paid to directors (2019: same).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no
consideration was provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services (2019: same).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealings in favor of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with directors (2019: same).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 32, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2019: same).
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(B)

(@)

(D)

(E)

(F)

EERAKEF
BHE_Z " ZF+”"B=+—HL
FE UTEAZEERREETELR
BAREMBATNEFFIRENR
B AHEMBRAEN CE—NEF:
HEE) °

EEZRIEER
BHE_ZT-ZHF+-HB=+—HL
FE WEAEELMLLEEN (Z
T—NE R °

MREEERFMRE=FREN
RE

BEZZEZHE+"H=+—HL
EEC-UEMRRE-EEERTMASE
ZHREREBCE—AE HEE) -

BRAUES - SREESEHNZE
ANEBRZEEESNEMEERS
SHEANER EERREMRS
B & ik

HE_Z”"ZHFE+-HB=+—HL
FE UTENEE TZEEFE
HREANEREZEEETNARE
ERATSEAFHNER EER
BREMZSZ (ZE—HE  BR) -

EENRS RHABHTINEKX
g
PRIMGEE32FAI B E N RAFER
RAFEERNTAER > Q51 E
SIVEAEREBAERMAARE
EEENHEEEERETNEM
BARZ - ZHHEHN (ZTE—N
F R -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(9]

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included four (2019: four)
executive directors; their emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the
remaining one (2019: one) individual during the year is as
follows:

() namEEMEAL
FERAFEANLEESHEALT
BENS (CE-ASF 0% $1T
EE O REMMEEN EXZDH
PR AFERNBAGFT—% (2
T-hEF —%) ALZHMOT

2020 2019
—EEF —E—hEF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE=7x FEx

Wages, basic salaries and TE R &2
allowances 143 128
Bonus fE4T 44 41

Pension costs — defined BIRERA

contribution plans —EREHFRET A 3 2
190 171

The emoluments of the remaining individual fell within
the following band:

BITATZMEER U TEE :

Number of individuals

A
2020 2019
—E-%f —F-nE

US$155,001 to US$180,000 155,001 7TE
180,000 7T = 1

US$180,001 to US$205,000 180,001 ETE
205,000% 7t 1 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a) Cash generated from operations

() EBELEZRE

2020 2019
—ECEHE —E—hE
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
B 5 FE7T FET
Profit before income tax PRETIGM AR F] 22,017 19,813
Adjustments for: MUTIEERE .
— Finance income — B FBURA (728) (871)
— Finance costs —MBEEH 473 918
— Share of post-tax loss of —EEBE AT
an associate PRIGEBESIE 1,117 99
— Write-off of inventories —EEFES 3 7
— Reversal of impairment —EOFERE
of inventories (50) (93)
— Depreciation of —ME-BEK
property, plant and RIEITE
equipment 6 18,048 20,244
— Reversal of impairment —ERE ZR™
loss of trade B ERE
receivables 13 (126) (10)
— Amortisation of — B EE#RE
intangible assets 8 114 126
- Amortisation of right- —EREEE
of-use assets 7 280 145
— Impairment of property, —ME-BEK
plant and equipment RERE 6 786 -
— Loss on disposal of —HEME -BE
property, plant and KEEZEE
equipment 20 37 113
— Realised fair value gain —EEEIRITER
on structured bank ZBE&IR7
deposits NEBEW = (155) -
— Unrealised fair value —EEEIRITER
gain on structured ZREIR
bank deposits NEBEUW = (18) -
— Gain on disposal of —HE—REB
a subsidiary NEVZ W 33 - (3,940)
— Impairment of goodwill —BHERE 8 3,107 3,580
44,905 40,131
Change in working capital EEESEH Rt
(excluding the effects of SEREEEZ
exchange differences on EREELE)
consolidation)
— Inventories -5 4,210 (4,640)
— Trade receivables, — BN E ZERM
prepayments and FEIRRIE &
other receivables HhfEWFRIE 6,699 (598)
— Trade payables, accruals — e & R
and other payables FEst &R &
HAthFE I IR (5.866) (6,955)
— Net changes in —HEARREAT
balances with related EERZEE
companies x| 89 197
Cash generated from EBEEZRE
operations 50,037 28,135
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a)

(b)

Cash generated from operations (continued) (a) EBELEZERE (@)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds ELReRERERN HEWE
from sale of property, plant and equipment comprise: BEREEZRERIBESE !
2020 2019
—EEH —E—hE
Us$’000 Us$'000
F=ET FE7T
Net book amount (Note 6) BREHEE (M5t6) 45 116
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BEREREZ
plant and equipment (Note 20) E518 (M95E20) (37) (113)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BERREZ
plant and equipment Fri8 718 8 3
Net debt reconciliation (b) EFFREZHIR
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the KEFINNES 2N FEZEHE FEE
movements in net debt for each of the years presented. DR AR FREEE -
Net debt B3R
2020 2019
—E-EF —E—hEF
Us$’000 Us$'000
F=E73T FEx
Cash and cash equivalents HERREEEY 42,359 41,127
Bank borrowings — repayable within ~ $R{TEHR—N—ERNEE
one year (32,373) (24,748)
Bank borrowings — repayable after IRITER—N—FEREE
one year (13,986) (15,376)
Lease liabilities — current portion HESE RIS (199) (111)
Lease liabilities — non-current portion FHE&E—JEENHIE S (2,818) (3,016)
Net debt B FEE (7,017) (2,124)
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 42,359 41,127
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BRRE-EEFE (9.633) (14,343)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BRRE—FHFIE (39,743) (28,908)
Net debt B FRE (7,017) (2,124)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(b)

Net debt reconciliation (continued)

(b)

Liabilities from
financing activities

BEFHEZHR (@)

REMETHZAR
Bank Bank Lease Lease
borrowings borrowings liabilities liabilities
due within due after - current - non-current
1 year 1 year portion portion
R—ER3E R-F&3H HEaRE HEaRE
ZRTEE ZiRTEE —ERES - JEENERE S
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TEn TEn FEn TET
Balances as at RZE—-h&E—B—H
1 January 2019 2R (20,469) (15,697) (166) (2,315)
Cash flows Beng 5,417 (9,325) 324 -
Non-cash flow movements: FRERELE .
Foreign exchange adjustments  SMEZHEE (50) - - -
Acquisition - leases WE-HE - - (725) (701)
Termination - leases wIE-HE - - 550 -
Interest expense on lease HESGENERS
liabilities - - (94) -
Other non-cash movement HthER S 28 (9,646) 9,646 - -
Balances as at RZE-h&+ZH
31 December 2019 and =+—-BRk-E°EE
1 January 2020 —B—RZz&8 (24,748) (15,376) (1 (3,016)
Cash flows Bena (1,824) (4,413) 114 -
Non-cash flow movements: ERERELE .
Foreign exchange adjustments  SMEHE 2 - - -
Interest expense on lease HEAGN SRS
liabilities - - (89) -
Other non-cash movement HMIEREEE) (5,803) 5,803 (113) 198
Balances as at RZEZZE+ZH
31 December 2020 =t+—Bz4&% (32,373) (13,986) (199) (2,818)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group's capital expenditure contracted for at the end of
the reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows:

FEERRSHPRETNEREELEZE
RXHMTF

2020 2019
ZEISE —E—hEF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FEx
Contracted but not provided for BRI NERER
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERSZE 4,442 3,587
Investment in an associate (Note 10) R—E#ERTZEE
(MF5E10) 112 112
4,554 3,699

At 31 December 2020, the Company has given guarantees for
bank facilities of subsidiaries amounting to US$131,600,000
(2019: US$128,600,000), of which US$91,827,000 (2019:
US$78,753,000) has not been utilised.

The ultimate controlling party of the Group is the Yang Family,
whose members are Messrs. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Yang, Cheng,
Yang, Yung-Huang, Yang, Kun-Hsiang, Yang, Kun-Chou, Yang,
Yung-Jen, Yang, Chen-Wen, Yang, Wen-Hu, Yang, Tung, Ms.
Yang, Wen-Yin, Ms. Yang, Shu-Hui and Ms. Yang, Shu-Mei.

(@) The table below summarises the related parties and
nature of their relationship with the Group as at 31

RIE_ZEFE+_RA=+—H &7
AWBATAH131,600,000&7T (ZF
— L& 128,600,000E7T) Z SRITRAE IR
(R Hdh91,827,000E T (ZE—A
£ 178,753,000 7T) MAREA

FERRRERSAGRKE HREE
FERBAEBERE - BXERE
IR ST BN T E B ERE
BRXEE -BXHEE - BREE B
XL HRELETRGREL L

@) TN _—_E_TEFE+_A
=t+—HZzEREALRHEERAE

December 2020: EREEME !

Related party Relationship with the Group

BREATL B E %

Vedan Enterprise CORP (“Taiwan Vedan”) A substantial shareholder of the Company
RAEERGBRAR (T8EKA) KABNEERR

Vedan Biotechnology Corporation (“Vedan Bio") A company commonly controlled by the Yang Family
RAEMRERMERAE (M EMRIE) —HERGERELERZERHZAE

Dacin International Holdings Ltd. An associate of the Group

EMERZERERAR REEMNEE QT

Capron Group Limited A company commonly controlled by the Yang Family
Capron Group Limited —HEBEREERZEGZAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(b) Significant related party transactions, which were carried (b) HEAEEBEXEHEBREPETNE
out in the normal course of the Group's business, are as ABRAEALIRZNOTF

follows:

2020 2019
—EEEF —E-NEF
Note US$’000 Us$'000
M 5% F=T FET
Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan MEEXRAEEGR (i) 10,982 7,410
Sale of goods to Vedan Bio MK E R
HEEG SR (i) 12 -
Purchase of goods from Taiwan HEEKAREER
Vedan (i) 5,856 -

Technical support fee paid to E= AU SR EA )

Taiwan Vedan R m& (if) 2,165 2,156

Agency commission income Al & & bk £ UREX Y

received from Taiwan Vedan REBRSWA (ii) 2 2

Notes: MEsE :

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, sales to/ (i) ERBEERAE  REBMBRAGR
purchases from the related parties were conducted in BEMEATEHZHE BE
the normal course of business in accordance with the MEALTRBEATHEERBRE
underlying terms. FR¥ETTo

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the (il AATDEERAR ZEXRHEH
transactions were carried out in the normal course of BEBBREPET LEHIREME
business and the fees are charged in accordance with the 3 155 5 RO AR R U & o
terms of underlying agreements.

() Key management compensation (0 FEEEAEME

The compensation paid or payable to key management, MEERBENIECGEEZEEEA

including all executive directors and senior management, B (BEMBERTEEREHRER

for employee services is shown below. [8) Z FHENEFI T o

2020 2019
—E_EF —E-hE
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FET
Salaries and other short-term FeREMEHERREF
employee benefits 4,161 3,730
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(d)

Year-end balances with the related parties

(d) HEERMEALZFERGH

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had the following RIEBZEF+-BA=+—H =
significant balances with the related parties: EEEFHAEALTZETEZLEGN
T
2020 2019
—EEF —FEAhEF
Note Us$’000 US$'000
B F=T FE7T
Amount due from Taiwan Vedan FEUR & 0k 2 2h1B (i) 850 954
Amount due from Vedan Bio & WOk £ £ 9
Bz MIE (i) 12 -
Amount due to Taiwan Vedan FE{T & B KT Z FRIE (i) (1.328) (1,329)
Loan to an associate BTBERABZER (iii) 122 122
Amount due from an associate FEW B E AT 2 T8 (iv) 10 -
Amount due to Capron Group F& {3 Capron Group
Limited LimitedZ F I8 (v) (30) (22)
Notes: ME -

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

All balances with Taiwan Vedan are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of payment.

The balance with Vedan Bio is unsecured, interest-free and
has no fixed terms of payment.

The loan to an associate is unsecured, bears interest at 4%
per annum, denominated in US$ and is repayable on 20
May 2021.

The balance represents interest receivable from an
associate.

The balance with Capron Group Limited was unsecured,
interest-free, denominated in US$ and repayable within
one year.

On 26 January 2019, Ordino Investments Pte Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to sell
all of its shares of Shandong Vedan Snowflake Enterprise Co.,
Ltd. with a cash consideration of US$1. The transaction was
completed on 29 January 2019.

(iv)

BERANMAEGHEAER
BB REEEEMRBA-

ERBEYHRZEFRASEIR
B RBREEEEMRBA-

BFHERTAZERAEIET
BEMNFIBFHE - UETHE
WER_ZE-_—FHEAZ-+HE
Ro

BREGAERBHEARZF

o

ci e

B Capron Group LimitedZ 458872
EIRF BB MUETHE LA
N—FEREE-

RIE—HhAhE—BZ+ARH &xRTZ
2E M BT O0rdino Investments Pte
Limited BT E=FTLEEHZE U
HEERUERKRASIEEXERATAZ
2HRM RERBEIET ZXRBE
RZIZE—AFE—ABZ+hHTM
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the disposed BEHEZWBARNRLEHRZIESR
subsidiary as the date of disposal are as follows: ERGEENNT

US$'000

FEx

Consideration receivable: FEUR IS -
Cash consideration (Note) RERE (HsH) -
Trade and other receivables FE UL & 5 AR 3R K EL At FE W FR 18 (17)
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY (6)
Trade and other payable &1t B 5 AR F0 K ELAth FE {718 151
Carrying amounts of net liabilities disposed BHEZEBEFHEKREE 128
Exchange reserve released bR 2 ERHE 3,707
Non-controlling interest for disposal of a subsidiary HBRIHE—RMBAT ZIEZER#ER 105
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 20) HE—RWBATZWE (MisF20) 3,940
Note: =
The cash consideration for the sale of the subsidiary is US$1. HEMBABZHREREAI1ET
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Balance sheet of the Company

ERREERER

As at 31 December

w+=ZB=+—H
2020 2019
ZEZEHF —E—hEF
Note Us$’000 US$'000
I F= FE7
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBARZIRE 166,030 166,030
Investment in an associate REEARZRE 4,903 6,308
Loan to an associate HTHERATZER = 122
Loan to a subsidiary HTHMBRATIZER 500 1,200
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 171,433 173,660
Current assets RENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries & U [ A B =R IE 70,070 53,060
Amount due from a related party FEW B RIE AN L RRIE 34 18
Amount due from an associate FE W B & R BI TR IE 10 -
Loan to an associate HTHERATDZER 122 -
Prepayments and other receivables FETFRIE R H Ath
FE W R I 655 658
Short-term bank deposits THAR1TE R 2,929 1,806
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 3,716 4,844
Total current assets MBEERE 77,536 60,386
Total assets BHEMRE 248,969 234,046
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of KABIHEE ANEEE S
the Company
Share capital &N 15,228 15,228
Reserves H#HE (Note(a))
(Hi5E(a)) 227,035 212,379
Total equity W AA%E 242,263 227,607
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Balance sheet of the Company (continued) TRTEEREBR (B)

As at 31 December

w+=ZB=+—8H
2020 2019
ZEISE —E—hE
Note US$’000 Us$'000
M5 TF=T FEx
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities mEaR
Accruals and other payables FET & R R HAth
P& FRIR 3,270 3,117
Bank borrowings RITEE 2,105 1,993
Current income tax liabilities BNERFRIS I AE 3 -
Amount due to a related party FE{IBRAEALTIE 1,328 1,329
Total current liabilities mENB AR 6,706 6,439
Total equity and liabilities EnkaEMEEE 248,969 234,046
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board AAREEEBBREEEETFNRE
of Directors on 23 March 2021 and were signed on its behalf. T—F=ZAZ+=HBMAEBHTI AL
RREE-
Yang, Tou-Hsiung Yang, Kun-Hsiang
1B EEIf 1R
Director Director
EE EE
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Balance sheet of the Company (continued)
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EATREERRR (@)
MisE(a) s QB REFES

Share
premium and Exchange Retained
other reserve reserve earnings Total
B i fE R
Hth{# ERfEE REER 4agE
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 UsS$'000
FE FE FE7 FE7
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—hE—H—H 194,098 (111) 5,816 199,803
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Profit for the year KEEZFH - - 22,599 22,599
Other comprehensive income Ht2EUWA
Currency translation difference  ERZXE - 99 - 99
Total comprehensive income  2EUAHEE 194,098 99 22,599 22,698
Dividends paid ENKRE - - (10,122) (10,122)
At 31 December 2019 RIZE—h&E
+=-B=+—H 194,098 (12) 18,293 212,379
At 1 January 2020 R-ZB2-Z2F—HF—H 194,098 (12) 18,293 212,379
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Profit for the year EEERF - - 20,686 20,686
Other comprehensive income HtiZ2EUWA
Currency translation difference  ERZ%E - 176 - 176
Total comprehensive income  ZHEUA4EEE 194,098 176 20,686 20,862
Dividends paid BERE - - (6,206) (6,206)
At 31 December 2020 R_E_ZF
+ZB=+—H 194,098 164 32,773 227,035
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Five-Year Financial Summary

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—E-EFE —T-hEFE E-NEFE E—tF IET—RE
UsS$’000 us$'000 us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
F=5x FET FET FET FET
Revenue &= 360,741 357,857 356,772 322,805 327,640
Profit before BREF1S2 AT
income tax gl 22,017 19,813 22,007 23,308 28,476
Income tax expense Frigimpx (5.340) (4,228) (4,613) (4,570) (6,243)
Profit attributable to biN/NSTEZZ= N
owners of FEAh R F)
the Company 16,650 15,563 14,285 19,061 22,501
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—ECEFE —ZT-hE EB-NE Z—tHE ZT—RE
uUs$’000 Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
F= FE=T FEr FEr FE7
Assets and liabilities BEERERE
Total assets BEMEE 386,539 369,476 367,805 358,701 356,790
Total liabilities =R ERE (85,269) (81,749) (81,123) (76,118) (77,584)
Total equity EmAEEE 301,270 287,727 286,682 282,583 279,206
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Reference for Shareholders

Place of Listing

Stock Code
HKEXx
Access to Bloomberg
Access to Reuters
Board Lot
Par Value
Trading Currency

Financial year ended
Full year results announced
Annual general meeting

Main Board of

Hong Kong Stock Exchange (“"HKEx")

02317

2317 HK Equity
2317.HK

4,000

US$0.01

HKD

Interim results to be announced

* subject to change

31 December 2020

23 March 2021

18 May 2021

In the last week of
August 2021*

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the

Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar:

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Telephone : (852) 2980 1768
Facsimile : (852) 2528 3158

Holders of the Company's shares should notify the Hong Kong
branch share registrars promptly of any change of addresses.

L

B F05%

Bk X PRy
TERE
BBt hRE
BEEEQ
HE
RBEM

EEEEEHE
EEEEQM
REBERE
FEIEE R

* BEREE

BB MR

02317

2317 HK Equity
2317 HK
4,000

0.01%&7T

HTT

—EERF+"RA=+—H
- —HF=HZ+=H
- -FHA+N\H
—E”_—%)N\A
RE—EEH~

ERERRNBRRELZER FMHEEL
BZBEBRNBRETDE !

SEERBERAE

N

EREAXEER1835

S 0541E

E:E 1(852) 2980 1768
{HH :(852) 2528 3158

BAEARARGBZAL BEXOMAL > 55H R
BRNEBRMNBRERLRDEE
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Investor Relations

Over the years, the Group has been committed to maintaining close
contact and good communication with investors in a professional
and open manner to collect more information and valuable opinions,
as well as providing timely disclosure of its business strategies and
directions of the Group, so as to enhance corporate governance while
strengthening investor confidence.

During the year under review, the management team had regular
conference calls with investors in Hong Kong and was proactive
in dispatching the latest information of its business to investors.
Information about an environmental issue related to its Vietnam
operation was relayed to investors. This is in line with the Group’s
commitment to keep up open and transparent communication as well
as ensuring that investors fully understand its operations in order for
them to make sound investment decisions.

In addition, the Group constantly interacts with investors via its
corporate website. During the year, the Group has posted its
announcements, annual and interim reports, and all relevant
disclosures and circulars on its website promptly for the convenient
access and reference by investors. The Company website address is:
http://www.vedaninternational.com.

Vedan welcomes all opinions and suggestions from investors.

The e-mail address of its investor relations department is
vdi@vedaninternational.com.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk IR (382 AR A S

—BELMR EEBNUTXRIBHNEERER
BEMRETRREFNERE BWEESHAER
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B BREERD THRABREERT  FHER
ERRERTE
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vdi@vedaninternational.com.
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